Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are requested to attend a meeting of
the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
on Friday, 12 July 2019, at 10.30 a.m.
in the District Council Chamber, South Lakeland House,
Kendal
Note – Training on the Overview and Scrutiny function will be provided for
Members of the Committee at 9.30 a.m. in the District Council Chamber, South
Lakeland House, Kendal.

Committee Membership
Councillors
Pat Bell
Helen Chaffey (Vice-Chairman)
Brian Cooper
Eamonn Hennessy
Hazel Hodgson
Vicky Hughes (Chairman)
Anne Hutton
Janette Jenkinson
Susanne Long
Ian Mitchell
Doug Rathbone
Mark Wilson

Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Wednesday, 3 July 2019
David Sykes, Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources (Interim Monitoring Officer)
For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Committee Services
Telephone:
01539 733333
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2

MINUTES

5 - 22

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Committee held on 26 April 2019.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP
In accordance with Rule 17 of the Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rules, any
Member who is subject to a party whip on any item must declare the existence
and nature of the whip.

5

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be
considered in the presence of the press and public.

6

TERMS OF REFERENCE
To note the Terms of Reference of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.

7

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Any member of the public who wishes to ask a question, make representations
or present a deputation or petition at this meeting should apply to do so by no
later than 0:01am (one minute past midnight) two working days before the
meeting. Information on how to make the application can be obtained by
viewing the Council’s Website www.southlakeland.gov.uk or by contacting the
Committee Services Team on 01539 733333.
(1)
Questions and Representations
To receive any questions or representations which have been received from
members of the public.
(2)
Deputations and Petitions
To receive any deputations or petitions which have been received from
members of the public.

23 - 28

8

WORK PROGRAMME AND FORWARD PLAN

29 - 36

To consider the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20
and the contents of the latest Forward Plan (documents attached).

9

NORTHERN RAIL SERVICES
To receive a verbal update.

10

REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN 2018/19

37 - 70

To consider the actual income and expenditure for 2018/19, budget variances,
contributions to and from reserves and an update to the Capital Programme for
carry forwards and other changes.

11

2018 - 2019 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT

71 - 84

To consider the Treasury Management Annual Report 2018/19 and the 2019/20
Strategy Update.

12

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLAN 2020/21 TO 2024/25

85 - 158

To consider the draft Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2024/25,
incorporating the Financial Strategy and the Budget Strategy.

13

ANNUAL PROCUREMENT UPDATE 2018/19
To consider the Annual Report and a review of the 2019/20 Procurement
Schedule.

14

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATE
To receive an update, if any, on the work of the Cumbria Health Scrutiny
Committee from the Council’s representative or substitute.

PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local Government
Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to Information)
(Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph number)
There are no items in this Part of the Agenda.

159 - 178

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.2
53
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held in
the Bindloss Room, Kendal Town Hall, on Friday, 26 April 2019, at 11.00 a.m.
Present
Councillors
Vicky Hughes (Chairman)
Doug Rathbone (Vice-Chairman)
Pat Bell
Helen Chaffey
Brian Cooper

Anne Hall
Hazel Hodgson
Janette Jenkinson

Vivienne Rees
Mark Wilson

An apology for absence was received from Councillor Anne Hutton.
Officers
Una Bell
Simon Blyth
Inge Booth
Deborah Clarke
Lawrence Conway
John Davies
Julie Jackson
Anthea Lowe
Nicola Metcalfe
Paul Mountford
Fraser Robertson
Simon Rowley
Helen Smith
David Sykes

Case Management Team Leader
Strategy Specialist
Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist
Principal Community Spaces Officer
Chief Executive
Case Management Officer
Principal Housing Strategy Officer
Solicitor to the Council
Green Spaces Officer
Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer
Communications Specialist
Director of Customer and Commercial Services
Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources

Also in attendance were Councillors Giles Archibald (Leader and Promoting South
Lakeland Portfolio Holder), Jonathan Brook (Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation
Portfolio Holder), Philip Dixon and Dyan Jones (Climate Emergency and Localism
Portfolio Holder) and Anthony Gardner, Director of Planning and Performance,
Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group, David Walker, Medical Director,
University of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust, Simon Rigg, Acting Head of
Communications, University of Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust, Councillor
Brendan Sweeney, Chair of South Cumbria CSP and Chair of Barrow Borough Council,
Superintendent Matt Pearman, Police Constable Kevin Jackson of Cumbria Constabulary
and Mike Conefrey, Public Health Locality Manager, Cumbria County Council.

O&S/66

MINUTES
The Solicitor to the Council reported that the minutes accurately reflected the meeting.
However, reference on the day to the Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust not
attending the meeting was incorrect, as it was the Clinical Commissioning Group which

Page 5

54
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

had been invited to the meeting in error and not the Trust from whom the presentation had
been expected. The Solicitor to the Council reported that she had discussed the matter
with the Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust and had undertaken to provide
clarification to the Committee at today’s meeting.
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes
of the meeting of the Committee held on 1 February 2019.

O&S/67

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

O&S/68

DECLARATION OF THE PARTY WHIP
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of the party whip were raised.

O&S/69

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there are no excluded items on the Agenda.

O&S/70

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no questions, representations, deputations or petitions
have been received in respect of this meeting.

O&S/71

COUNCIL PLAN PERFORMANCE MONITORING QUARTER 4 2018/19
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder presented the fourth quarter
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Report 2018/19 which set out the Council Plan
Priorities and Measures of Success. The measures listed, details of which were set out
within the report, were showing very good performance and demonstrated that South
Lakeland was a very desirable place to live, work and explore.
The report also included the latest Strategic Risk Register. Out of a total number of
15 risks, six were currently above the Council’s tolerance but were, however, being
managed effectively.
In presenting the report, the Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
thanked the Chairman and Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee for their
service during 2018/19, stressing the importance of the Committee’s input into the
activities of the Council. He further wished to put on record thanks to the Chief Executive
and officers for the achievements reached throughout the year, highlighting in particular
work in relation to the provision of affordable housing, addressing Climate Change
poverty, improvements to playgrounds, the provision of “Changing Places” toilets and
promoting growth in the economy of South Lakeland.
Reference was made to and thanks expressed for the production and publication of a
poster by the Council aiming to assist in the reduction of air pollution through turning off
idling vehicle engines and it was suggested that more should be done to encourage
people in this regard. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
reminded Members that suggestions from Members were welcomed. Members’ attention
was also drawn to the fact that “Clean Air Day” was on 20 June 2019.

Page 6

55
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

In response to a query regarding the area of economy and a request for details of where
new jobs had been created, the Chief Executive explained that the Economic
Development Team monitored job opportunities and tried to help businesses in order to
support economic growth. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
undertook to arrange for Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members to be provided with
written details.
Concern was raised with regard to housing and those businesses without staff
accommodation experiencing staffing shortages due to a lack of accommodation within
the area. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder explained that he
was aware of the difficulties in the hospitality sector, however, drew attention to the
implications caused by the current political uncertainties and the devaluation of sterling
which were not helping. Also, of particular concern were the difficulties faced by young
people wishing to embark on self-build but unable to obtain mortgages due to restrictions
relating to defined parts of national parks. The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and
Innovation Portfolio Holder informed Members that he had met with mortgage providers in
this regard and undertook to arrange further meetings in order to establish what the
barriers were.
The need was raised for additional employment sites within the area, particularly around
Junction 36. The Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder explained that the
Council was currently looking at the next Local Plan and suggested that this issue could
be addressed within this process. He added that representations would be welcomed.
The Chief Executive stressed that the new Council Plan approved in February 2019 was
very much based around the provision of housing and job opportunities within South
Lakeland both now and into the future, also highlighting the importance of the Council’s
work with its Morecambe Bay partners.
In response to a query raised in relation to Risk No.15 on the Strategic Risk Register
relating to the Customer Connect and the nature of work with Eden District Council that
may potentially impact on the Programme, the Chief Executive explained that this risk
related to partnership arrangements with Eden District Council and the potential for the
two organisations to move forward in two different directions. The risk was, however,
being managed through the Customer Connect Programme Board and the Chief
Executive added that the Programme was currently on track to achieve its targets. The
Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder added that the Customer Connect
Project was complex in nature, however, was being well-managed and on track to deliver
£1.5m per year. He thanked the Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation
Portfolio Holder and officers for their work on the project. The Chief Executive confirmed
that arrangements were being made for an additional Member briefing session on the
project.
Reference was made to Strategic Risk No.19 and an enquiry was made as to whether the
Council encouraged its staff to take the flu vaccine as part of contingency plans for
business continuity in the event of a flu pandemic. The Performance and Risk Officer
explained that any new virus would be an unknown quantity, with effective anti-virals
taking time to produce. He pointed out, however, that the NHS actively encouraged
people to take up the regular flu vaccination. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland
Portfolio Holder suggested that the matter be looked into and the Health and Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder undertook to take this on board. The Director of Customer and
Commercial Services drew attention to the fact that the Authority had recently been
awarded bronze for “Better Health at Work” and informed the Committee that flu
vaccination had been a topic discussed within the Health and Safety Forum. He reported
that there were plans to move forward to support and encourage officers throughout the
Authority to take up the flu vaccine.

Page 7

56
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

A query was raised regarding business start-ups and as to how many were still functioning
after a twelve-month period. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
understood that there was a high level of survival and the Chief Executive, informing
Members that the figures were available, undertook to provide a written response.
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:-

O&S/72

(1)

the Summary of Performance as detailed within the report; and

(2)

the detailed risks information contained within Appendix 1 to the report.

PORTFOLIO HOLDER REPORT - HEALTH AND WELLBEING
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder presented his annual report on progress made
and plans for the future within the portfolio area, and highlighted a number of areas within
his report.
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder highlighted a number of areas within the remit
of his Portfolio. He referred to the presentations due to be made later in the meeting by
Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust and Morecambe Bay CCG, drawing attention to
the wider determinants of health conditions, such as the environment and job creation.
He referred to the launch of the Council’s “fill up” scheme which encouraged people to refill plastic bottles with water rather than drinking fizzy drinks with high sugar content. The
Portfolio Holder talked about localism and was impressed by the commitment shown by
parish councils. He reminded the Committee that Cabinet Members were open to
invitations to visit local communities. The Portfolio Holder drew attention to the work
being carried out by the Building Financial Resilience Group, adding that this was not a
statutory duty but something which the Council chose itself to address. He commended
the LEAP scheme which had been launched to provide free energy advice to residents,
aiming to help people to cut down on fuel bills. The Portfolio Holder praised the work
being carried out by foodbanks in the area and which had seen an increase in use of 18%.
The Portfolio Holder referred to the work of the Community Safety Partnership,
highlighting the ATiC Project which consisted of interactive performances for schools on
decision-making and critical thinking related to drugs and county lines. The Portfolio
Holder closed in commending the Health and Safety work which had been carried out with
drivers at the depots to address reversing issues.
Clarification having been sought with regard to the issue of Devolution, the Chief
Executive explained that a framework was expected from the Government in the near
future, however, that this continued to be delayed due to other business.
Information was sought regarding the process for grants for Changing Places toilets,
concern being expressed in relation to the need for an initial grant to carry out feasibility
studies. The Principal Community Spaces Officer informed Members that the feasibility
studies needed to be carried out prior to the award of full grants in order to assist
communities in drawing up full plans and to ensure that the projects could be completed,
with the right facilities being provided in the right places. The Chief Executive added that
the £25,000 set aside for feasibility studies would ensure that the process was open to
more communities and enable them to research the potential for deliverability. The
Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder further pointed out that the Council
may be able to consider requirements relating to increased costs where necessary.

Page 8

57
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Discussion took place with regard to the issue of fuel poverty and elderly, widowed
homeowners on pensions who were unable to access financial support which was mainly
aimed at those with disabilities. The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder acknowledged
that this issue needed to be examined.
The work being carried out with regard to the provision of Changing Places toilets was
commended, however, it was pointed out that there was no public convenience at all in
Burneside. The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder indicated a willingness to return to
the Parish Council to discuss this Localism issue.
Reference was made to the fantastic playground at Croftlands in Ulverston, however,
attention drawn to the need for innovative ideas on how to address the lack of a public
convenience at the site. The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder, pointing out that this
was a complex issue, was of the opinion that the issue of public conveniences needed to
be re-examined. The Chief Executive pointed out that it was in 2008 that Cabinet and
Council had considered the future of the provision of public conveniences in South
Lakeland. He suggested that consideration could be given to expanding the Community
Toilets Scheme to additional areas and felt that an update on the report considered in
2008 could be brought to Members in order to ensure that the relevant areas of public
health were covered.
The issue of child sex exploitation was raised and it was felt that a briefing session on this
topic may assist Members in gaining a wider understanding. The Health and Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder undertook to give this consideration. The Chairman further suggested the
potential for ATiC to carry out a project examining this area and the Health and Wellbeing
Portfolio Holder undertook to raise this through the Community Safety Partnership.
Clarification was sought with regard to the current ATiC Project relating to drugs and
county lines and the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder explained how the
performances for students during May 2019 would be interactive and followed up by
discussion during lesson time.
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder undertook to provide a written response to a
query on the Council’s stance with regard to the provision of support services following
discharge from prison of people with mental health problems.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

O&S/73

DRAFT SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY 2019
- 2024
The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder introduced the
report, explaining that the 2002 Homelessness Act required local authorities to conduct a
review of homelessness and following on from this to develop a homelessness strategy.
The purpose of the strategy was the prevention of homelessness, to secure sufficient
accommodation for people who were or may become homeless and to secure the
provision of support for those who were or may become homeless so that they did not
become homeless again.
South Lakeland District Council had been working in partnership with a range of partners
from the voluntary and statutory sectors to develop a Homelessness Strategy for the
period 2019 - 2024. As a first step, the Council had conducted a Review of homelessness
in 2018, the findings of which had been considered by the South Lakeland Strategic
Homelessness Group and details of which were set out at Appendix 2 of the Strategy.

Page 9

58
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Strategic Homelessness Group was a multi-agency group chaired by the Portfolio
Holder for Housing, People and Innovation. A workshop had held on 4 December 2018
with relevant stakeholders to discuss the priorities arising from the Review and agree
actions that could be taken forward into the Homelessness Strategy 2019 - 2024. The key
actions had been replicated within the Strategy’s Action Plan, at Appendix 1 to the
Strategy, and the feedback from this Workshop was detailed within Appendix 3 of the draft
Strategy. This work had helped to shape the priorities in the new Strategy which were, in
no particular order:




homelessness prevention;
increasing the supply of settled accommodation;
ensuring appropriate support was available; and
tackling complex needs.

The priorities were framed within the overarching priority of partnership working, as it was
recognised that homelessness was not an issue that could be addressed by a single
organisation. However, the Council could work together with other statutory and third
sector organisations to help achieve these priorities. The Strategic Homelessness Group
provided a mechanism to embed partnership working with other partners, such as
Cumbria County Council, who had a duty to assist in the development of the
Homelessness Strategy and were represented on the Group. Developing commitment to
collaboration should be strengthened by the recent adoption of the Cumbria Public Health
Strategy which recognised the contribution that access to housing and preventing
homelessness had in promoting health.
The draft South Lakeland District Council Homelessness Strategy 2019 – 2024 had
subsequently been developed and was attached as Appendix 1 to the report. Following
consideration by Overview and Scrutiny Committee any necessary amendments would be
incorporated before it was considered by Cabinet on 5 June 2019.
The Action Plan needed to be updated on an annual basis and would be reported to the
Housing Advisory Group and Strategic Homelessness Group as stipulated in the Strategy,
before being signed off by the Director of Customer and Commercial Services. Updated
Action Plans needed then to be sent to the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government.
Details in relation to consultation which had been carried out were included within the
report.
In presenting the report, the Deputy Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio
Holder thanked the Principal Housing Strategy Officer for her work in developing the
Strategy which would replace the current joint Strategy with Eden District Council and
focus purely on South Lakeland.
A suggestion was raised regarding the availability of clear and up-to-date details and
pertinent advice on who to contact out of hours in the case of presentation of an individual
as homeless. The Deputy Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
undertook to ensure that the information was refreshed.
Reference was made to the summary of the review findings and a query raised in relation
to Table 1 regarding homelessness presentations/acceptances and outcomes. The
Principal Housing Strategy Officer explained the breakdown of statistics and undertook to
include the definition of “eligibility” within the glossary of the document.

Page 10

59
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Concern was raised with regard to consultation on the draft Strategy. The Principal
Housing Strategy Officer informed the Committee that the draft document had been
circulated to all Members, however, acknowledged the merit of a paper outlining the main
points of contact.
A query was raised as to whether the Council had considered the development of modular
housing. The Deputy Leader and Housing, People and Innovation Portfolio Holder made
reference to such a scheme nearby Cockermouth and advised that it was on South
Lakeland’s Radar, as well as the Cumbrian Housing Group’s. He advised that he was due
to attend a presentation on modular housing in the summer and was of the opinion that
there was definite potential, particularly in more remote areas where there were
opportunities for development.
RESOLVED – That Cabinet be recommended to approve the draft Homelessness
Strategy 2019-2024.

O&S/74

PARKS AND OPEN SPACES STRATEGY
The Environment Portfolio Holder introduced a report informing Members that the Parks
and Open Spaces Strategy 2019-2019 was a ten year document which had been
developed to provide a direction for the management and development of the Council’s
parks and open spaces.
The Principal Community Spaces Officer, together with the Green Spaces Officer,
presented the report. The District’s parks and open spaces were critical elements of its
green infrastructure network which delivered benefits in terms of meeting recreation
needs, delivering health and well-being benefits for all ages, reducing pollution,
encouraging social interaction, creating biodiversity networks and creating opportunities
for active travel. Parks and open spaces were also fundamental to the character of the
Council’s places and the quality of life it offered to existing and future residents.
The vision for SLDC’s parks and open spaces was, “working together to create valued
and sustainable parks and open spaces in South Lakeland.”
To deliver the vision, the following four key themes had been identified:




Health and Wellbeing – opportunities for healthier lifestyles, to improve mental health,
reduce health inequality and supporting physical activity;
Economy – Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth and
investment in parks and open spaces;
Community – providing high quality parks where people meet, communities thrive and
volunteer; and
Environment – protecting and enhancing our place.

The Strategy provided clear direction of the day to day maintenance activities completed
by Continental Landscapes Limited, through the Grounds Maintenance Partnership. It
also identified areas to work closely with the Council’s communities, partner organisations
and local businesses to improve and enhance its spaces.
The Strategy also identified the types of spaces, items it related to which included; trees
and woodlands, cemeteries, playgrounds, sports pitches and parks.

Page 11

60
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The delivery of the Strategy was supported by a number of parks and woodland
management plans, the Play Audit and the action plan which formed part of the strategy
document.
The Strategy also identified the continued requirement to maximise the resources
available to deliver day to day maintenance, close working with communities and partners
to deliver developments and to obtain best value from all resources available to the
management of the Council’s parks and open spaces.
Details in relation to consultation which had been carried out were included within the
report.
Concern was raised with regard to parishes having to maintain their own play areas and a
question raised as to what the District Council could do to assist. The Environment
Portfolio Holder indicated that both she and the Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder
were willing to visit parishes. The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
explained that the District Council collaborated and carried out safety inspections for
parishes. He reminded Members that the Council was open to communities seeking
funding to enhance proposals through Locally Important Project grants and work to
identify sources of funding. Furthermore, he pointed out that communities were seeing
money coming in through the Community Infrastructure Levy. He looked to Members to
maintain a connection between local councils and the District Council.
Concern was raised regarding cemeteries in Ulverston and the impact of the working
hours of the contractors on timely burials in accordance with some religious faiths. The
Chief Executive explained that the hours worked had been arranged in order to address
health and safety issues.
The Director of Customer and Commercial Services provided clarification with regard to
dogs in the District Council’s open spaces, advising that full details were available on the
Council’s Website.
Reference was made to play areas from which parish councils had stepped back due to
the cost of public liability and insurance and which were instead being run by charitable
organisations. It was suggested that these organisations might be excluded from grant
funding and queried as to how the District Council could assist. The Principal Community
Spaces Officer explained that the District Council offered advice and support on how to
obtain grant funding and on day to day management and that she had seen charitable
organisations succeed.
RESOLVED – That Cabinet be recommended to approve the Parks and Open Spaces
Strategy 2019-2029.
Note – The Committee adjourned for lunch at 1.00 p.m. and reconvened at 2.00 p.m.

O&S/75

MORECAMBE BAY NHS FOUNDATION TRUST AND MORECAMBE BAY CCG
Anthony Gardner, Director of Planning and Performance, Morecambe Bay Clinical
Commissioning Group, David Walker, Medical Director, University of Morecambe Bay
NHS Foundation Trust and Simon Rigg, Acting Head of Communications, University of
Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust provided Members with detailed presentations on
‘An Introduction to the Morecambe Bay Integrated Care Partnership’ (ICP) and the
Morecambe Bay CCG.

Page 12

61
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Mr Gardner outlined the general National Health Service (NHS) context and displayed a
flowchart which demonstrated how money flowed through the system and further slides
which detailed the commissioning and provider split and the system roles and
responsibilities of the Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG). He explained that there were
contracts in place for providers to meet the needs of the people such as: acute trusts,
physical community services, mental health trusts, local government health and wellbeing
and leisure at District Council level and social care at County Council level. Mr Gardner
went on to outline the members of the Morecambe Bay Clinical Commissioning Group
Governing Body and explained that there had been a blurring of distinction and a joining
up of the NHS at a local level with integrated care communities bringing together
integrated teams which would focus on prevention and wellbeing. A further slide was
displayed which outlined the geography and population of the Morecambe Bay area and
the geographical difficulties of the area associated with working across Morecambe Bay in
particular travel and recruitment. Mr Gardner went on to state that there were far too many
people unnecessarily remaining in hospital and it was vital to enhance support at home,
which would be better for the patient and better for NHS resources.
Mr Walker displayed further slides which outlined details of the Trust Board and he
highlighted the stability and diversity of the team which he believed provided a strong
professional core representing health, academia, research and partnership working.
Further slides outlined the ‘Visions and Values’ of University Hospitals of Morecambe Bay
Trust (UHMBT), ‘How are we doing at the moment?’ and ‘What is next?’
In response to a question raised by a Member, Mr Walker confirmed that a number of
Non-Executive Directors were resident in Cumbria and that their terms of office were on a
three year rolling programme. In response to a further question, he confirmed that data
which related specifically to the mortality rate of vulnerable adults was currently
unavailable.
In concluding their presentation Mr Gardner and Mr Walker outlined the complexities of
working with Local Governments and with separate Counties, Districts and National Parks
and highlighted the importance of working collectively and individually to offer integrated
care in the community. They outlined their priorities to work on improvements in General
Practice to strengthen the resilience of primary care and to continue to work with Local
Authorities.
Mr Gardner and Mr Walker responded to questions and concerns raised by Members
regarding population, boundaries and access to services in rural communities. They
confirmed that they were working with communities, GP’s, social care teams and district
nurses who were providing guidance and advice on what would work best in the areas. In
addition digital opportunities were being explored, such as booking appointments and
video conferencing from a GP surgery to a consultant at a local hospital. In response to
further questions they confirmed that sites were not being closed and that they continued
to achieve cost improvement plans and with regard to the impact on services caused by
tourists, Members were advised that resources had been brought in from the surrounding
area to support those areas affected by temporary residents.
Members agreed that improvements could be made in the engagement and involvement
of Members and Officers with Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust and Mr Gardner
stated that exclusion had not been deliberate and that there was an openness and
willingness to discuss.
Members thanked Mr Gardner and Mr Walker for their presentations and requested that
the Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust and Morecambe Bay CCG Trust be invited
back to address the Committee in six months time.
RESOLVED – That the presentations be received.

Page 13

62
26.04.2019

O&S/76

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

MORECAMBE BAY CCG
Note - The presentation of Morecambe Bay CCG was combined with the previous
presentation on Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust.

O&S/77

SOUTH CUMBRIA COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP REVIEW 2018/19
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder introduced an update on the work of the South
Cumbria Community Safety Partnership (CSP) during 2018/19.
Councillor Brendan Sweeney, Chair of South Cumbria CSP and Chair of Barrow Borough
Council, Superintendent Matt Pearman and Police Constable Kevin Jackson of Cumbria
Constabulary and Mike Conefrey, Public Health Locality Manager, Cumbria County
Council were introduced to Members.
The substantive report outlined that South Cumbria CSP, one of three CSPs in Cumbria,
covered the areas of South Lakeland and Barrow. The CSP aimed to reduce crime and
enable local communities to remain safe and reassured, without fear or threat of crime. It
did this through identifying priorities (related to crime figures and trends, consultation and
the Police and Crime Plan) for its annual Partnership Plan. Sub-groups were convened,
where necessary, to develop projects and actions. In April 2018, the CSP had agreed to
focus on four local priorities: Alcohol and Violent Crime, Domestic Abuse, Mental Health
(and its impacts on the criminal justice system) and child sexual exploitation. There were
four CSP meetings per annum and the Chair was currently Councillor Brendan Sweeney
(Barrow Borough Council), the Vice-Chair being Police Superintendent Matt Pearman.
There had been a recent focus on serious and organised crime and Prevent (antiterrorism) at recent meetings, with the Police providing verbal updates of the situation in
South Cumbria, giving the opportunity for partners to be aware and work collaboratively
where applicable.
The Crime and Community Safety Strategic Assessment for Cumbria 2017-18 stated that
Cumbria was a relatively safe place in which to live, work and visit. In many areas, levels
of crime and community safety issues were better than those experienced nationally
and/or in the North West region. South Lakeland residents’ top three concerns were with
regard to speeding vehicles, dangerous driving and rural crime.
The latest crime statistics for South Lakeland (from Cumbria Constabulary) were provided
within the report. The Police had stated that there were two significant contributory factors
to rising crime. Firstly, the continued increase in confidence from members of the public
to report what had happened and secondly, statistics had been impacted by greater
compliance by officers with crime recording practices. This was something which had
been recognised nationally by the Office of National Statistics.
County Lines was an emerging area of organised criminality that saw criminal gangs from
other parts of the country seeking to supply controlled drugs, frequently heroin and crack
cocaine in towns and counties geographically separate from where the gang was based.
South Cumbria had experienced this phenomena in all the main towns, a threat which had
been tackled robustly by Cumbria Constabulary who had seen national media coverage of
their approach to tackling these drugs gangs. Offenders from cities such as London,
Manchester and Liverpool had all been prosecuted in operations to tackle drug supply
over recent months. Operation Horizon, for example was a major operation which had
lasted many months and, to date, had seen 26 offenders charged with drugs offences.

Page 14

63
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

This enforcement activity was supported by prevention and education work such as the
ATiC project which was supported by the South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership.
In the past 12 months (2018/19) South Cumbria CSP had:



developed a joined up and collaborative problem solving approach to crime prevention
in South Cumbria;
developed Local Focus Units in Barrow and South Lakeland for a multi-agency
approach to local, tactical issues; and
established links between third sector and statutory agencies, e.g. Barrow MultiCultural Forum, the Local Focus Hubs, MIND and Morecambe Bay CCG.

Details of the projects which had been funded, and actions undertaken, to tackle the CSP
priorities were provided within the report, together with other activities supported by the
CSP and Cumbria-wide initiatives supported and funded by the CSP.
PC Kevin Jackson addressed the Committee and explained that, in his role as a Collision
Reduction Officer, there was a strategy to reduce collisions which involved a co-ordinated
multi-agency approach. He outlined the statistics for road traffic collisions and associated
fatalities and went on to highlight the growing problem of drug driving. He informed
Members of the success of campaigns in schools and community groups which included a
road awareness package, funded by Cumbria Road Safety Partnership. The road
awareness package had been introduced to most 6th Form students and it included a hard
hitting virtual reality vehicle collision.
PC Jackson responded to questions and traffic related concerns raised by Members and
Members agreed that they would like to have an opportunity to experience the road
awareness package and made proposals for other areas where it could be rolled out.
Councillor Brendan Sweeney addressed the Committee as Chair of South Cumbria Crime
Safety Partnership (CSP). He outlined the priorities of the CSP plan and explained that
the CSP worked with the Police and Crime Commissioner and the Police to identify CSP
priorities. He explained that the CSP plan focussed on crime prevention and victim
support and went on to highlight the need to reduce the supply of and demand for drugs.
Councillor Sweeney highlighted the increase in alcohol related issues, particularly in the
adult population, and the role of the Third Sector in supporting those affected. He drew
Members attention to priorities in the area relating to domestic abuse, protecting
vulnerable people, victims of crime, anti-social behaviour and raising awareness knife
crime and alcohol related violent crime.
In response to a question raised regarding domestic abuse and child sexual exploitation
(CSE) statistics, Councillor Sweeney and Superintendent Matt Pearman confirmed that
the data was from 2017/18 and related to the percentage of incidents recorded.
Superintendent Pearman acknowledged that there was an issue regarding victim’s
confidence in terms of reporting crimes and stated that there had been a huge investment
in resources, scrutiny and preventative measures. He went on to explain that Barrow-inFurness had been the first area in Cumbria to introduce a CSE Officer and following its
success CSE Officers had been rolled out throughout the County.
In response to further questions, Superintendent Pearman outlined how crime figures
were recorded and clarified the correct procedure when reporting a crime that did not
require an emergency response. He confirmed that intelligence gathered from 101 calls
was invaluable and was never wasted. Members requested that 101 call data be made
available to them.

Page 15

64
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Superintendent Pearman responded to a question regarding rehabilitation of CSE
offenders and explained that there was a shared responsibility with the probation service.
Statutory monitoring included a Community Impact Assessment and rehabilitation
management which involved visiting and engaging with individuals.
Mike Conefrey provided Members with a detailed presentation on ‘Suicide in Cumbria’.
Mr Conefrey informed Members that suicide rates in South Lakeland were relatively low
and he displayed slides which compared statistics throughout Cumbria, South Lakeland
and England. The statistics highlighted that suicide rates in Cumbria were higher than the
English average and he made reference to the link between suicide and deprivation,
gender and age. Mr Conefrey went on to explain that only one third of people who took
their own life had been in recent contact with mental health services prior to committing
suicide. He outlined those at greatest risk of suicide which included individuals who had
suffered bereavement or relationship breakdown and those with drug and/or alcohol
dependency and those with a history of self-harm. Mr Conefrey informed Members that
the Cumbria Suicide Prevention Strategy was overseen by Cumbria Suicide Prevention
Leadership Group and the focus was: Leadership; Intelligence; Prevention; Intervention
and Postvention. Mr Conefrey concluded his address by informing Members that the key
messages to take away included: ‘preventing suicide is everyone’s business’; ‘every
suicide is a tragedy’ and ‘suicide can be prevented’.
Mr Conefrey responded to questions raised by Members.
The Health and Wellbeing Portfolio Holder thanked all those who had made presentations
and took the opportunity to wish Councillor Brendan Sweeney a happy retirement.
RESOLVED – That
(1)

the report be received and endorsed; and

(2)
the contribution made through the Community Safety Partnership to the following
Council Plan (2019-24 target, “Working with partners to reduce domestic violence, alcohol
related crime, substance misuse, child sexual exploitation and antisocial behaviour” be
noted.

O&S/78

PORTFOLIO HOLDER REPORT - CULTURE AND LEISURE
The Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder presented, on behalf of the
Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder, the annual report on progress made and plans for
the future within the portfolio area, and highlighted a number of areas within the report.
He explained that South Lakeland was striving ahead in supporting leading cultural events
such as the Lakes International Comic Arts Festival, Lakes Alive, Kendal Mountain
Festival, Great North Swim and Tour of Britain and working in partnership with key
Cultural Strategic Partners and organisations such as Arts Council England had identified
and unlocked significant investment. The Leader went on to inform Members that the
Council’s assets were being used and the Town Hall had become an increasingly popular
venue and as it became more flexible it would attract more activities and become a social
hub. He referred to the grant awarded to the Gateway Partnership and went on to
highlight the success of partnership working with the Council’s leisure providers GLL and
informed Members that following Cabinet approval in September 2018, further funding
had been agreed to progress proposals for a new Leisure Centre in Ulverston.

Page 16

65
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

In response to a question raised, the Leader assured Members that the Council was
determined to work with Citizens Advice Bureau to continue to provide an excellent and
invaluable service throughout South Lakeland.
RESOLVED – That the report be noted.

O&S/79

COMMUNITY GOVERNANCE REVIEW - SECOND CONSULTATION
The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer presented a report considering the
responses to the first stage of the public consultation carried out as part of the Community
Governance Review having regard to the South Lakeland Community Governance
Review Terms of Reference as agreed by Council on 24 July 2018.
The first consultation period had commenced on 10 August 2018. As part of Stage 1, as
well as key stakeholders (including the Local Government Boundary Commission for
England (LGBCE), Cumbria Association for Local Councils (CALC), Cumbria County
Council, Lake District National Park Authority (LDNPA) and Yorkshire Dales National Park
Authority (YDNPA)), Town and Parish Councils, residents associations, community
groups and local people had been asked to make representations in connection with the
Review.
The Review had to ensure that the proposed community governance reflected the
interests and identities of the community. It also had to make certain that the
arrangements were effective and convenient for the electors of that community. Parish
wards had to be contained within district wards and county electoral divisions; that is
parish wards, could not cross principal council ward and/or division boundaries.
After this round of consultation, the review would consider any submissions made on the
draft recommendation, culminating in the provision of final recommendations for approval.
The second stage district-wide consultation, as detailed in the terms of reference, had
commenced on 4 March 2019 and would end on 26 May 2019.
Final recommendations would be considered by Full Council on 23 July 2019, with any
reorganisation order issued in August 2019.
Following consideration of the responses received in the first consultation round, draft
recommendations had been drawn up, as set out in Appendix 1 to the report. These draft
recommendations had been presented at Full Council on 18 December 2018. They
contained a number of potential changes, including:






reducing the number of councillors on Arnside Parish Council from 11 to eight;
the potential altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include an area
of proposed development of land north of High Sparrowmire - a map was provided at
Appendix 2(D) to the report;
the potential altering of the parish boundary of Kendal Town Council to include
properties on Natland Mill Beck Lane and The Beeches, and to include a small area of
proposed development on land at Watercrook – maps were provided at Appendix 2(E)
and Appendix 2(F) to the report;
abolishing the current wards of Dent and Cowgill and having Dent Parish Council as
an un-warded parish - a map was provided at Appendix 2(A) to the report;
the creation of a new Parish which amalgamated the parish of Fawcett Forest with the
parish of Whitwell and Selside to create the Parish of Selside - a map was provided at
Appendix 2(B) to the report;

Page 17

66
26.04.2019







Overview and Scrutiny Committee

that the ward of Grange West be abolished and Grange Town Council be made up of
two wards: Grange North and Grange South - a map was provided at Appendix 2(C) to
the report;
changing the naming of the wards in Kirkby Ireleth Parish Council;
altering the election cycle and reducing the number of councillors on Lower Allithwaite
Parish Council;
a number of boundary changes to the parish of Natland - a map was provided at
Appendix 2(G) to the report;
altering the election cycle of Skelwith Parish Council to ensure that the elections were
held on the same day as South Lakeland district elections for the ward of Ambleside
and Grasmere; and
reducing the number of councillors on Windermere Town Council from 20 to 13.

Members of Overview and Scrutiny were being asked to consider these potential changes
in line with the second consultation stage. The Council was seeking further submissions
and comments on the draft recommendations, which it would take into account when
drawing up the final recommendations.
At the close of the first consultation period, responses had received from a number of
parish councils, details of which were provided in Appendix 1 to the report, together with
the recommendations.
Details of all the responses and recommendations were set out at Appendix 1 to the
report. The second round of consultation was based on the draft recommendations. The
Council welcomed views from all stakeholders whether for or against the proposals. The
Council would then consider all responses and would draw up final recommendations on
Parish governance arrangements for the District. The final recommendations would be
made in response to the outcome of the next consultation and could significantly change
the draft proposals.
Oxenholme Village Residents Group made a submission with a proposal for Oxenholme
to be a new parish with its own parish council. The boundaries of this parish would not
include any properties west of the railway line which currently lie in the Oxenholme ward
of Kendal Town Council. Full details can be found in Appendix 1 and Appendix 2 (H). In
summary, the Oxenholme Village Residents Group feel that the residents of Oxenholme
would be better served through the establishment of a Parish Council to help deliver on
the prioritised needs of the Oxenholme community. It is the intention of the second
consultation to widely canvas residents and further stakeholders (including adjoining
Parishes and elected representatives) to gauge the strength of opinion of the proposal by
the Oxenholme Village Residents Group. The proposal from the Oxenholme Village
Residents Group identifies the area east of the railway line up to the Station Inn, Park
Farm and the following roads within the village - Helmside Road, Bleaswood Road, Scar
View, Bolefoot, Helm Court, Hill Place, Helmside Gardens, Fell Foot, the new Oakmere
development of Helm View on the A65, High Park and the caravan site as the proposed
parish area. Full details can be found in Appendix 2 (H). The Principal Performance and
Intelligence Officer advised Members that full consultation would take place with all
residents of the identified areas and if a new parish was created this would take the ward
out of Kendal Town Council and the new Parish Council would have five Parish
Councillors.
The Principal Performance and Intelligence Officer responded to questions raised by
Members and in response to a query regarding the proposed amalgamation of the parish
of Fawcett Forest with the parish of Whitwell and Selside the Principal Performance and
Intelligence Officer confirmed that the recommended name for the amalgamated parish
was Selside however this was open to discussion and the Member responded by
proposing Selside and Fawcett Forest.

Page 18

67
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

RESOLVED – That
(1)

the consultation responses received to Stage 1 of the consultation be noted; and

(2)
the draft recommendations considered by Council in December 2018 as set out in
Appendix 1 to the report be noted.

O&S/80

WORK PROGRAMME SETTING 2019/20
Members were asked to consider the development of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee’s 2019/20 Work Programme. A number of topics had been submitted for
consideration, and these had been subject to an initial prioritisation by the Chairman of the
Committee and members of the Council’s Corporate Management Team. The Solicitor to
the Council provided details on the recommendations that had arisen from that
prioritisation and how the proposals would incorporate the suggestions submitted during
the consultation period. A list of regular reports received by the Committee was distributed
to Members and the Solicitor to the Council confirmed that the Work Programme would be
updated to include reviews and workshops and a review of the Work Programme would
take place in October 2019.
In response to a query regarding the suggested Financial Reporting in Parishes Work
Programme topic, the Solicitor to the Council and the Finance Lead Specialist confirmed
that at present there was no way of recording Council expenditure in each parish.
However, as part of the Customer Connect Programme and with the introduction of
Locality Teams and new ways of working, it could be possible to develop systems to
capture this information within the parameters of GDPR.
RESOLVED – That the 2019/20 Work Programme be agreed.

O&S/81

DRAFT SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
The Solicitor to the Council presented the draft Scrutiny Annual Report 2018/19. The
report was required by the Council’s Constitution and provided an opportunity for the
Committee to demonstrate the work that it had undertaken during the past year as well as
outlining the work planned for 2019/20.
The Scrutiny Annual Report would be presented to the Annual Meeting of Council on
21 May 2019. Those areas of the report highlighted in yellow would be updated, in
consultation with the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, prior to its
submission for Council.
RESOLVED – That the draft Scrutiny Annual Report 2018/19, as attached at Appendix 1
to the report, be referred to Council, subject to any relevant updates arising following this
meeting.

O&S/82

REVIEW OF EFFECTIVENESS AND SCRUTINY RECOMMENDATIONS REPORT
The Solicitor to the Council introduced a report which set out the findings of the annual
Review of Effectiveness, as well as a progress report on recommendations made by the
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to decision-makers.

Page 19

68
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Review of Effectiveness had concluded that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
had continued to be effective over the past 12 months, but that more precise timetabling
of the Work Programme would be beneficial in ensuring that resources were available to
complete the agreed topics on time.
During 2018/19, the Overview and Scrutiny Committee had presented one formal report to
Cabinet arising out of the review of the Asset Management Strategy; this had later
become the Property and Land Management Strategy 2019 – 2024, including the creation
of the Strategic Asset management Plan Board. The recommendations of the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee had been adopted by Cabinet.
In addition, the Committee had considered a number of other policy documents including,
the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Strategy, the Cost Recovery and Hardship Policy in
respect of Contaminated Land and the Cumbria Health Strategy.
As well as the formal recommendations made by the Committee, a number of comments
and/or suggestions had been raised throughout various items considered at committee
meetings. In situations where these comments had been raised against executive items,
these comments had been highlighted during consideration by Cabinet. Other changes
requested of officers, for example in relation to grammatical or presentational issues, had
typically been taken into account before the item had been presented to Cabinet.
Throughout 2018/19, Portfolio Holders had shown a strong commitment to the scrutiny
process.
In March 2019, a Task and Finish Group had held its first meeting on Customer Connect
Locality Working. This group was due to meet on at least three further occasions before
presenting its findings to the Committee.
Also in March 2019, a workshop had been held to consider the possible impacts of a ‘nodeal Brexit’ on the Council’s business. A formal report would be presented to the
Committee once central government had provided some clarity around any departure from
the European Union.
Whilst not requiring any recommendations being made to Cabinet, the Committee had
also paid attention to a number of issues affecting the local community, including the
performance of Northern Rail and the effectiveness of the health offering within South
Lakeland.
The Solicitor to the Council informed the Committee that a Member of the Corporate
Management Team had requested that the effectiveness of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee and its contribution to the production of Policy and Strategy be highlighted and
that it had been noted that the Committee had gone from strength to strength.
RESOLVED – That the following be noted:(1)

the findings of the Review of Effectiveness, as at Appendix 1 to the report; and

(2)
the progress made by Cabinet in implementing the recommendations of the
Committee.

O&S/83

CUMBRIA HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE UPDATE
No update was provided.

Page 20

69
26.04.2019

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

The Chairman, Councillor Vicky Hughes took the opportunity to pay tribute to Councillor
Vivienne Rees who was retiring and thanked her for her contribution to the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Councillor Hughes also thanked Anthea Lowe, the Solicitor to the Council, who was
leaving the Council at the end of May. Councillor Hughes acknowledged the help and
support she had received from Anthea during her time as Chairman of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.
Councillor Pat Bell echoed Councillor Hughes’ words of appreciation for Anthea’s advice
and guidance.

The meeting ended at 5.16 p.m.

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Item No.6
SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2019) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE
PART 2 - ARTICLE 6 – OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY
6.01

Introduction

The Council is required by Law to discharge certain overview and scrutiny functions. These functions are an
essential component of local democracy. The Overview and Scrutiny Committee should be a powerful
committee that can contribute to the development of Council policies and also hold the Cabinet to account
for its decisions. Another key part of the overview and scrutiny role is to review existing policies, consider
proposals for new policies and suggest new policies.
Overview and Scrutiny should be carried out in a constructive way and should aim to contribute to the
delivery of efficient and effective services that meet the needs and aspirations of local inhabitants. The
Overview and Scrutiny Committee should not shy away from the need to challenge and question decisions
and make constructive criticism.
6.02

Overview and Scrutiny Committee

In order to achieve this, the Council has appointed an Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee has the power to:


review or scrutinise decisions made or actions taken in connection with the discharge of any of the
Council’s functions whether by the Cabinet or another part of the Council or any of its Committees;



make reports or recommendations to the Council or the Cabinet in connection with the discharge of
any functions;



consider any matters which affects the Council’s area or its communities; and



exercise the right to call in for re-consideration of decisions made but not yet implemented by the
Cabinet and Officers;



determine requests for Councillor Calls for Action; and

The Council or the Cabinet or the Overview and Scrutiny Committee may from time to time establish such
other committees as it sees fit.
6.03

Role, Scope and Membership

The role, scope and membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is described in the table below:Committee and Membership

Role and Scope

Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 12
Elected Members

 to act as the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee
for all purposes within the District Council’s remit (including
crime and disorder, call-in, councillor call for action);
 to determine and prioritise an annual Work Programme for
scrutiny, with built-in flexibility to deal with urgent issues;
 to determine how scrutiny reviews, through time-limited
task and finish groups;
 to provide positive challenge of the Executive, including
portfolio performance;
 to scrutinise quarterly performance management reports;
 to scrutinise the management of risks contained within
performance reports; and
 to receive questions from the public (with notice, in
accordance with procedure) on services and issues within
the remit of Overview and Scrutiny.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee will comprise 12 elected members. Members of the Cabinet may not
be members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and its Sub-Committees.

Page 23

SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2019) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE
6.04

Specific Functions

Policy Development and Review
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, if appropriate, may:
(a)
assist the Council and the Cabinet in the development of its budget and policy framework by in-depth
analysis of policy issues;
(b)
conduct research, community and other consultation in the analysis of policy issues and possible
options;
(c)
consider and implement mechanisms to encourage and enhance community participation in the
development of policy options;
(d)
question members of the Cabinet, committees and appropriate officers about their views on issues
and proposals affecting the area; and
(e)
liaise with other external organisations operating in the area, whether national, regional or local, to
ensure that the interests of local communities are enhanced by collaborative working.
Scrutiny
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, if appropriate, may:(a)
review and scrutinise the decisions made by and performance of the Cabinet and/or committees and
Council officers both in relation to individual decisions and over time;
(b)
review and scrutinise the performance of the Council in relation to its policy issues and possible
options;
(c)
question members of the Cabinet, and/or committees and officers (Assistant Directors and above)
about their decisions and performance, whether generally in comparison with service plans and targets over
a period of time, or in relation to particular decisions, initiatives or projects;
(d)
make recommendations to the Cabinet and/or appropriate committee and/or Council arising from the
outcome of the scrutiny process;
(e)
review and scrutinise the performance of other public bodies in the area and invite reports from them
by requesting them to address the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and local communities about their
activities and performance; and
(f)

question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent).

Councillor Call for Action
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may:(a)

consider any Councillor Call for Action case referred to it;

(b)

conduct research in considering the issue;

(c)

question and gather evidence from any person (with their consent); and

(d)

make recommendations or report to Cabinet.

Task and Finish Groups
It is anticipated that the bulk of the work of Overview and Scrutiny will be carried out using appropriate Task
and Finish Groups, set up with agreed Terms of Reference. Membership of these groups will be open to all
elected Members (with the exception of Executive Members) and may call upon evidence from witnesses to
help inform the issue under review. These witnesses could include, for example, expert witnesses, parish
representatives and other community or stakeholder representatives.
Each Task and Finish Group will report its recommendations to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee.
Finance
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may exercise overall responsibility for the finances made available to
it.
Annual Report
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee must report annually to the full Council on its work with
recommendations for its future work programme and amended working methods if appropriate.

Page 24

SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2019) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE
Officers
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee may exercise overall responsibility for the work programme. Officer(s)
will promote the role of the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Sub-Committees, to provide
support to them and their Members and provide support and guidance to Council Members and Officers
generally about the functions of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Sub-Committees.
Proceedings of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Sub-Committees
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee and its Sub-Committees will conduct their proceedings in accordance
with the Overview and Scrutiny Procedural Rules.

Page 25

SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2019) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE

Page 26

SLDC CONSTITUTION (MAY 2019) EXCERPT – TERMS OF REFERENCE

PART 3 - 2. RESPONSIBILITY FOR COUNCIL FUNCTIONS
2.6

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (12 MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL)

Functions

Delegation of Functions

To act as the Council’s Overview and Scrutiny Committee for all purposes
within the District Council’s remit (including crime and disorder, call-in,
councillor call for action);

No onward delegation.

To determine and prioritise an annual Work Programme for scrutiny, with
built-in flexibility to deal with urgent issues;

No onward delegation.

To determine how scrutiny reviews should be undertaken – e.g. as ‘one
day’ reviews, through time-limited task and finish groups;

No onward delegation.

To provide positive challenge of the Executive, including portfolio
performance;

No onward delegation.

To receive questions from the public (with notice, in accordance with
procedure) on services and issues within the remit of Overview and
Scrutiny;

A Councillor Call for Action SubCommittee of the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee of 3
members will carry out the
following function - To consider
each CCfA request within ten
working days of its receipt and
decide whether the request is
valid ie. onwards referral to the
Overview and Scrutiny
Committee for consideration, or
whether the issue may be better
resolved through other means.

To appoint any such Sub-Committees as it considers appropriate

No onward delegation.

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Item No.8
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20
Committee Meetings
Date

Expected agenda items
2019

Fri, 12 Jul
10.30am
9.30am Scrutiny
Training

Fri, 16 Aug
10.30am
9.30am
Overview and
Scrutiny and
Risk
Management
Training

Fri, 25 Oct
10.30am

Terms of Reference;
Work Programme and Forward Plan;
Northern Rail – verbal update;
Draft Treasury Management Annual Report;
Draft Medium Term Financial Plan;
Revenue and Capital Out-turn;
Procurement Annual Report;
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Update
Work Programme and Forward Plan (including review of Work Programme as per O&S80
(2018/19);
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q1;
Financial Monitoring Q1;
Portfolio Holder Report – Housing and Innovation (Deputy Leader);
Scrutiny Progress Report;
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Update;
Green Team update
Community Safety Partnership – Drink/Drug Driving Presentation and Video
Work Programme and Forward Plan;
Draft Council Plan;
Community Safety Partnership Mid-Year Update;
Financial Monitoring Q2;
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q2;
Portfolio Holder Report – Promoting South Lakeland (Leader) / Climate Emergency and
Localism;
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Update;
Invite Morecambe Bay NHS Foundation Trust and Morecambe Bay CCG for update
2020

Fri, 17 Jan
10.30am
10am Public
Finance Training

Fri, 17 Apr
10.30am

Work Programme and Forward Plan;
Draft Budget and Procurement Schedule;
Draft Treasury Management Framework;
Financial Monitoring Q3;
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q3;
Portfolio Holder Report – Economy, Culture and Leisure / Finance and Resources;
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Update;
Reports from completed task and finish groups
Council Plan Performance Monitoring Q4;
Portfolio Holder Reports – Customer and Commercial Services and People / Health, Wellbeing
and Financial Resilience;
Draft Scrutiny Annual Report;
Work Programme 2020/21 Setting;
Effectiveness Review and Scrutiny Progress Report;
Community Safety Partnership Year-End Update;
Cumbria Health Scrutiny Committee Update

Page 29

Page 1 of 2

Scrutiny Reviews
Date

Format

Information

August
2019

Task and
Finish

Strategic Review of Councils Health and
Wellbeing priority

September
/ October /
November
2019
TBC

Task and
Finish

Customer Connect Locality Working

Task and
Finish
Workshop

Economic Growth Strategy

September
2019
January
2020

Task and
Finish

Link the actions from Morecambe
Bay NHS Foundation Trust and
Morecambe Bay CCG attending
O&S into this workstream

Link with timescale for Kendal
Futures and their report completion

Implementation of SLDC Climate Change
Policy
Private Water Supplies

Page 30

Page 2 of 2

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
NOTICE OF FORTHCOMING KEY DECISIONS, PRIVATE EXECUTIVE MEETINGS AND
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK DECISIONS
AS PUBLISHED ON 18 JUNE 2019
The Council is required to give 28 days’ notice when Key Decisions are to be made, and
when an executive meeting is to be held in private. The Notice has been drafted to comply
with that requirement. It is available for inspection on the Council’s website as well as at
South Lakeland House, Kendal and sets out the following:(1)

the matters which the Executive (also known as the Cabinet) believes fall within the
definition of a Key Decision (see definition below) to be taken by the Executive or a
Senior Officer of the Council;

(2)

details of any private meeting (see definition below) of the Executive; and

(3)

proposals for the recommendation to Council of any plan, strategy or budget that
forms part of the Council’s Budget and Policy Framework, and its timetable and
arrangements for consultation. The policies which make up the Budget and Policy
Framework can be found in Article 4, Part 2 of the Council’s Constitution, viewable on
the Council’s website www.southlakeland.gov.uk
(Budget and Policy Framework Decisions are not Key Decisions (i.e. they are not
Executive decisions but are decided by the Full Council; although the Executive may
make recommendations to Council about them). In the spirit of openness and
transparency the Council has decided to publicise the decision making process for
such matters in the same manner as for Key Decisions.)

Documentation
Reports, as well as any background information, will be available for public inspection five
working days before the date of the meeting at which the decision is going to made.
However, some of the reports may contain confidential information and, in that case, will not
be available to the public.
When the Executive is going to consider a confidential report, at least 28 days’ notice will be
given of the intention to hold the meeting in private. A Notice to this effect will be published
on the Council’s website.
Background Information
If you wish to inspect background information, which will inform the decision-making process,
contact the Lead Officer identified in the Notice as dealing with that matter. When the agenda
for the meeting is published on the Council’s website, normally at least 5 working days before
the meeting, these documents will also be made available via the website. However, you will
not be allowed to access any papers which contain exempt or confidential information.
Representations (views you wish to make)
If you wish to make a representation, either about one of the Key Decisions listed (where the
meeting is to be held in private), or that an Executive meeting should be open to the public,
you must write to the Lead Officer identified as dealing with that decision with your reasons
why the meeting should not be held in private. This must be received at least five clear
working days before the date of the meeting.

Page
1 31

Decision Notice
A Decision Notice for each Key Decision, or other Executive decision, will be produced as
soon as practicable after the decision has been taken. These Decision Notices will be
available for inspection at South Lakeland House, Kendal and on the Council’s website.
Urgent Decisions
The Law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent decisions to be made provided
certain criteria are met and relevant Notices published accordingly. None of the decisions
detailed in this Notice are deemed to be Urgent Decisions - unless expressly stated.
Key Decision
This definition was adopted by Council on Thursday, 17 December 2015 and is as follows :“An executive decision which, in relation to an executive function, has a significant effect on
communities in two or more Wards of the Council and/or is likely to result in the Authority
incurring expenditure or making savings above £100,000.”
Private Meetings
In regard to this Notice, private meetings are meetings of the Executive, or part of a meeting,
during which the public are excluded as a result of confidential or exempt information being
discussed. A reason will be given why it is felt that there is a need for the public to be
excluded. If you wish to make a representation regarding the intention to hold the meeting in
private, you must follow the procedure shown above under “Representations”.
The District Council’s Executive Members are:Cllr Giles Archibald – Leader and Promoting South Lakeland Portfolio Holder
Cllr Jonathan Brook – Deputy Leader and Housing and Innovation Portfolio Holder
Cllr Robin Ashcroft – Economy, Culture and Leisure Portfolio Holder
Cllr Dyan Jones – Climate Emergency and Localism Portfolio Holder
Cllr Andrew Jarvis – Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder
Cllr Eric Morrell – Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder
Cllr Suzie Pye – Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder
The District Council’s Chief and Statutory Officers:Lawrence Conway – Chief Executive
Simon Rowley – Director Customer and Commercial Services
David Sykes – Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources (Interim Monitoring Officer)
Helen Smith – Section 151 Officer

Page2 32

Key Decision - Parks and Open Spaces Strategy
To consider approval of the Parks and Open Spaces Strategy 2019 – 2029.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (26 Jun 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (26 Apr 2019)
Date notice first published: 7 May 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 4 June 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
Report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee April 2019.
Lead Officer: Deborah Clarke, Principal Community Spaces Officer
deborah.clarke@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Director of Customer and Commercial Services
Portfolio Holder: Customer and Commercial Services and People Portfolio Holder (Cllr Eric
Morrell)

Key Decision - Council Property at Dowker Lane, Kendal * NEW *
To consider the boundary of the Council’s ownership at Dowker Lane, Kendal.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (17 Jul 2019)
Date notice first published: 18 June 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 16 July 2019)

Open/Exempt: Part exempt
Reasons for Exemption:
Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including the authority holding that information)
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
N/A
Lead Officer: Sion Thomas, Operational Lead Delivery and Commercial Services
sion.thomas@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Director of Customer and Commercial Services
Portfolio Holder: Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Page
3 33

Key Decision - 2018/19 Procurement Annual Report * NEW *
2018/19 Procurement Annual Report and review of 2019/20 Procurement Schedule.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Cabinet (17 Jul 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12 Jul 2019)
Date notice first published: 18 June 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 16 July 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
None
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Section 151 Officer
Portfolio Holder: Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - South Cumbria Community Safety
Partnership Plan
SLDC approves the new South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership (CSP) Plan 2019/20
and recognises the effective collaboration in place between South Lakeland District Council
(SLDC), and Barrow Borough Council, Cumbria Police and partner agencies including Safer
Cumbria.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (23 Jul 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Corporate Management Team (9 May 2019)
Cabinet (5 Jun 2019)
Date notice first published: 28 May 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 25 June 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
South Cumbria Community Safety Partnership Review 2018/19 report to Overview and
Scrutiny Committee (26 April 2019)
Lead Officer: Simon Blyth, Strategy Specialist s.blyth@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources
Portfolio Holder: Health, Wellbeing and Financial Resilience Portfolio Holder (Cllr Suzie Pye)

Page4 34

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Medium Term Financial Plan 2019/202024/25 * NEW *
To consider the Medium Term Financial Plan, incorporating the Financial Strategy and the
Budget Strategy (referred to collectively as the MTFP). The Plan ensures the Council has a
sound basis for allocating resources and effective financial management over the medium
term.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (23 Jul 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12 Jul 2019)
Cabinet (17 Jul 2019)
Date notice first published: 18 June 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 16 July 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
None
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Section 151 Officer
Portfolio Holder: Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Revenue and Capital Outturn 2018/19
* NEW *
To note the actual income and expenditure for 2018/19, note the budget variances, approve
the contributions to and from reserves and to update the capital programme for carry
forwards and other changes.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (23 Jul 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12 Jul 2019)
Cabinet (17 Jul 2019)
Date notice first published: 18 June 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 16 July 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
None
Lead Officer: Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Section 151 Officer
Portfolio Holder: Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Page
5 35

Non-Key Budget and Policy Framework Decision - Treasury Management Annual Report
* NEW *
Report of 2018/19 Treasury Management activity and review of 2019/20 Treasury
Management Strategy.
Proposed Decision Maker (Decision Date): Council (23 Jul 2019)
Also considered by/to be considered by: Overview and Scrutiny Committee (12 Jul 2019)
Cabinet (17 Jul 2019)
Date notice first published: 18 June 2019
(If Key or Private, decision cannot be until after 16 July 2019)

Open/Exempt: Open
Relevant reports/background papers which are/will be available:
None
Lead Officer: Claire Read, Financial Services Officer claire.read@southlakeland.gov.uk
Chief/Statutory Officer: Section 151 Officer
Portfolio Holder: Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder (Cllr Andrew Jarvis)

Page6 36

Item No.10
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 12 July 2019
Cabinet 17 July 2019
Council 23 July 2019

Revenue and Capital Outturn 2018/19
Portfolio:

Councillor Andrew Jarvis Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 18 June 2019.

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

The expected outcome is that the Council’s financial performance for 2018/19 and
the impact on reserves be noted.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny note the outturn figures and
make any comments to feed into Cabinet on 17 July 2019;

2.2

It is recommended that Cabinet:-

2.3

3.0

(1)

note the outturn figures and variance explanations set out in the report
and appendices;

(2)

request Council approve the contributions to and from reserves detailed
in Appendix 1a; and

(3)

request Council approve the revised Capital Programme in Appendix 3
and the funding of the Capital Programme in Appendix 4.

It is recommended that Council:(1)

approve the contributions to and from reserves detailed in Appendix 1a;
and

(2)

approve the Capital Programme and funding set out in Appendix 3 and 4
as part of the Budget and Policy Framework.

Background and Proposals
General Fund Revenue Expenditure and Outturn

3.1

Appendix 1a shows the final overall General Fund outturn against budget for
2018/19 and Appendix 1b shows service expenditure and income variances against
budget. Explanations are included in Appendix 1b generally where variances are
over £10k.

Page 37

The overall net General Fund had an underspend of £9k for 2018/19 once the £361k
of target savings were met. This represents a variance of 0.02% based on a gross
expenditure budget of £51.5m.
3.2

Major variances after carry-forwards included:
a. Cost of Collection on Council Tax and NNDR net overspend of £86k,
mainly due to an increase in bad debt provision and reduction in income
from charging costs. This is partially due to reductions in NNDR reliefs
increasing bills payable and partially due to delayed recovery action
following conversion to new software (which has been addressed with the
situation improving for 2019/20). Overall the Council was due to collect
£43m of NNDR and £81m of Council tax during 2018/19.
b. Unapportionable Pension Adjustment £107k net underspend due to
corporate review of pension and national insurance rates during 2018/19.
c. Rent Allowances £143k net overspend due to write off of older debts and
those relating to DWP errors which were judged irrecoverable during the
migration of outstanding debts as part of the implementation of new
software.
d. Policy & Performance £485k net overspend, mainly due to Customer
Connect costs which were funded from the Customer Connect Reserve
and neither the expenditure or use of the reserve were included in the
working budget. Commitments and expenditure are monitored as part of
the Customer Connect project and reported to the Customer Connect
Steering Group and Audit Committee. Both expenditure and the use of
the reserve are included in the 2019/20 working budgets.
e. Development Control £131k net overspend, mainly due to demand led
income shortfall on planning applications of £114k. These variances are
lower than originally projected at the end of Q2: future years budgets have
been reduced in line with expected volumes.
f.

Car Parking £103k overall net underspend, mainly due to £59k demand
led income surplus – this represents an increase of 1.3% on the income
budget for car parking of £4.4m.

g. Kerbside recycling £136k overall net overspend due to a combination of
reduced income from sale of recycling materials due to low demand and
price and the staff vacancy factor not being met.
h. Salary Savings overall £109k net underspend not included in a. – g.
above, due to effective management of vacancies.
3.3

Table 1 shows the majority of the variance relates to running costs, mainly supplies
and services and contracted services. The variance on supplies and services
relates to a number of budgets across a variety of services, as shown in Appendix
1b.

Page 38

Table 1: Summary of service variances by type of expenditure
2018/19
Working
Budget
£000
15,870
11,639
5,262
-361

Employees
Running Costs
Capital
2018/19 Savings Target
Gross Expenditure

3.4

32,410

2018/19
Actual

2018/19
Variance

£000
£000
15,926
56
11,122
-517
5,263
1
included in figures
above
32,311
-99

Income

-15,202

-14,896

306

Net Service Variances
Non-service Net Expenditure (see Table 2 for detail)
Net Underspend transferred to General Reserve

17,208
-17,208
0

17,415
-17,424
-9

207
-216
-9

The General Fund working balance includes a number of transactions made to reflect
statutory accounting practices. Contributions to and from reserves and corporate
interest payments and receipts are shown in Appendix 1a. The net impact of these
will be a net increase in the contribution to General Fund working balance of £9k.
Major variances included:
a. The Council retains a share of income from business rates (properly known
as National Non-Domestic Rates or NNDR). The amount retained has
increased, mainly due to Small Business Rate Relief and how this is funded
by Government. The Council joined a Cumbria Business Rates pool from 1
April 2014 which aimed to reduce NNDR levy paid to the Government under
the new process. The actual saving due to the Council as a result of the pool
for 2018/19 was £884k, £456k more than budgeted. At 31 March 2019 the
Pool income reserve had a balance of £1.6m. This has to be earmarked for
economic development as part of the pooling agreement.
b. Lower than budgeted contributions to capital programme, reflecting profiling
changing in the capital programme detailed in section 3.9 below. The
majority of the slippage in the programme is due to the Council awaiting
actions by other parties – for example where a grant has been agreed but is
not payable until the other party has met conditions.
c. There have been a number of changes to the budgeted transfers to and from
reserves. These are detailed in Appendix 1a and mainly relate to differences
in timing between the recognition of income and expenditure between years.

3.5

The movement on the General Fund working balance is shown in the following table:

Page 39

Table 2: Summary General Fund Variances
Description
Net Service Expenditure excluding Customer Connect
Customer Connect from Reserves
Net Service Expenditure

Variance
£000
(292)
499

£000

207

Increased net interest receivable
Lower Minimum Revenue Provision
Collection Fund accounting adjustments
Support to Capital Programme
Additional income from Non-Domestic Rates
Additional income from Non-Domestic Rates Pool
Additional income from Non-Domestic Rates Pool to Pool
Reserve

(44)
(169)
(45)
(171)
(340)
(456)
456
(340)
553
(9)

Other net increases in contributions from reserves
Net underspend transferred to General Reserve

3.6

The Council, on 28 February 2014 approved the General Fund working balance
should be set at £1.5m and that any surplus above this level should be transferred to
the General Reserve. Accordingly the net underspend after all other transfers to
reserves, totalling £9k, has been transferred from GF working balance to the General
Reserve.

3.7

Revenue carry forwards were approved at Cabinet on 24 April 2019 subject to the
actual expenditure being in accordance with the projected underspend. No
amendments are proposed to the approved carry-forwards which are noted in
Appendix 1.
Capital Expenditure

3.8

Appendix 2 shows the approved Capital Programme and expenditure for 2018/19.
There was an underspend of £3,636k with re-profiling of expenditure of £3,144k
approved by Cabinet on 24 April 2019. A further re-profiling of £495k from 2018/19
to 2019/20 onwards is requested relating to Ulverston Town Hall. This is due to a
late change in the profiling of grant payments in the legal agreements associated with
the sale of the property.
The majority of re-profiling relates to schemes where the Council is working with
other partners in the delivery of projects and where the Council was waiting for
actions by the other parties before the project could progress. Details are included in
Appendix 2.
Table 3: Capital Expenditure 2018/19
Actual Expenditure
Revised Capital Programme
Net underspend before carry forwards
Approved re-profiling
Requested re-profiling
Variance after re-profiling

£000
4,025
7,661
-3,636
3,144
495
3

Page 40

3.9

Appendix 3 shows a revised Capital Programme for 2019/20 – 2023/24 including the
re-profiling approved in May 2019, the further request for re-profiling relating to
Ulverston Town Hall and the requests set out below.
Other Capital Programme Requests

3.10

The revised Capital Programme incorporates one other request for amendments to
the capital expenditure. This is the inclusion of the Morecambe Bay Coastal
Communities Fund grant from Government of £2.51m and expenditure as set out in
the funding agreement. Cabinet on 23 January 2019 approved SLDC acting as
accountable body for the scheme with £1.35m of the expenditure relating to works to
be undertaken by the Morecambe Bay Partnership. The grant of £1m to SLDC is to
be spent in accordance with the bid and covers Grange-over-Sands Promenade and
Lido connectivity, signage and enhancements including promenade lighting, a new
Prom playground, electrical and digital upgrades, resurfacing works and public realm
and artwork improvements.

3.11

Cabinet on 17 July 2019 will be asked to consider the boundary of the Council’s
ownership of land at Dowker Lane, Kendal. Discussions are still on-going with the
owner of the adjacent land. If Cabinet approve the proposals then the capital
programme will be increased by the purchase price, to be funded by borrowing.

3.12

Cabinet on 26 June 2019 considered the Parks and Open Spaces Strategy. The play
audit identified the need to spend £65k per year to maintain existing play provision.
The capital programme includes £20k recurring budget for maintenance so the
additional £45k annual cost has been included in the proposed Capital Programme at
Appendix 3.

3.13

As part of the annual review of reserves, it is proposed that the balance of £92k at 31
March 2019 on the second homes reserve be transferred to the Capital Programme
to increase the budget for Affordable Homes, Town Centre Properties and Empty
Homes and the second homes reserve is then closed. This will ensure sufficient
funding to anticipated affordable housing schemes under consideration.

3.14

Appendix 4 shows the suggested funding of the revised Capital Programme for
2019/20 – 2023/24 adjusted for actual income and funding applied in 2018/19. The
capital programme will be fully reviewed as part of the annual budget process to
ensure it meets the Council plan priorities, is affordable and is deliverable.

2019/20
CarryApproved forwards
Feb 2019 approved
May
2019
£000
£000
12,338.7

3,144.2

Re-profiling
and
adjustments
requested

2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

1,533.8

17,016.7

22,139.5

3,371.7

1,973.0

2,873.0

47,373.9

Reserves
3.15

Appendix 1a shows the detailed movements on reserves and the comparisons with
budgeted movements for 2018/19. The main changes in the movements relate to
timing adjustments and the charging of customer connect costs to the Customer
Connect reserve.

3.16

The Council’s Reserve Policy, which sets out the desired level of reserves, both
overall and for each reserve, is reviewed annually as part of the Medium Term
Financial Plan which is included elsewhere on this agenda.

Page 41

Total
2019/20
to
2023/24

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The report presents historic data in relation to out-turn for 2018/19. Budget holders
and Members have been presented with monitoring information throughout the year.
Budget and Portfolio Holders have been consulted with respect to variances and
carry forward requests.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

No alternative options are proposed. Not approving the proposed capital programme
may challenge service delivery during 2019/20 and beyond.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

This report forms a key part of the financial governance arrangements that support all
Council priorities.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

As detailed in the report

Human Resources
7.2

This report has no direct human resource implications.

Legal
7.3

This report has no direct legal implications.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this
is a report of past actions and has no health, social, economic and environmental
implications,

Equality and Diversity
7.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: this
is a report of past actions and has no equality and diversity implications,

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Out-turn position not
disseminated to Members and
Officers.

Financial position and
performance not
embedded into wider
organisational strategies

Reporting of out-turn to
clarify performance during
2018/19 and usable
reserves position to
support ongoing activity.

Contact Officers
Peter Hunt, Interim Chief Accountant, p.hunt@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 42

Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist, h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk, tel 01539 793147
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1a

General Fund Expenditure and Income Variances 2018/19 summary

1b

General Fund Expenditure and Income Variances 2018/19 by service

2

Capital Expenditure 2017/18

3

Revised Capital Programme 2019/20 to 2023/24

4

Capital Income and Financing 2019/20 to 2023/24

5

Reserves 2019/20 to 2023/24

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

2018/19 budget book

http://tinyurl.com/yy5n5v7h

Quarter 3 budget monitoring

http://tinyurl.com/yy5n5v7h

2018/19 Revenue and Capital
Carry forward report

http://tinyurl.com/y62aca2f

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
27/6/19
N/A
24/6/19
24/6/19

Circulated to
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
25/6/19
N/A
12/7/19
17/7/19
23/7/19

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44

Appendix 1a
General Fund Expenditure and Income Summary 2018/19
2018/19
Approved
Budget
£000
Net Service Expenditure
Resources
Performance and Innovation
Strategic Development
Neighbourhood Services
Further Customer Connect savings to be identified
Net Service Budget after Customer Connect
Savings

2018/19
Working
Budget
£000

2018/19
Actual

2018/19
Variance

£000

£000

2018/19
Carryforward
£000

2,963.4
2,213.3
4,074.3
6,273.1
-361.0
15,163.1

4,236.4
3,466.6
3,995.1
5,871.0
-361.0
17,208.1

4,211.8
3,819.4
3,650.7
5,733.1
0.0
17,415.0

-24.6
352.8
-344.4
-137.9
361.0
206.9

-175.5
567.0

-175.5
567.0

-222.8
569.9

92.0
-24.5
428.0

92.0
-24.5
428.0

92.0
-24.6
884.2

-47.3
2.9
0.0
0.0
-0.1
456.2

739.2
-4,518.6
0.0

739.2
-4,405.2
-525.0

572.5
-4,406.7
-525.0

-166.7
-1.5
0.0

817.5
-157.1

1,048.4
-1,987.4

877.3
-1,425.5

-171.1
561.9

Corporate Items

-2,232.0

-4,243.0

-3,608.7

634.3

478.7

Net Revenue Budget

12,931.1

12,965.1

13,806.3

841.2

0.0

-3,440.5
-428.0
-10,241.4
1,612.3
-433.5

-3,440.5
-428.0
-10,241.4
1,612.3
-467.5

-3,780.4
-884.2
-10,241.3
1,567.1
-467.5

-339.9
-456.2
0.1
-45.2
0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

-1,500.0
0.0
-1,500.0

-1,500.0
0.0
-1,500.0

-1,500.0
0.0
-1,500.0

0.0
0.0
0.0

Corporate items
Interest Payable
Interest Receivable
Parish Grant
Collection Fund surplus/deficit
Contribution to pool Reserve

Page 45

Effect of Statutory and Proper Accounting Practices:
Minimum Revenue Provision
Reversal of Capital Charges
Adjustments relating to Pension
Direct Revenue Financing
Transfers to/from Reserves

Retained Business Rates
Business Rate Pool
Council Tax
Parish Precepts
Rural Services Delivery Grant
Net General Fund
General Fund Working Balance
Balance 1 April 2018
Surplus/deficit for year
Balance 31 March 2019

Comment

-25.0
-55.0
-361.6
-37.1
0.0
-478.7

0.0
0.0
0
0.0
0.0
0.0 Higher than expected income from business rate pool: largely due to
changes in funding of small business rate relief

0.0 Reduced Borrowing requirement from Capital programme
0.0
0.0
0.0 See below for details
478.7 See below for details

0.0

Appendix 1a
General Fund Expenditure and Income Summary 2018/19
2018/19
Approved
Budget
£000

DIRECT REVENUE FINANCING
Capital Expenditure met by transfers from:
IT replacement programme
LIPS and Affordable Housing

Page 46

Additional contribution Kendal Town Hall stonework
Contribution to Millerground
Customer Connect - Digital
Contribution to Waterhead Jetty
Play areas
Burton Heritage Scheme
Rothay Park/Kendal Town Hall stonework
Kendal Leisure Centre/Lightburn Park
Car Park resurfacing/The Glebe planting
Grant payments
Footway Lighting
Total

2018/19
Working
Budget
£000

2018/19
Actual

2018/19
Variance

£000

£000

IT replacement reserve
New Homes Bonus reserve

40.0
777.5

80.0
213.9

73.3
213.9

-6.7
0.0

Revenue
Revenue
Customer Connect reserve
Revenue
s106 Income reserve
NNDR Pool Income
General Reserve
General Fund Major Repairs Reserve
Revenue for Capital Reserve
Community Housing Fund
Revenue

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
817.5

15.6
12.3
161.0
4.4
14.0
17.0
133.2
201.5
179.5
16.0
0.0
1,048.4

6.8
6.2
0.0
7.2
14.0
17.0
133.2
201.5
179.5
16.0
8.7
877.3

-8.8
-6.1
-161.0
2.8
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
8.7
-171.1

2018/19
Carryforward
£000

Timing differences between agreeing grant and payments made. Offset by
contribution to reserve.
Approved as part of Corporate Financial Monitoring: offset by additional
income or budget savings in revenue services. Actual transfers matched to
capital programme expenditure

n/a

CONTRIBUTIONS TO RESERVES:
Contribution equivalent to income from pool

NNDR Pool Income Reserve/Volatility Reserve

428.0

428.0

884.2

456.2

Annual contribution
Budget timing adjustment
To retain GF Working Bal at £1.5m
Annual contribution
Annual contribution
Annual contribution
Annual contribution
Grange Lido
Unspent New Homes Bonus

General Reserve
General Reserve
General Reserve
Fund of Revenue Monies for Capital Purposes
Second Homes Reserve
General Fund Properties Major Repairs Reserve
IT Replacement Reserve
Economic Development Fund
New Homes Bonus Reserve

200.0
203.6
0.0
100.0
46.0
50.0
80.0
0.0
806.0

200.0
203.6
0.0
100.0
46.0
50.0
80.0
53.0
806.0

200.0
203.3
9.4
100.0
46.0
50.0
80.0
53.0
875.0

0.0
-0.3
9.4
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
69.0

2018/19 Carry Forwards
2018/19 Underspends/Carry Forwards
2018/19 Underspends/Carry Forwards
Unclaimed Member Allowances
2018/19 Underspend to new reserve
2018/19 Underspend
To offset 2018/19 Deficit
To offset 2018/19 Deficit

Carry Forward Reserve
Economic Development Fund
Community Housing Fund
Improving Personal Financial Resilience
Improving South Lakeland
Economic Development Fund
Buidling Control Reserve
Licensing Reserves

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

351.3
65.0
37.4
25.0
30.0
19.0
43.0
87.5

351.3
65.0
37.4
25.0
30.0
19.0
43.0
87.5

351.3
65.0
37.4
25.0

1,913.6

1,966.6

3,159.1

1,192.5

478.7

-61.7
-37.8
-11.8

-138.8
-37.8
-11.8

-138.8
-37.8
0.0

0.0
0.0
11.8

Total
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM RESERVES:
General Reserve timing
Facilities Manager post
Parkside Road car park

General Reserve
General Reserve
General Reserve

Comment

Higher than expected income from business rate pool: largely due to changes
in funding of small business rate relief

Difference between budget and actual spend 2018/19

Offset by contribution to capital and timing differences between agreeing grant
and payments made.
Approved May 2019
Approved May 2019
Approved May 2019
New reserve approved as part of 2019/20 budget setting February 2019
New reserve to be approved from 2019/20: to match-fund initiatives
Further underspend relating to Economic Development 2018/19
Statutory requirement
Statutory requirement

No spend on capital scheme in 2018/19

Appendix 1a
General Fund Expenditure and Income Summary 2018/19
2018/19
Approved
Budget
£000

Page 47

Additional underspend from 2017/18 for Community
Projects
Carbon Reduction Scheme
To match salary costs coming out of stat duties
Funding capital expenditure
IT Replacement Reserve:
Economic Dev related growth approved 2017/18
Economic Dev related growth approved 2018/19
Additional Use of Pool Reserve
BIDs and related activity
ERDF Flood Scheme costs
Kendal Markets & Morecambe Bay studies
Funding capital expenditure
Carry Forward 2017/18
Funding revenue expenditure 2018/19
Redundancy costs
Kirkby Moor Planning Appeal
Planning Appeals
Funding capital expenditure
Funding capital expenditure
Funding capital expenditure
Funding capital expenditure
Funding capital expenditure
Transferred to revenue: no longer required
To offset 2018/19 Deficit
To offset 2018/19 Deficit
To offset 2018/19 Deficit
Funding revenue expenditure 2018/19
Transferred to revenue: no longer required
Total

General Reserve
General Reserve
General Reserve
General Reserve
IT Replacement Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve
Carry Forward Reserve
Customer Connect Reserve
Customer Connect Reserve
Statutory Duties Reserve
Statutory Duties Reserve
s106 Income reserve
New Homes Bonus
GF Major Repairs Reserve
Revenue for Capital Reserve
Community Housing Fund Reserve
Flooding Reserve
Building Control Reserve
Licensing Reserve
Land Charges Reserve
Community Housing Fund Reserve
Social Lettings Reserve

2018/19
Working
Budget
£000

2018/19
Actual

2018/19
Variance

£000

£000

0.0

-20.0

-20.0

0.0

-50.0
-51.3
0.0
-40.0
-180.0
-190.0
-25.0
-30.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-19.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-148.7
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-20.0
-865.3

-50.0
-51.3
-133.2
-80.0
-180.0
-190.0
-25.0
-30.0
-75.0
-82.0
-17.0
-390.9
-425.3
-787.0
-12.0
-40.0
-14.0
-213.9
-201.5
-179.5
-16.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-104.0
-20.0
-3,526.0

-50.0
-51.3
-133.2
-73.3
-180.0
-190.0
-25.0
-30.0
-75.0
-82.0
-17.0
-431.4
-425.3
-787.0
-12.0
-40.0
-19.0
-213.9
-201.6
-179.5
-16.0
-13.7
-43.0
-68.4
-29.5
-96.7
-20.0
-3,700.4

0.0
0.0
0.0
6.7
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-40.5
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
-5.0
0.0
-0.1
0.0
0.0
-13.7
-43.0
-68.4
-29.5
7.3
0.0
-174.4

2018/19
Carryforward
£000

Comment

s106 to fund play area

Statutory requirement
Statutory requirement
Statutory requirement
See also contibution to reserve
n/a

CONTRIBUTIONS BETWEEN RESERVES:
Revenue for Capital Reserve
General Reserve
Planning Delivery Reserve
Land Charges Reserve
Revenues and Benefits IT Reserve
Debt Redemption Reserve
Customer Connect Reserve

to Customer Connect Reserve
to Customer Connect Reserve
to Customer Connect Reserve
to Customer Connect Reserve
to Customer Connect Reserve
to Customer Connect Reserve
from various Reserves

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

200.0
1,201.0
18.1
64.8
10.0
455.0
-1,948.9

200.0
1,201.0
18.1
64.8
10.0
455.0
-1,948.9

0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0

Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018
Approved as part of MTFP July 2018

NNDR Volatility Reserve
NNDR Pool Income Reserve

to NNDR Pool Income Reserve
from NNDR Volatility Reserve

0.0
0.0

299.1
-299.1

299.1
-299.1

0.0
0.0

Closure of old Cumbria NNDR Pool 31/3/18 and creation of new pool 1/4/18
with Copeland Borough Council as a member

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Total

n/a

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48

Appendix 1b
The purpose of this appendix is to set out the revenue budget variance projections based on data up to 31/03/2019 Period-12
Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Income Budget
Full Year
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Commentary

Resources

Page 49

ECL

Legal

Housing People
and Innovation

630,718

-30,250

-73,473

-718

-74,191

EFS

Financial Services

Finance

881,690

-4,000

30,713

3,852

34,565

0

ERB

Revenues and Benefits

Finance

1,835,263

-133,676

31,887

-11,759

20,128

0 Corporate vacancy target not met £20k.

ERS

Employee Relations

Health and
Wellbeing

461,060

-10,813

-43,373

-10,035

-53,408

EXC

Management Team

Promoting South
Lakeland

469,087

0

17,361

0

17,361

GBN

Council Tax Benefits

Finance

0

-65,826

0

-14,515

-14,515

GFN

NNDR Cost of Collection

Finance

2,800

-325,242

-1,758

18,895

17,137

GFS

Unapportionable
PensionAdj

Finance

153,448

0

-107,566

0

-107,566

GFT

Council Tax Cost Collect

Finance

32,935

-172,480

9,757

59,537

69,294

Conversion to new software resulted in delayed recovery action
0 with a consequent increase in bad debt provision and reduction in
income from charging of costs.

GMM

Members

Health and
Wellbeing

388,160

0

-35,295

0

-35,295

Underspend due to unclaimed Members' allowances (Cabinet
-25,000 approved £25k to be transferred to an anti-poverty reserve to help
improve personal financial resilience).

GRA

Rent Allowances

Finance

18,919,775

-19,274,456

-2,880,350

3,023,044

142,695

0

GTH

Other Items

Finance

61,400

-22,500

-52,145

1,584

-50,562

One-off budget savings £34k; received late MHCLG Brexit grant
0 £17.5k which will be transferred into the Revenue Budget from the
General Reserve in 2019/20.

GTV

Bank Charges

Finance

91,150

0

-12,653

0

-12,654

0 Reduced charges due to effective Treasury Management.

Other Resources

533,120

-185,000

-28,147

50,592

22,445

Total Resources

24,460,606

-20,224,243

-3,145,042

3,120,477

-24,565

619,150

0

-15,024

0

-15,024

0 Savings due to effective vacancy management £65k.
Corporate vacancy target not met due to additional cost of interim
cover identified as service critical £27k

0 Savings due to effective vacancy management £58k

0 Corporate vacancy target not met £17k.

0

Localised Council Tax Support Admin Grant greater than
anticipated £14k.

Conversion to new software resulted in delayed recovery action
0 with a consequent increase in bad debt provision and reduction in
income from charging of costs.
Reduction in costs of £12k due to changes in the number of
0 pensioners; £96k reduction due to corporate review of pension
and NI rates.

Write off of older debts as part of software conversion and those
relating to DWP error.

Individual variances <£10k
-25,000

Performance and Innovation
ECU

Customer Services

Housing People
and Innovation

0 Savings due to effective vacancy management £18k

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Income Budget
Full Year
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Commentary

ERI

Information Services

Housing People
and Innovation

932,429

0

-59,623

0

-59,623

0

Various savings due to more effective working and vacancy
management. Approved carry forward for 2 posts £32k but
subsequently not required and excluded from Carry forward
reserve

EXS

Policy and Performance

Health and
Wellbeing

486,742

-17,400

491,138

-5,857

485,281

0

Customer Connect costs funded from Customer Connect
Reserve.

GCG

Community Grants

Finance

Other Performance and Innovation
Total Performance and Innovation

584,770

0

-55,728

0

-55,728

914,869
3,537,960

-53,921
-71,321

-7,804
352,959

5,631
-226

-2,173
352,733

Underspend on Tour of Britain cycling event £25k due to not
hosting a start or finish stage, carry forward approved to fund bid
-55,000 to host a start or finish stage in next year's TOB ; underspend
carried forward on Brewery Arts Centre funding £30k due to
project delay.
Individual variances <£10k
-55,000

-83,800

Strategic Development

Page 50

ECC

Strategic Planning Admin

Economy and
Assets

887,217

0

-76,421

-1,335

-77,756

EPX

Offices

Economy and
Assets

587,934

-21,842

-24,531

16,931

-7,600

EUR

AD Community Inv and
Dev

Economy and
Assets

1,011,841

0

-14,589

-120

-14,709

GBC

Building Control

Housing People
and Innovation

338,797

-329,661

6,015

15,513

21,528

GCH

Community Housing Fund

Finance

103,828

0

-37,380

0

-37,380

GCS

Caravan Site

Culture and
Leisure

203,724

-441,749

-14,985

-25,653

-40,638

GCV

Conservation Environment

Culture and
Leisure

115,360

-46,000

-19,783

6,283

-13,500

GDC

Development Control

Housing People
and Innovation

744,905

-637,256

16,933

113,882

130,814

Delays on Grange Lido project £72.3k and markets review £11.5k,
carry forwards approved.

Saving due to effective vacancy management £39k, part offset by
0 South Lakeland House reduced rental income £17k due to rented
space discontinued.

0 Savings due to effective vacancy management £15k
Demand led chargable income shortfall £16k (this has increased
0 the trading account deficit to £55k, and has subsequently been
written-off).
Net underspend on vacant post £37.4k due to delay in scheme
-37,400 implementation, transferred back to Community Housing Fund
reserve.

0

Lower than budgeted expenditure and demand led increase in
income, resulting in net surplus £41k on budget estimates.

Net underspend on Burton in Kendal Buildings and Public Realm
-15,400 scheme £15.4k due to project delay, carry forward to complete
ongoing design works in 2019/20.

Salary overspend £16k due to corporate vacancy saving target
0 not met; demand led income shortfall relating to planning
applications £114k.

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Income Budget
Full Year
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Commentary

506,667

-51,337

-96,304

-14,170

-110,474

Underspend on Econ Dev projects (including Lancs and Souths
Lakes project, and Kendal Masterplan) £55k due to
implementation delays; undserspend on ERDF flood survey works
£10k to be completed in 2019/20; underspend on Econ Dev Fund
-65,000
£19k mainly due to Ulverston Bid not yet implemented (all
underspends transferred to Econ Dev reserve); Mintworks income
surplus £13k mainly due to demand led increase in meeting
rooms usage.

Housing People
and Innovation

1,256,053

-818,186

-11,790

-30,000

-41,790

Late receipt of MHCLG Self Build Custom Build grant £30k, which
0 will be transferred into the Revenue Budget from the General
Reserve in 2019/20.

Housing People
and Innovation

377,220

-231,273

9,279

12,896

22,175

GED

Economic Development

Economy and
Assets

GEN

Housing Enabling Role

GHL

Town View Fields Hostel

-10,000

Increase in bad debt provision for rent arrears £15k. Underspend
on changes to door system to improve access £10k due to
changes in work scope have delayed installation, carry forward
approved to complete work.

Page 51

GHM

Homelessness

Housing People
and Innovation

483,824

-251,089

-57,996

-8,208

-66,204

Underspend on Flexible Homelessness grant £39.1k, carry
forward required to fund implementation of service provision
review; Homelessness service will require a complete review to
-65,700 determine future service provision, and any budget requirements
will need to be approved by Council. Additional MHCLG grants
received March £26.6k, carry forward approved for the prevention
of homelesssness, and to help deliver statutory duties.

GHT

Housing Standards

Housing People
and Innovation

205,266

-4,343

-48,516

-42

-48,558

Saving due to effective vacancy management £15k; underspend
-21,400 on stock condition survey due to implementation delays £21.4k,
carry forward approved to complete.

GIL

Community Infrastructure
Levy

Housing People
and Innovation

87,235

-79,863

-111

29,192

29,081

SLDC can retain 5% of CIL income to fund CIL officer post, but
0 CIL admin levy income was lower than expected resulting in £29k
shortfall.
Saving due to effective vacancy management £29k; underspend
on flood risk assessments £34k due to delays in Environment
Agency Flood modelling (carry forward approved); Neighbourhood
-62,900
planning grant underspend £28.9k (carry forward approved to
provide support to local plans); received £14k contribution to
planning inspectorate costs.

GLP

Local Plans

Housing People
and Innovation

458,697

-112

-68,889

-39,445

-108,334

GMK

Markets

Economy and
Assets

221,608

-201,202

-17,410

30,613

13,203

0

Saving due to effective vacancy management £10k, offset by rent
income shortfall £12k.

GPH

Public Halls

Economy and
Assets

486,235

-122,261

-9,031

31,290

22,259

0

Kendal Town Hall salaries over budget mainly due to corporate
vacancy saving target not met £5k, and casual staff £7k.

Service

Portfolio

Expenditure
Budget Full
Year
£

Income Budget
Full Year
£

Expenditure
Variance
to Date
£

Income
Variance
to Date
£

Overall
Variance
to Date
£

Carry
Forward
Requests
>£10k

Commentary
Underspend £56k due to delay in works implementation. Eventual
costs to be met from 2019/20 budget.

GPL

Planned Maintenance

Economy and
Assets

56,729

0

-56,729

0

-56,729

0

GSH

Second Home Discounts

Finance

99,501

-703,600

575

-14,045

-13,470

0 Share of second homes income £14k higher than expected.

1,130,006
9,362,647

-1,427,677
-5,367,451

-12,682
-534,345

66,351
189,934

53,669
-344,411

-361,600

0

Other Strategic Development
Total Strategic Development

Individual variances <£10k

Neighbourhood Services
Savings due to effective vacancy management and Customer
Connect

Page 52

EUN

Community Services

Health and
Wellbeing

1,486,848

-195

-67,779

-463

-68,242

GCK

Car Parks

Economy and
Assets

2,612,267

-4,404,951

-70,876

-59,433

-130,309

GCL

Community Leisure

Culture and
Leisure

43,732

-1,824

-22,094

-139

-22,233

GGK

Car Park Enforcement

88,154

-114,792

32,068

-5,430

26,638

GMD

Licensing Act

245

-194,144

-26

-10,217

-10,242

GOT

Environmental Health
Other

Environment

23,598

-2,000

-15,396

522

-14,874

Projects delayed on Health Promotion £10k ; grant received from
-2,800 CCC to fund bike stands for joint project action from the health
and wellbeing forum, balance £2.8k carried forward to complete.

GPK

Parks

Environment

1,460,893

-80,548

-32,577

239

-32,338

-1,000

Savings due to effective vacancy management on Green Spaces
Officer and apprentice post £25k; received grant in January from
Tesco for bluebell planting at Rothay Park £1k, carry forward to
complete grant scheme.

GTG

Street Cleansing Client

Environment

1,161,662

-24,862

3,844

4,400

8,244

-18,300

Net overspend on salaries £28k due to corporate vacancy target
not met; grant received £18.3k in March from MHCLG to fund
High Street Clean Up projects, carry forward approved to
complete projects in April and May.

Economy and
Assets
Culture and
Leisure

Demand led surplus on car parking income £56k; underspend on
0 office equipment £10k; internal recharge variance £40k (offset by
corresponding variance on Car Park Enforcement).
Underspend £15k due to County Council partnership projects
discontinued (British Cycling, sports development, and active
-15,000
travel), carry forward approved to fund temporary hire of
replacement recycling vehicle due to accident damage.
Internal recharge variance £40k (offset by corresponding variance
0
on Car Parks).
0 Various minor variances.

GWK

Kerbside Recycling Client

Environment

4,864,191

-1,539,097

48,161

88,316

136,477

Net overspend on salaries £124k (mainly due to corporate
vacancy targett not met £90k, training overspend £15k, and staff
regrades); additional costs on fuel £15k due to price increase;
0 reduced demand on sale of materials £101k due to reduced
market prices was offset by underspend on adverstising £28k;
underspend on tipping and disposal costs £59k due to reduced
gate fees, and recycling credit surplus £10k.

GWS

Water Supply and Pollution

Environment

75,937

-123,247

-16,762

-7,256

-24,018

0 Water sampling and inspection fees lower than expected £16k.

2,676,554
14,494,081

-2,137,563
-8,623,223

-12,281
-153,719

5,365
15,904

-6,916
-137,815

-37,100

-34,286,238

-3,480,147

3,326,088

-154,059

-478,700

Other Neighbourhood services
Total Neighbourhood Services
Further Custoner Connect savings
Total GF
Net GF

Individual variances <£10k

-361,000
51,494,294
17,208,056

0

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

Performance and Innovation
Locally Important Projects

Paul Mountford

312,367

104,250.00

-208,117.00

20,000

KIT27

Mobile Working

Simon McVey/ Jim
Maguire

120,000

0.00

-120,000.00

0

KIT30

Digital Innovation Project

Simon McVey

290,000

121,694.97

-168,305.03

31,967

KIT90

IT Replacement Fund

Ben Wright

80,000

73,251.55

-6,748.45

0

802,367

299,196.52

-503,170.48

51,967

Page 53

KIP01

208,117 Budget allocated to schemes except for circa
£30k
120,000 Specification and integration with new digital
platform dependent on implementation of
Customer Connect.
168,300 Current budget committed. Will be spent in
2019/20.

6,700 Budget committed on existing project.
503,117

Strategic Development
KDE04

Former Knitwear Factory Ulverston

Sion Thomas

99,454

99,401.49

-52.51

0

Scheme complete.

KCD01

Castle Dairy

Sion Thomas

4,032

0.00

-4,032.00

0

4,032 Work complete and awaiting confirmation from
architect that all defects have been remedied.

KEP52

Disabled Toilet Improvements

Sion Thomas/
Simon Blyth

10,000

0.00

-10,000.00

0

10,000 Work yet to be agreed. Public consultation has
taken place and grant will be given to 4 groups
to undertake feasibility for the projects. Grant
will be paid upon completion of the feasibility.

KIL01

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)

0

37,863.30

37,863.30

0

Schemes funded from Developer contributions
already received.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

Coronation Hall alterations

Sion Thomas

79,767

0.00

-79,767.00

0

KLH03

Kendal Town Hall stonework

Sion Thomas

32,866

32,865.63

-0.37

0

Completed.

KMR01

Grange Footbridges

0

-5,262.39

-5,262.39

0

Network Rail - credit note against invoice for
installation of refurbished footbridge no.19
Clare House Lane

KMR21

Kendal Museum alterations

Sion Thomas

85,000

0.00

-85,000.00

0

KMR32

Wordsworth Trust Contribution

Jim Maguire/ Imelda
Winters-Lewis

42,000

42,000.00

0.00

0

KMR34

Kendal Castle

Deb Clarke/Sion
Thomas

42,000

1,000.00

-41,000.00

3,800

KPE18

Towpath Trail Kendal-Lancaster

Gareth
Candlin/Ruth Leahy

140,000

20,000.00

-120,000.00

120,000

KRE53

Kendal Public Realm

Sion Thomas

22,600

6,865.16

-15,734.84

12,260

KRE55

New Road Common - Design

Sion Thomas

231,023

228,388.53

-2,634.47

0

Page 54

KLH02

79,767 Funds to be transferred to UCE. Business case
from UCE has been received and payment
pending assessment of case and final funding
agreement being drawn up.

85,000 Awaiting legal agreement between Kendal
Town Council and Kendal College
Completed.

41,000 Works to start in summer 2019 and complete
September 2019.

120,000 Remaining £120k payment to CCC to be made
once grant agreement has been finalised.
15,735 Work complete and now in defects liability
period.

Completed.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

Grange Promenade structural works

Sion Thomas

100,000

4,008.00

-95,992.00

15,992

KAH10

Affordable Homes TC Prop Empty

Tony Whittaker

168,000

2,000.00

-166,000.00

40,000

KAH12

Town View Fields works

Alan Davis/Sion
Thomas

2,900

2,890.00

-10.00

0

Complete.

KAH13

Commuted Sums Affordable Housing

Tony Whittaker

60,000

60,000.00

0.00

0

Grant applications totalling £60,000 paid.
Balance of £86,000 already re-profiled to
2019/20.

KGD21

Mand Disabled Fac Grants

Tony Whittaker

934,400

912,194.88

-22,205.12

0

Demand for DFGs continues to be high
including into 2019/20.

KGD21
KRT10

Mand Disabled Fac Grants-DFG Levy
Right To Buy Replacement

Tony Whittaker
Tony Whittaker

0
495,000

87,671.70
0.00

87,671.70
-495,000.00

0
0

KCH01

Community Housing Fund

Tony Whittaker

490,000

16,022.30

-473,977.70

0

Page 55

KRE66

95,992 Work has started with consultants re drainage
repairs by United Utilities. Meeting held with
Natural England, assessment taken place and
response received. Ecological surveys have
now been ordered and these will take place
between May and August 2019. Works on site
from January 2020 through to June 2020.
119,000 Housing association grant and empty homes
grants payments delayed.

Payment of £495,000 not made in March 2019.
Budget needs to be re-instated in 2019/20.

470,000 £16k spent in year. Remainder is allocated but
spend will depend on progress made by
individual community land trusts. Application
for £350,000 (Levens) now approved.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

KXB27

Energy Saving Building Enhancement

Sion Thomas

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

149,200

10,000.00

-139,200.00

15,369

139,200 LSH review to be undertaken in year,
remainder of works will be in 2019/20.

3,188,242

1,557,908.60

-1,630,333.40

207,421

113,085

90,579.67

-22,505.33

0

Work now complete. Underspend on scheme.

1,179,726

Neighbourhood Services
Flood Impact Works Rothay Park

Sion Thomas/ Deb
Clarke

KRE61

Waterhead Public Jetty

Sion Thomas

34,131

34,121.25

-9.75

0

Works completed.

KLC01

Leisure Centres - Changing room
Sion Thomas
refurbishment, upgrade to windows, roofing
and cladding.

162,267

162,205.98

-61.02

0

Completed.

KLL17

Ferry Nab redevelopment

Sion Thomas

7,944

5,278.00

-2,666.00

0

Work complete.

KLL18

Cockshott Point entrance improvements

Deb Clarke

1,750

280.00

-1,470.00

0

KMR33

Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park

Sion Thomas

214,300

27,440.88

-186,859.12

5,162

KMR31

Festival Infrastructure

Jim Maguire

39,800

0.00

-39,800.00

0

Page 56

KEG35

1,470 Work will be completed in 2019/20.
186,859 Works to be completed by end June 2019

24,000 £24k scheme for lamp post banners in Kendal
being actively developed, with involvement of
Kendal Town Council. Spend now will be in
2019/20.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

Play Areas

Deb Clarke

16,375

0.00

-16,375.00

0

KNM54

Rinkfield Playground

Deb Clarke

3,447

0.00

-3,447.00

0

KNM55

Hallgarth Phase 2

Deb Clarke

26,000

1,133.28

-24,866.72

0

KNM56

Millerground Play Project

Deb Clarke

118,502

70,801.26

-47,700.74

170

KNM57

Play Space Audit Implementation

Deb Clarke

0

0.00

0.00

0

KNM58

Kendal Parks playground

Deb Clarke

135,910

124,992.67

-10,917.33

0

KNM59

Lightburn Park MUGA & playground

Deb Clarke

79,852

79,500.00

-352.00

0

MUGA compete. Total cost of scheme will be
within current budget, for completion autumn
2019/20.

KNM60

Abbot Hall Playground

Deb Clarke

5,000

0.00

-5,000.00

0

5,000 Total scheme cost will be £125k. Start on site
end of June, to complete by end of August.

KNM61

Yew Tree Playground Grange

Deb Clarke

55,000

0.00

-55,000.00

74,000

55,000 Installation almost complete, open by the end
of June.

KNM65

Maryfell Sedbergh Play Area

Deb Clarke

61,500

0.00

-61,500.00

66,500

61,500 Playground open, snagging works to finalise,
payment to be made by end of July.

KNM66

Rayrigg Meadow Play Area

Deb Clarke

110,500

478.67

-110,021.33

100,483

Page 57

KNM51

16,375 DCLG grant related works commenced
2019/20

3,447 Project complete.
24,866 Work to be completed end June 2019.

47,700 Path works (£80k) started in November, phase
one completed, awaiting final invoice.

Budget re-allocated during 2018/19

10,900 Completed 2019/20.

110,000 Playground installed. Snagging work to
complete. Payment to be made mid July.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

KNM67

Beck trim Trail

Deb Clarke

KPY42

Car Park machines update

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Comments

0.00

-1,000.00

0

Jim Maguire

140,000

2,605.00

-137,395.00

106,391

KPY44

Town and Car Park/public information Signs Jim Maguire

16,200

4,493.59

-11,706.41

0

KPY45

SLH Car Park - structural repair and resurfacing works

Sion Thomas

377,541

7,155.50

-370,385.50

3,956

KPY46

Car Park Resurfacing

Sion Thomas

476,730

396,459.60

-80,270.40

0

80,270 Buxton Place completed. Additional 2 No. car
parks completed in February. Further design
work needed on the last car park in the resurfacing scheme because of insufficient
soakaway properties, so will take place in
2019/20.

KPY48

Parkside Road Kendal Car Park

Sion Thomas

160,400

6,574.00

-153,826.00

3,060

153,826 Planning approved. Parking study appraisal
confirmed need for car park. Awaiting council
approval to progress.

KRE65

The Glebe Planting

Deb Clarke

50,000

49,500.00

-500.00

0

KLR31

Nobles Rest park improvements

Deb Clarke

198,100

191,154.80

-6,945.20

0

KFL01

Footway Lighting

Jim Maguire

49,400

8,682.94

-40,717.06

0

Page 58

1,000

1,000 Councillor contribution - scheme to take place
in 2019/20.
137,395 Work done, payment in dispute pending
resolution of outstanding issues. Will be
2019/20 before dispute is resolved.
11,700 Tender documents being collated for PSPO
signage.
370,386 Work delayed due to weather. Work now under
way and will complete by end of June.

Work complete.
6,900 Overspend on this scheme due to weather
conditions over winter delaying scheme and
subsequent extra costs, covered by virement.

40,700 Lights at Low Biggins in year. Other spend
dependant on Electricity North West and
Cumbria CC programming works.

Appendix 2

Capital Budget Outturn 2018/19
Responsible
Manager

2018/19
Capital
Budget
for Year

Actual
incl GRNIs - to date

£

£

Variance

£

Outstanding
Commitments

Carry
Forward
requested
& approved Apr '19

£

£

Refurb Replace Recycled Bins

Jim Maguire

150,000

97,741.14

-52,258.86

0

KSC91

Vehicle Purchase

Jim Maguire

866,002

806,276.10

-59,725.90

186,148

KDP02

Kendal Depot

Sion Thomas

0

0.00

0.00

0

3,670,736

2,167,454.33

-1,503,281.67

545,869

1,461,244

7,661,345

4,024,559.45

-3,636,785.55

805,256

3,144,087

Page 59

KSC91

Total

Comments

52,250 Demand is high from customers to replace
damaged bins and provide additional bins to
properties. Furthermore new build
developments of approximately 800 homes in
year each require servicing. Will be significant
further spend in year.
59,700 Tractor (£25k) and boat engine (£30k) still to
be purchased.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60

Appendix 3

Capital Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20-2023/24
GL
Code

KNMxx

Programme Spending by Project

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and
schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)

2018/19
Approved Feb
2019

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19 Final

£000

£000

£000

£000

392.2

102.4

494.6

109.5

9.0

0.0

0.0

178.1
42.6

KLL18 Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements

1.8

KRE61 Waterhead Public Jetty
KRE65 Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II
KRE53 Kendal Town Centre Public Realm

KNM56 Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project
KRE04 Grange Regeneration
KLR31 Nobles Rest
KLL17 Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1

KRE55 New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017)
KLC01 Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms)

Page 61

KMR32 Wordsworth Trust contribution
KMR31 Festival Infrastructure
KEG35 Flood impact works Rothay Park
KFL01 Footway Lighting

2019/20
Carry-forwards
Approved Feb approved May
2019
2019

£000

Re-profiling
and
adjustments
requested

2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2019/20
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

194.0

288.2

44.4

526.6

65.0

65.0

65.0

65.0

118.5

0.0

47.7

0.0

157.3

0.0

20.0

198.1

0.0

-34.7

7.9

0.0

0.0

1.8

31.4

2.7

50.0

786.6

0.0

47.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

47.7

0.0

157.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

157.3

6.9

1.3

8.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

8.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

0.0

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

34.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

22.6

0.0

22.6

0.0

15.7

0.0

15.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

15.7

231.0

0.0

231.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

159.6

2.7

162.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

64.8

-25.0

39.8

0.0

24.0

0.0

24.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

24.0

207.2

-94.1

113.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

49.4

0.0

49.4

25.0

40.7

0.0

65.7

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

165.7

KIT90 IT Replacements
KIT30 Customer Connect

80.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

6.7

0.0

86.7

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

406.7

290.0

0.0

290.0

300.0

168.3

0.0

468.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

468.3

KIT27 Mobile Working

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

KPY44 Town and Car Park signing
KPY45 South Lakeland House carpark works

16.2

0.0

16.2

0.0

11.7

0.0

11.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

11.7

377.5

0.0

377.5

0.0

370.4

0.0

370.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

370.4

KPY46 Car park re-surfacing

339.7

137.0

476.7

25.0

80.3

0.0

105.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

105.3

1,011.0

5.0

1,016.0

1,869.0

112.0

0.0

1,981.0

594.0

499.0

690.0

2,100.0

5,864.0

KGD21 Disabled Facilities Grants
KRT10 Right to buy replacement scheme

934.4

0.0

934.4

661.0

0.0

0.0

661.0

661.0

661.0

603.0

603.0

3,189.0

495.0

0.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

KAH10 Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties.
KAH13 S106 funded affordable homes purchase

168.0

0.0

168.0

260.0

119.0

92.0

471.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

0.0

1,251.0

60.0

0.0

60.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

KSC91 Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes)

KAH11 Cross-a-Moor junction improvement
KAH12 Town View Fields hostel
KCH01 Community Housing Fund

0.0

2.9

2.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

470.0

0.0

470.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

470.0

KMR21 Kendal Museum contribution

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

85.0

KLH02 Coronation Hall alterations

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

79.8

Appendix 3

Capital Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20-2023/24
GL
Code

Programme Spending by Project

KXB27 Energy-saving building enhancements
KDE04 Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance

2018/19
Approved Feb
2019

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19 Final

£000

£000

£000

2019/20
Carry-forwards
Approved Feb approved May
2019
2019

£000

£000

Re-profiling
and
adjustments
requested

2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2019/20
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

149.2

0.0

149.2

0.0

139.2

0.0

139.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

139.2

89.1

10.3

99.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

32.9

0.0

32.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

19.9

-15.9

4.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.0

KPE18 Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail
LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under
KIP01 individual properties)

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

275.4

20.0

295.4

165.8

208.0

-2.2

371.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

371.6

KRE66 Grange Promenade Structural works
KMR33 Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention

100.0

0.0

100.0

300.0

96.0

0.0

396.0

300.0

225.0

250.0

0.0

1,171.0

214.3

0.0

214.3

0.0

186.9

0.0

186.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

186.9

0.0

17.0

17.0

80.0

0.0

85.0

165.0

75.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

240.0

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

41.0

0.0

41.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

41.0

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

137.4

0.0

137.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

137.4

160.4

0.0

160.4

0.0

153.8

0.0

153.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

153.8

10.0

0.0

10.0

40.0

10.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,226.7

0.0

0.0

2,226.7

1,556.7

1,556.7

0.0

0.0

5,340.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

818.3

818.3

1,532.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,351.2

BID01 Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations
BID02 New Ulverston Leisure Centre

0.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

6,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

BID03 Homeless Accommodation for Families
BID04 Abbot Hall redevelopment

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

BID05 Grange Lido

0.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

1,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,960.0

BID07 Windermere Road car park, Grange

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

BID08 Customer Connect: Places

0.0

0.0

0.0

947.5

0.0

0.0

947.5

3,789.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

4,737.4

Accomodation review

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Car park investments*

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Employment site land acquisition

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Rydal Road car park bridge

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Depot review

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

7,502.0

159.3

7,661.3

12,338.7

3,144.2

1,533.8

17,016.7

22,139.5

3,371.7

1,973.0

2,873.0

47,373.9

KLH03 Kendal Town Hall stone work
KCD01 Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement

KMR35 Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS)
KMR34 Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS)

Page 62

KPY42 Car Parking Machines
KPY48 Parkside Road, Kendal car park
KEP52 Disabled Toilet improvements
KDE06 ERDF funded flood defence works
KDE07 Coastal Communities Fund
New Bids

0.0

Bids subject to further assessment:

Total

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks, reconfiguration options on existing car parks and electric charging points

Appendix 4

Capital Funding 2019/20 - 2023/24
Balance April
2019
£000
General
Usable Capital Receipts
VAT Shelter receipt
New homes bonus (capital)****

Page 63

Earmarked or allocated
Revenue (LIPS)
IT replacement reserve
Major Repairs Reserve
General Revenue contributions
Cap grants and contributions (inc S106)
Disabled Facilities Grants
Community Housing Fund*
Right to Buy receipt**
Borrowing
Funding from borrowing***.
Total

Estimated
Income
£000

Use in capital
programme
£000

Projected
Balance March
2024
£000

1,189
932
1,581

349
1,100
513

-1,375
-2,029
-1,983

163
3
111

537
81
155
324
872
177
2,233
4,545

240
400
750
1,150
10,842
3,150
0
3,500

-722
-407
-888
-1,451
-11,378
-3,189
-470
-6,495

56
74
17
24
336
138
1,763
1,550

0
12,627

16,988
38,982

-16,988
-47,374

0
4,235

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes
**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable housing.
***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover the
cost over the assets' life
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 64

Appendix 5

Reserves Summary
The purpose of this table is to set out the projected balance on the Council's usable reserves over the MTPF period.
Reserve

Type

General

Statutory Duties Reserve

General

(150)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(4,784)
(4,314)
(4,548)
(4,748)
(4,948)
(5,148) Finance Lead
Specialist

Page 65

General Reserve

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(6,024)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98) Legal
/Governance/
Democracy
Lead Specialist

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

The main use of this reserve in recent years
has been to fund the one-off costs of
flooding, staff redundancy and early
retirements to enable organisational
reorganisation and the discontinuation of
direct provision of services. Unless allocated
for a particular purpose, revenue budget
under-spending and windfalls are added to
the General Reserve. (For more details of
the risk and an assessment of the potential
financial exposure please see the Risk
Assessment of Level of Reserves).
The Medium Term Financial Plan
provisionally assumes a £200,000 annual
contribution to the Reserve, depending on
quantification of the potential impact of these
factors. Any balance on the General Fund
working balance above £1.5m is transferred
to this reserve as part of the closure of
accounts.

Part of General Reserve earmarked for
certain purposes: use delegated to SMT &
reported as part of Corporate Financial
Monitoring. Includes £50k legal costs/byelection contingency, £40k planning legal
costs contingency, £60k enforcement legal
costs contingency

Reserve

Type

Page 66

Flooding Costs Reserve

General

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(14)

Balance
31/3/2019
£000

Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0 n/a - Closed

Carry-forward Reserve

General

(438)

(391)

0

0

0

0

0 Finance Lead
Specialist

Building Control Fee Income
Reserve

Earmarked

0

0

0

0

0

0

Local Land Charges Reserve

Earmarked

(95)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

0 Operational Specialist
Services
(0) Operational Specialist
Services

Hackney Carriage Licensing
Reserve

Earmarked

12

21

21

21

21

21

Licensing Act Reserve

Earmarked

(76)

(154)

(154)

(154)

(154)

(154)

Misc Licensing Reserve

Earmarked

32

69

69

69

69

69

Gambling Licensing Reserve

Earmarked

13

25

25

25

25

25

Community Housing Fund

Earmarked

(2,309)

(2,234)

(1,764)

(1,764)

(1,764)

(1,764)

Commuted Sums Reserve

Earmarked

(153)

(134)

(44)

(44)

(44)

(44)

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Part of General Reserve earmarked for the
costs of remediation of December 2015
floods, use delegated to Chief Finance
Officer by Council February 2016 - close at
31/3/19 and transfer balance back to General
Reserve
Part of General Reserve earmarked for
revenue budgets carried forward from
2017/18 to future years.
Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on building control.
Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on local land charges.

21 Operational
Lead Case
Management
(154) Operational
Lead Case
Management

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

69 Operational
Lead Case
Management

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

25 Operational
Lead Case
Management
(1,764) Strategy Lead
Specialist

(44) Operational Specialist
Services

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.
income received from Government for
Community Housing Fund not spent in year.

Income received under various s106
agreements not spent in year

Reserve

Type

Page 67

Cumbria NDR Pool Income
Reserve

Earmarked

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(1,169)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(1,577)
(2,177)
(1,777)
(1,727)
(1,727)
(1,727) Operational Specialist
Services
(176)
(344)
(344)
(344)
(344)
(344) Finance Lead
Specialist

Cumbria NDR Pool volatility
Reserve

Earmarked

(299)

Customer Connect Reserve

General

(1,301)

(2,035)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)

Debt Redemption Reserve

General

(455)

0

0

0

0

0

Economic Development Fund

General

(167)

(304)

(304)

(304)

(304)

(304)

General Fund Major Repairs
Reserve

Capital

(307)

(155)

(260)

238

153

68

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Income from Cumbria NNDR pool, earmarked
for economic development
Share of NNDR pool income retained by pool
to offset potential future deficits

(4) Operational
Lead Support
Services

To fund the implementation of the Customer
Connect Project, initially using the Customer
Connect budgets from 2016/17 revenue
budgets not spent during 2016/17.

0 n/a - Closed

Underspend on budget for interest payment
and MRP due to changes in capital
programme, originally set aside for future
costs of debt repayment. Close at 31/3/19
following transfer to Customer Connect
Reserve

(304) Operational Specialist
Services

(17) Operational
Lead Delivery
and Commercial
Services

To encourage economic development in the
District and to ensure that unused funds in a
particular year can be carried forward.

To fund major repairs and maintenance to
General Fund properties that are not
capitalisable and would be difficult to
accommodate in the annual planned
maintenance programme. The Reserve:
• acts as a backstop for emergency major
repairs
• accumulates funds as necessary to meet an
abnormal year in maintenance terms,
• is able to assist in meeting regular
maintenance costs.

Reserve

Type

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(74)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(81)
(74)
(74)
(74)
(74)
(74) Digital Lead
Specialist

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Page 68

IT Replacement Reserve

Capital

Kendal Employment Dev. Fund

Earmarked

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0) n/a - Closed

Assistance to eligible developing firms in the
Kendal area

LABGI

General

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5) Operational Specialist
Services

To fund non-recurring initiatives that
contribute directly to one or more of the
Council’s priority initiatives, with a preference
for economic development. This fund is now
practically fully committed and should be
closed once the committed spend is
achieved.

Local Arts Strategic Partnership Earmarked

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

LSVT Environmental Warranties Earmarked

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282) Finance Lead
Specialist

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37) Strategy Lead
Specialist

(1,457)

(2,118)

(921)

(406)

(181)

(181)

(181) Finnace Lead
Specialist

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1) Finance Lead
Specialist

Marshall Hooper Reserve

Earmarked

New Homes Bonus Reserve

Capital

NNDR Surplus Reserve

Earmarked

To fund the replacement of hardware and
software with a preference for the updating of
the corporate and networking infrastructure.

(30) Operational
Monies provided towards Arts Strategy and
Lead Specialist related activities carried forward for use in
Services
subsequent years.
To pay for environmental insurance until
2032 relating to warranties given as part of
the housing transfer.
Monies left to the Council as a bequest to be
used for housing for the elderly in Grange

New reserve to enable forward funding of
eligible schemes through the Council's New
Homes Bonus protocol
Timing gap between recognising s31 grant
and recognising offsetting NDR collection
fund deficits.

Reserve

Type

Page 69

Planning Delivery Grant Fund

Earmarked

Personal Financial Resilience
Reserve

Earmarked

0

(25)

(25)

(25)

(25)

(25)

Revs and Bens Replacement
Reserve

Capital

(10)

0

0

0

0

0

0 n/a - Closed

Revenue Funds for Capital

Capital

(587)

(307)

394

294

194

94

(6) Finance Lead
Specialist

(46)

(92)

0

0

0

0

0 Strategy Lead
Specialist

Initiatives to enable the provision of
affordable housing: transfer of unspent
balance at end of year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 n/a - Closed

income from the social lettings scheme set
aside for potential losses or repair bills
Closed 31/3/19

Total Reserves excluding
working balance
GF Working balance

(15,447)

(14,907)

(10,331)

(9,252)

(9,362)

(9,747)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

Total Usable Reserves

(16,947)

(16,407)

(11,831)

(10,752)

(10,862)

(11,247)

Second Homes Income Reserve General

Social Lettings Reserve

General

Balance
31/3/2019
£000

Summary, Purpose and Commentary
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0 Operational
Monies provided by Planning Delivery Grant
Lead Specialist in 2009/10 carried forward for use in a
Services
subsequent years. This source of grant
funding has now been discontinued and the
fund will be closed when the current balance
is spent.

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(18)

(25) Operational
Lead Case
Management

New reserve created from unclaimed
members allowances earmarked to improve
financial resilience
Transferred to Customer Connect Reserve
following replacement of Revs & Bens
system in 2017/18
Closed 31/3/19
Monies provided from revenue to support the
Capital Programme & fund expenditure that
may not be capitalisable: annual contribution
£100k

(10,132)
(1,500) Finance Lead
Specialist

(11,632)

Buffer against unforeseen & emergency
expenditure in-year, inflationary demands,
adverse cash flow, inability to use capital
resources.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70

Item No.11
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee
Friday, 12 July 2019
Cabinet Wednesday, 17 July 2019
Council Tuesday, 23 July 2019

2018 - 2019 Annual Treasury Management Report
Portfolio:

Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Section 151 Officer

Report Author:

Claire Read – Financial Services Officer

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

The attached report reviews treasury performance during 2018/19 against the
Council’s Treasury Management Strategy. This is a historic review for noting by
members.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet:(1)

Consider the 2018 – 2019 Annual Treasury Management Report; and

(2)

Recommend that Council approve the 2018 – 2019 Annual Treasury
Management Annual Report

2.2

It is recommended that Council:(1)

Approve the 2018 – 2019 Annual Treasury Management report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Council is required through regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury management report. This is to include a review
of activities and the actual prudential and treasury indicators for 2018/19.

3.2

The report at Appendix 1 meets the requirements of both the Chartered Institute of
Public Finance and Accounting (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management
(the Code) and the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities
(the Prudential Code).

3.3

In line with requirements of the code, the Treasury Management Framework
(including Prudential Indicators) was approved prior to the start of the financial year
by Council on 27th February 2018. Detailed reports have been presented to Overview
and Scrutiny Committee, Cabinet and Council throughout the year.

3.4

The level of actual external debt has remained at £12.8m, below the Capital
Financing Requirement of £18.4m. This shows the Council has not funded revenue

Page 71

activity through borrowing, a key prudential indicator. This has been a prudent
strategy which is constantly under review so as to avoid incurring higher borrowing
costs in the future when the Council may not be able to avoid new borrowing.
3.5

Interest Receipts from the Council’s Investments have brought in £47k more income
than budgeted for, following the increase in the bank rate to 0.75% in August 2018.
Call and operational cash flow investments outperformed their benchmark rates with
only the core cash investments under performing in the year. This is due general
market uncertainty during the year leading to fluctuations in expected rates.

3.6

Interest payable on borrowing was in line with budget as no new borrowing was
expected or taken in 2018/19 as a result of using internal cash balances to fund
capital rather than borrowing.

3.7

Looking forward there continues to be a significant level of uncertainty in the financial
markets. Officers will keep this under constant review with support from the Council’s
external treasury advisors, Link Asset Services. The current strategy of using
internal cash balances to fund prudential borrowing continues to minimise the interest
rate gap (where loans cost more than investments earn) and to help reduce
counterparty risk.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Treasury Management Framework satisfies statute and guidance issued by
Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) and CIPFA. It is
mainly a technical document that reflects the decisions made as part of the wider
budget process. It was prepared in consultation with the Council’s Treasury Advisor
(Link Asset Services). Senior management and the Portfolio holder have been
consulted. The report presents historic data on treasury performance during 2018/19.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options, the report presents historic data on treasury
performance during 2018/19.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The Treasury Management Framework including Prudential Indicators forms part of
the corporate governance arrangements that support all Council priorities.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

The report is historic with the financial and resources implications forming part of the
out-turn report for 2018/19

Human Resources
7.2

This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council.

Legal
7.3

This Report has no direct legal implications

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
Treasury management out-turn relates to a historic review of activities already
approved as part of the 2018/19 Treasury Management Framework

Page 72

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
Treasury management out-turn relates to a historic review of activities already
approved as part of the 2018/19 Treasury Management Framework

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Reporting is not compliant with
the statutory guidance.

Members do not have the
opportunity to scrutinise
the Treasury function

Full year treasury
management report to be
presented to Overview
and Scrutiny, Cabinet and
Council

Investment and borrowing
activity is outside of the
approved Treasury Management
Framework

The Council is exposed to
an unauthorised level of
Treasury related risk

Robust governance
arrangement to control
day to day operations,
based on the approved
strategy, with regular
reporting of compliance

Contact Officers
Claire Read, Finance Specialist and Deputy Section 151 Officer; tel 01539 793152;
Claire.Read@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management Report

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Council Minute C/85 (2017/18)

https://bit.ly/2MCU0Ps

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
13/06/2019
13/06/2019
13/06/2019
20/06/2019

Circulated to
Assistant Director
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
*** or N/A
N/A
N/A
*** or N/A

Page 73

Circulated to
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
*** or N/A
*** or N/A

Page 74

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Appendix 1
Report

Contents
1. Introduction ........................................................................................................... 2
2. Capital Expenditure and Financing 2018/19 ......................................................... 3
3. Borrowing ............................................................................................................. 4
4. Investments .......................................................................................................... 7
5. The Economy and Interest Rates ......................................................................... 9
6. Conclusions .......................................................................................................... 9

1

Page 75

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
1.

Introduction

1.1.

The council is required by regulations issued under the Local Government Act
2003 to produce an annual treasury management report including a review of
activities and the actual Prudential and Treasury Indicators for 2018/19.This report
meets the requirements of both the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and
Accounting (CIPFA) Code of Practice in Treasury management (the Code) and the
CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential
Code).

1.2.

The report includes:


Capital Activity during the year;



Impact of this activity on the Council’s underlying indebtedness (the Capital
Financing requirement, CFR);



Reporting of the required prudential and treasury indicators;



Overall treasury position identifying how the Council has borrowed in relation
to this indebtedness, and the impact on investment balances;



Summary of interest rate movements in the year;



Review of debt and investment activity.

1.3.

During 2018/19 the Council complied with its legislative and regulatory
requirements. Detailed reports have been presented to Overview and Scrutiny
Committee, Cabinet and Council throughout the year as part of the Quarterly
Corporate Financial Reports.

1.4.

There were no breaches of any indicators or limits during the year.

1.5.

Table 1 below provides a summary of the key data for 2018/19:
Table 1: Capital Expenditure, Capital Financing Requirement and Cash
Resources
2017/18
Actual
Capital expenditure
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR)
External debt
Total Investments (inc. call accounts)

2

Page 76

£000
6,596
17,995
12,800
18,912

2018/19
Feb 18
estimate
£000
4,028
18,557
12,800
19,031

2018/19
Feb 19
estimate
£000
7,502
18,468
12,800
17,819

2018/19
Actual
£000
4,030
18,354
12,800
20,329

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
2.

Capital Expenditure and Financing 2018/19

2.1.

The Council incurs capital expenditure on long-term assets. These activities may
either be:

2.2.



Financed immediately through the application of capital or revenue resources
(capital receipts, capital grants, revenue contributions etc.), which has no
resultant impact on the Council’s borrowing need;



Un-financed capital expenditure which leads to an increase in the Council’s
CFR. This increases the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP see 2.6) charged
to the revenue account to ensure that resources are set aside to pay for the
asset over its useful life.

Table 2 below shows the actual capital expenditure and how this was financed.
Table 2: Capital expenditure and financing.
2017/18

£000
6,596

2018/19
Feb 18
estimate
£000
4,028

2018/19
Feb 19
estimate
£000
7,502

1,537
2,198
1,593
1,268

328
832
1,945
923

1,836
1,974
2,477
1,215

Actual
Capital expenditure
Resourced by:
·
Capital receipts
·
Capital grants
·
Revenue Reserves
Unfinanced capital expenditure

2018/19
Actual
£000
4,030
887
1,334
877
932

2.3.

Explanations of the variances are included within the out-turn report to Council on
23 July 2019. The main reason for the in-year variances in capital expenditure are
due to the addition and subsequent re-phasing of spend relating to the Kendal
Flood Relief ERDF scheme to 2019/20 onwards.

2.4.

The CFR represents the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital
expenditure. It increases when the Council incurs capital expenditure and reduces
as resources are applied to capital expenditure.

2.5.

The CFR is the cumulative unfinanced capital expenditure which has not yet been
‘paid for’. It can be understood in terms of an outstanding ‘mortgage’ balance on
the Council’s non-current assets.

2.6.

There are statutory controls in place to ensure that the cost of capital assets is
charged to revenue over the life of the assets. This is the annual MRP charge.

2.7.

The total CFR can also be reduced by:
3

Page 77

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report


The application of additional capital financing resources (such as unapplied
capital receipts); or



Charging more than the statutory minimum revenue charge each year
through a Voluntary Revenue Provision (VRP)

2.8.

The Council’s 2018/19 MRP Policy (as required by MHCLG guidance) was
approved as part of the Treasury Management Strategy Report for 2018/19 on
27th February 2018.

2.9.

The Council’s CFR for the year is shown in Table 3, and represents a key
prudential indicator.
Table3: CFR Movement
2017/18
CFR

£000
17,176

2018/19
Feb 18
estimate
£000
18,373

2018/19
Feb 19
estimate
£000
17,992

1,268

923

1,215

932

(449)
17,995

(739)
18,557

(739)
18,468

(573)
18,354

Actual

Opening balance
Add unfinanced capital expenditure
(as above)
Less MRP
Closing balance

2018/19
Actual
£000
17,995

3.

Borrowing

3.1.

A key prudential indicator is to compare the level of gross debt against the CFR.
Gross debt should not exceed the CFR in the medium term in order to remain
prudent and to ensure revenue activities are not being funded by borrowing. Table
4 highlights the Council’s gross borrowing position against the CFR and shows
that the Council has complied with this prudential indicator.
Table 4: Gross Debt v CFR
31 March 2018
£000
12,800
18,814
(6,014)

Gross Debt
CFR
Over / (under) borrowing

3.2.

31 March 2019
£000
12,800
18,354
(5,554)

During 2018-19, the council maintained an under-borrowed position of £5.6m. This
means that the capital borrowing need, the CFR, was not fully funded with loan
debt, as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances and
4

Page 78

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
cash flow was used as an interim measure. This strategy was prudent as
investment returns were low and minimising counterparty risk on placing
investments also needed to be considered.
3.3.

The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances has
served well over the last few years. However this was, and will continue to be,
kept under review to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in the future when the
Council may not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance capital expenditure.

3.4.

Included in the prudential code are a number of other indicators for debt, the
levels for which are shown in Table 5
Table 5: Summary of Debt and Debt Indicators

Gross Debt
Authorised limit
Operational boundary
Estimate of Financing Costs :
Net revenue stream (Feb 18 estimate)
Estimate of Financing Costs :
Net revenue stream (Feb 19 estimate)
Actual of Financing Costs :
Net revenue stream

2018/19
£000
12,800
24,600
18,600
9.40%
8.91%
6.59%

3.5.

The Authorised limit; is the “affordable borrowing limit” required by section 3 of the
Local Government Act 2003. This is the level of debt that while not desirable,
could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term. Once
set the Council does not have the power to borrow above the authorised limit.

3.6.

The Operational Boundary; is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally
expected to exceed. This is set at a level consistent with the borrowing need
(CFR) plus an allowance for unexpected expenditure.

3.7.

As demonstrated in Table 5 the council has maintained gross borrowing within
both its authorised limit and operational boundary for 2018/19.

3.8.

The ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream identifies the trend in the cost of
capital (borrowing and other long term obligation costs net of investment income).
This shows the percentage amount of the net revenue stream which is spent
before the Council provides any services. For 2018/19 the actual was 6.59%,
which came in below estimates for the year.

5

Page 79

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
3.9.

In addition to the previously mentioned indicators for debt it is also important to be
aware of the maturity structure of borrowing and limits places on fixed and variable
rate debt. These are shown in Table 6 below.
Table 6 Maturity Structure of Debt and Limits on Fixed and Variable rate
debt.
31/03/2018
Actual

31/03/2019
Approved

31/03/2019
Actual

%
0
0
0
0
0
6.25%
46.87%
46.88%
100%

%

%
0
0
0
0
0
6.25%
46.87%
46.88%
100%

Fixed Interest Borrowings:
Under 12 months
12 Months to 2 Years
2 - 5 Years
5 to 10 years
10 to 20 years
20 to 30 Years
30 to 40 Years
40 years plus

Limits on Borrowing at
Fixed rate
Variable rate (maturing<1
year)

Up to 25%
Up to 25%
Up to 25%
Up to 100%
Up to 100%
Up to 100%
Up to 100%
Up to 100%

£m
12.8

£m
24.6

£m
12.8

0

0

0

6

Page 80

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
4.

Investments

4.1.

The Council’s investments are all managed in house by the Council’s finance
team, with the objective to manage risk to ensure the security of investments and
maintain adequate liquidity for revenue and capital activities. Procedures and
controls to achieve this are well established both through member reporting and
officer activity detailed in the Council’s Treasury Management Practices.

4.2.

At the beginning and end of 2018/19 the Council’s investment position was as
follows:
Table 7 Investment Position
31 March 2018
Principal
£000
Call Accounts
Cash Flow (Operational)
Core Cash
Total Investments

4.3.

3,410
3,502
12,000
18,912

Rate/
Return
%
0.25%
0.37%
1.11%
0.80%

31 March
2019 Principal
£000
1,330
7,998
11,000
20,329

Rate/
Return
%
0.65%
0.70%
0.74%
0.71%

Chart 1 shows how investment balances have fluctuated over the course of the
year.

50,000,000
45,000,000
40,000,000
35,000,000
30,000,000
25,000,000
20,000,000
15,000,000
10,000,000
5,000,000

Opening Balance
11/04/2018
22/04/2018
03/05/2018
14/05/2018
25/05/2018
05/06/2018
16/06/2018
27/06/2018
08/07/2018
19/07/2018
30/07/2018
10/08/2018
21/08/2018
01/09/2018
12/09/2018
23/09/2018
04/10/2018
15/10/2018
26/10/2018
06/11/2018
17/11/2018
28/11/2018
09/12/2018
20/12/2018
31/12/2018
11/01/2019
22/01/2019
02/02/2019
13/02/2019
24/02/2019
07/03/2019
18/03/2019
29/03/2019

0

Core Investments

Fixed Operational

7

Page 81

Call Operational

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
4.4.

Investment returns remained low during 2018/19 with the Bank of England Base
Rate rising only once in 2018/19 to 0.75% in August 2018.

4.5.

Overall the Council earned £223k on its investments against a budget of £176k as
it benefited from the increase in base rate. However fluctuations in expectations
throughout the year lead to the core cash investments, which are invested for
longer periods of time, underperforming the bench mark rate.
Table 8 Investment Performance
Average
Annual Return
0.65%
0.70%
0.74%

Call Accounts
Cash Flow (Operational)
Core Cash

Benchmark
0.49%
0.68%
0.79%

Variance
0.16%
0.02%
-0.05%

Non-Treasury Investments
4.6.

Some investments are taken out for non-treasury management purposes, and
these are held primarily or partially to generate a profit. Examples of this include
investment properties and loans supporting service outcomes

4.7.

During 2018/19 no new non-treasury investments were made.

4.8.

The Council continues to hold 23 investment properties with a fair value of
£4.594m. All these properties are within the boundaries of SLDC. After expenses
the council earned £0.406m in income, creating a return on investment of 8.85%
overall down from 9.3% in 2017/18.

8

Page 82

2018-2019 Annual Treasury Management
Report
5.

The Economy and Interest Rates

5.1.

The Bank of England Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) raised the bank rate to
0.75% in August 2018. Further rates have not been forthcoming and are unlikely
until uncertainties over Brexit clear.

5.2.

CPI inflation has been on a falling trend since peaking at 3.1% in November 2017
and finished at 1.9% in March 2019. The latest inflation report forecasts inflation to
be remain marginally over the MPC’s Target of 2%. While at the same time wage
inflation peaked at a new post financial crisis high of 3.5% (excluding bonuses) in
the three months to December.

5.3.

The rise in wage inflation and the fall in CPI inflation is good news for consumers
as their spending power sees a real terms increase of circa 1.6%.

5.4.

Annual Growth for 2018 came in at 1.4% year on year confirming that the UK was
the third fastest growing county in the G7.

5.5.

Looking forward, there is significant uncertainty as the UK continues to decide on
the exit agreement with the EU, to the new deadline of 31st October 2019.

5.6.

Elsewhere the US economy grew by 2.9% in 2018, while growth in the EU fell to
1.8% in 2018 from 2.3% in 2017 and is expected to fall further in 2019.

6.

Conclusions

6.1.

The Council has operated in line with its Treasury and Prudential Indicators and
overall investments have performance well earning the council an extra £47k in
income. Uncertainty continues over the UK economy and base rates into 2019/20.

6.2.

The capital programme out-turn has led to no new borrowing being required as
cash reserves have been used to fund capital. The borrowing position will
continue to be kept under review.

9

Page 83

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 84

Item No.12
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 12 July 2019
Cabinet – 17 July 2019
Council – 23 July 2019

Medium Term Financial Plan 2020/21 to 2024/25
Portfolio:

Andrew Jarvis, Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)

Report Author:

Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards)

Forward Plan:

Budget and Policy Framework Decision included in the Forward Plan
as published on 18 June 2019

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report presents the draft Medium Term Financial Plan, incorporating the
Financial Strategy and the Budget Strategy (referred to collectively as the MTFP).
Overview and Scrutiny Committee and Cabinet are being asked to consider the Plan
prior to Council being asked to approve it at their 23 July meeting. The Plan ensures
the Council has a sound basis for allocating resources and effective financial
management over the medium term.

1.2

Due to uncertainty with the timing of Government decisions around Spending Review
2019 and the proposed new local government funding system the funding from April
2020 is very uncertain. The overall position will be constantly reviewed and reported
over the rest of 2019 and early 2020 as part of the budget process and update
reports.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee:(1)
Consider the Draft Medium Term Financial Plan; and
(2)
Agree comments to be taken forward for consideration at the Cabinet
meeting on 17 July 2019;

2.2

It is recommended that the Cabinet:(1)
Consider comments from Overview and Scrutiny Committee;
(2)
Consider the Draft Medium Term Financial Plan;
(3)
Delegates to the Chief Executive and Finance Lead Specialist (Section
151 Officer) in consultation with the Leader and Finance and Resources
Portfolio Holder, to decide on membership of any Cumbria Business
Rate pool; and
(4) Agree comments to be taken forward for consideration and approval at
the Council meeting on 23 July 2019.

Page 85

2.3

Council is requested to consider any comments raised and to approve the
Medium Term Financial Plan.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Council has produced a MTFP for several years. The financial projections were
last reported to Council in February 2019. The Government has planned to change
the funding model for local authorities from April 2020. The timing, and the amount
of funding to be distributed, is still to be confirmed and is expected to be announced
following the Spending Review 2019. The Spending Review is due to be prepared
over the summer but may be delayed with a change in Prime Minister. The
assumptions used within the financial model will be closely monitored and updates
provided during the 2020/21 budget setting process.

3.2

The Draft MTFP is attached at Appendix 1 (the document includes 8 supporting
documents). The annual revenue budget deficit projections before Customer
Connect savings total c £2.3m for 2020/21 rising to £4.2m by 2023/24 based on a
number of assumptions as detailed in the draft. The Customer Connect programme
will generate £1.55m of recurring annual savings reducing the expected deficit in
2023/24 to £2.7m. The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt
repayment relating to items in the capital programme. The budgets have not been
updated for income identified in the relevant business plans/budget bids to offset the
costs. This further reduces the projected deficit for 2023/24 to £2.0m. Savings plans
in addition to the Customer Connect Programme are being developed to provide a
balanced position.

3.3

Overall the Council is in a positive financial position compared to most local
authorities with adequate General Fund balances and reserves, robust financial
management practices and an excellent track record in achieving efficiency savings.
The overall position will be constantly reviewed and reported over the rest of 2019
and early 2020 as part of the budget process and update reports.

3.4

The MTFP, once approved, will form the basis of the budgets to be prepared during
the remainder of 2019/20 for approval in February 2020. However, the MTFP and
the budget strategy provide only the broad framework. Individual decisions,
particularly the level of Council Tax, will be approved during the budget process, and
no later than the end of February 2020, based on the latest projections available.

3.5

The Council is currently part of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool. This enables the
Council to retain additional business rate income for fund economic development.
Each year the members of the Pool have to consider the risks and rewards and
consider whether the pool should continue. It is not yet clear how, or if, pools will
continue beyond April 2020. Any applications have required a rapid response from
all authorities about whether to join or remain in a pool. The decision to join a pool
was delegated in both 2017 and 2018 and it is requested that the same delegations
continue for the current year.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Various modes of consultation are being undertaken including consideration of this
Plan by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Corporate Management Team,
Leadership Team, and Members prior to the request for approval at the 23 July 2019
Council meeting.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The assumptions forming the MTFP could be amended. This is not recommended,
as the proposals are regarded as the most appropriate option when considered
against the need to secure financial resilience and deliver the Council Plan priorities.

Page 86

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The MTFP indicates the resources available to fund the Council Plan and how these
resources will be allocated.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

As detailed in the report.

Human Resources
This report has no direct impact on the staffing of the Council.

7.2
Legal
7.3

The report recommendations enable the legal requirement to set a balanced budget
by the end of February to be complied with.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

The Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Assessment is carried out as part
of the future years Budget Report that will follow this strategic direction.

Equality and Diversity
7.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.7

An Equality Impact Analysis is carried out as part of the future years Budget
Report that will follow this strategic direction.

7.8

There are no additional Equality or Diversity impacts as a result of the report.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

The Council does not have
adequate arrangements for the
identification and addressing of
financial risks

Potentially expenditure
could exceed resources
available

A full analysis of the key
risks are detailed within
the MTFP.
Robust short, medium and
long term planning.

Contact Officers
Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer), 01539 793217,
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Draft Medium Term Financial Plan

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

2019/20 Budget Report

https://tinyurl.com/yy5n5v7h

Page 87

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
26/06/19
N/A
26/6/19
14/6/19

Circulated to
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
23/6/19
N/A
13/7/19
17/7/19
23/7/19

Page 88

Appendix 1

South Lakeland District Council
Medium Term Financial Plan
Including Financial Strategy and Budget Strategy 2019/20 to 2024/25
Contents
South Lakeland District Council Medium Term Financial Plan .............................................. 1
Executive Summary .............................................................................................................. 2
1. Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 3
Financial Planning Horizons and Financial Planning ...................................................... 3
2. Financial stability............................................................................................................. 4
3. Financial strategy ............................................................................................................ 5
4. Vision for South Lakeland and local context ................................................................... 6
5. MTFP Revenue ............................................................................................................... 9
Financial context ............................................................................................................. 9
Economic Outlook ........................................................................................................... 9
Key issues and assumptions ........................................................................................ 11
6. Sensitivity analysis and scenario planning .................................................................... 21
7. Reserves ....................................................................................................................... 23
8. Capital ........................................................................................................................... 24
9. Consultation strategy, approval and communication process ....................................... 27
10. Equality Impact Assessments (EIA) .............................................................................. 28
11. Conclusion and way forward ......................................................................................... 28

www.southlakeland.gov.uk
Page 89

Executive Summary
a) The purpose of the Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is to enable South
Lakeland District Council to ensure the effective planning and allocation of resources
to enable the Council to meet the objectives it has set out in its Council Plan. This
has been prepared at a time of considerable uncertainty with regard to the economy
(including Brexit) and the Government’s approach to public sector funding. The
MTFP will be considered by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the 12 July, by
Cabinet on the 17 July before approval at Council on the 23 July 2019. Update
reports will be provided as part of the 2020/21 budget process.
b) The financial position over the medium term shows an annual revenue budget deficit
of £0.6m for 2020/21 rising to £2.0m by 2023/24. This is dependent upon the prompt
and full delivery of the Customer Connect programme and all other savings approved
and anticipated in the 2019/20 Budget; and that the underlying assumptions around
income and expenditure changes are robust. Work to implement these savings and
ensure a balanced budget for 2020/21, and to ensure an improved position for
2021/22 onwards will continue.
c) The Council generates £10m of income through fees and charges annually with a
further £9m from Council Tax. However the Council is still dependent on monies
from the Government (expected to reduce from £5m to £1.3m during the period
covered by this plan). The Government planned changes to local authority funding
from April 2020; with the delay in the Government Spending Review due to Brexit
there is now great uncertainty about whether these changes will still be implemented.
The impact of the proposals and the timing increases uncertainty.
d) Capital Funding – a major review of assets was carried out in 2018/19. This
identified significant capital expenditure above the existing capital programme if
current service provision is to be maintained using existing assets. Not all of these
expenditure plans will be accepted and taken forward once assessed for suitability
and affordability. There has been an increase in funding capital expenditure from
borrowing as other capital resources are exhausted. The current approved capital
programme includes two large, externally funded schemes where the Council is the
accountable body.
e) Reserves - the Council’s reserves are projected to total £12m by the end of 2019/20,
of which £5m are earmarked. The risk assessment proposes that the Council should
also maintain general reserves of circa £6m.
f) Overall the Council’s financial position remains relatively strong as shown by the
adequate General Fund balances and reserves, robust financial management
processes and an excellent track record in achieving efficiency savings. Challenging
times are ahead however to identify and decide upon options that will provide the
solution to the remaining revenue deficits.
Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist, SLDC, June 2019
2

Page 90

1. Introduction
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) is a rolling 5-year plan that takes
into account:


The Council’s priorities and stated aims in the Council Plan



The major service strategies and plans



The external financial environment



The overall financial demands of services



The Council’s existing and projected financial resources


The MTFP was last approved in July 2018 and set the context for the 2019/20 budget
setting process.
In common with all the public sector, the medium term outlook for the Council is
extremely challenging and in order to protect and improve services an ambitious and
ongoing programme of savings and focus on income generation are key to success.
The Council has a good track record for reacting promptly to changes in the financial
situation and delivering a longer term approach to savings.

Financial Planning Horizons and Financial Planning
Different techniques are used when considering the short, medium and long-term
financial planning horizons since each makes a distinctive contribution to the financial
health of an organisation:


Long-term planning horizon is focused on enabling the transformation of the
organisation with an emphasis on being strategic and customer-led, future
orientated, proactive in managing change and risk, outcome focused and
receptive to new ideas. This is seen in the Financial Strategy and the Capital
Strategy revised annually as part of the budget process;



Medium-term planning horizon is focused on supporting performance with an
emphasis on responsiveness to customers, efficiency and effectiveness, and
with a commitment to improving performance. This is seen in the Medium
Term Financial Plan;



Short-term planning horizon is focused on securing stewardship with an
emphasis on control, probity, meeting regularity
3

Page 91

requirements and accountability. This is seen in the annual budget process
which reflects the detail from the Medium Term Financial Plan for the following
year to set the Council tax.
The Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan consists of a revenue and capital
investment programme over a five year period with a longer-term capital projection
over a 20-year period. The programme is revised annually to roll forward so as to
incorporate a new year, as well as to review and revise the old financial years. The
Council constantly reviews the form and content of its MTFP to ensure it meets good
practice.
The future impact of all issues have been considered as part of the 2019/20 budget
setting process, including those which were already known about which may not
impinge on our budgets until after the first year (2019/20). Appendix 1 includes the
key stages involved in producing the budget for 2020/21.

2. Financial stability
An essential requirement of any successful organisation is financial stability that
requires strong corporate governance supported by effective procedures, processes
and controls with Council-wide involvement in supporting an integrated approach to
the preparation of soundly based capital and revenue bids for resources. The MTFP is
based on sound financial assumptions that are based on robust assessments. The
‘robustness’ of the MTFP is highlighted in the Appendices to this strategy which show
the key elements of the Council’s financial management framework. The risks log at
Appendix 7 summaries the key financial risks facing the Council and the steps to be
taken to mitigate these risks.
The medium-term financial planning process has been in place for a number of years
and is an established part of the budget setting process. It provides a forecast of the
cost of continuing to provide existing levels of service and the resources, both capital
and revenue, that are likely to be available to the Council over the period. It identifies
any shortfalls and sets out how this will be managed. This document is reviewed
regularly during the year, regular review and update is essential to ensure the MTFP
takes full account of any changes in the Council’s aspirations, strategic and service
delivery priorities, changes in Government legislation, financial regulation and funding
streams.

Customer Connect
During 2019/20 the Council is implementing Customer Connect to create a single view
of the customer to put them at the heart of everything we do and enable them to have
better access to services at times which are more convenient to
4

Page 92

them. This involves the complete re-focus of services and staff to prioritise locality
and case-management working supported by specialists and support services. Phase
1 was implemented in May 2019 with phase 2 in progress and due to be implemented
by the end of December 2019.
The programme will deliver savings of £740k in 2019/20 and then on-going revenue
savings, initially of £1.55m per year. There are also likely to be indirect savings as a
result of new ways of working which have not yet been identified. The programme
includes the preparation and implementation of a commissioning framework to review
the need for services and to review how services should be provided, including decommissioning of services where necessary.

3. Financial strategy
The Council’s financial strategy is:
a

Balanced budgets: Maintain a balanced budget position, and to set a medium
term financial plan maintaining and strengthening that position

b

Five year budgets: the Council sets budgets for a five year period.

c

Strong financial management: The Council controls and monitors the actual
position of the authority on a regular basis setting out actions to correct any
emerging issues.

d

Understanding of key cost-drivers: The Council analyses and reviews the
key elements of the service areas including the use of benchmarking.

e

Asset maintenance: the Capital Programme should ensure adequate
programmes of maintenance to sustain values of key assets, especially
income-generating assets.

f

Legal transactions: the approval and adoption of the Council’s Constitution,
particularly the Budget and Policy Framework, Financial Procedure Rules and
the Contract Procedure Rules set foundations for ensuring legal transactions
alongside the whole system of internal control reviewed annually in the Annual
Governance Statement.

g

Affordable investment; to undertake a prudent level of capital investment to
meet the Council’s strategic priorities and remain within prudential borrowing
limits.

h

Maximise resource base; the Council will ensure the best use of physical and
other assets including staff time.
5

Page 93

i

Value for money; Continuous review of budgets to ensure resources are
targeted on key objectives and deliver value for money to local taxpayers.

j

Working with others: to ensure all services are delivered by the most
appropriate body. This may require the Council to work in partnership or to
facilitate provision by other bodies.

k

Minimise financial risk including holding reserves as appropriate and
sustainable levels of debt.

l

Optimise Income through ensuring that charges are set at an appropriate
level and income is collected effectively. Charging is an important and
appropriate way of financing services and provides an alternative to council tax
in paying for the Council’s services.

3.2. The Council has a duty to ensure value for money in everything it undertakes. Value
for Money (VFM) is an assessment of whether or not we obtain the maximum benefit
from the goods and services we both acquire and provide, within the resources
available to achieve it. This assessment includes considerations about suitability,
quality, whole life costs and the relationship between economy, efficiency and
effectiveness and is summarised as:
“In all significant respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and
deploys resources to achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and
local people.”
3.3. Value for money remains an integral part of the external audit opinion. The latest
general feedback within the audit of the 2017/18 accounts and incorporating the MTFP
approved in July 2018 was that the Council had consolidated previous improvements
and demonstrates good value for money across our services.
3.4. The Council’s Value for Money Strategy was last approved in July 2014 as part of the
MTFP process and provides a framework on how the Council aims to maximise its
resources. During 2019/20 it is expected that the Value for Money Strategy will be
replaced by elements of the Commissioning Framework and the Commercial Strategy.
The rest of this paper uses these principles to construct the Medium Term Financial
Plan for 2019/20 – 2023/24.

4. Vision for South Lakeland and local context
The MTFP aims to support the Council’s overall vision for the District: “Working
together to make South Lakeland the best place to live, work and explore”.
6

Page 94

The Council Plan sets out the strategic approach to how the Council will shape
delivery of the outcomes. The priorities will be delivered by ensuring we are equipped
to provide the best, most cost effective services. To achieve this we will:
create an environment for people to thrive
deliver excellent, value for money, services
play a leadership role and influence others
empower customers and communities
be a forward thinking, innovative, council.
The Council Plan set out the challenges and opportunities that the district faced in
the short, medium and long term:

South Lakeland’s demography;



financial resilience;



affordable housing;



sustainability;



rise in obesity levels and inactivity;



access to better training and development; and



education and skills.

Our Council Plan is influenced by our key three values:
empowering people: By listening to our customers and our employees,
their ideas and comments will help us make improvements to customer
service and workforce development
excellence: Seeking continuous improvement in what we do, ensuring that
our actions address the needs of South Lakeland
open and transparent: Being courteous, efficient and transparent in our
dealings with the public
We will achieve our aims by:
working across boundaries, with a range of other local authorities,
organisations and businesses
creating balanced communities, where there is a good mix of housing
types, including social housing and a good mix of residents to reduce
division between different types of people
7

Page 95

reducing inequalities, so no one is left behind or seriously disadvantaged
encouraging a sustainable environment.
Our three key priorities are:


Housing and Communities



Economy and Culture



Health and Environment

The Council has a long term ambition for “1000 jobs and 1000 affordable homes for
rent” by 2025 .
As well as the Customer Connect programme, a number of major strategic reviews are
currently underway including:


Implementation of housing alternative funding model;



the implementation of the Local Plan Development Management Framework;



the Leisure Facilities Strategy and future of Ulverston Leisure Centre;



the implementation of the Environment Agency’s Kendal Flood Relief Scheme,
a major programme which will require the engagement of the Council as owner
of land, local planning authority and as accountable body for elements of
external capital funding which may be applied in the Scheme;



the Economic Development Strategy for South Lakeland, and the wider
Morecambe Bay functioning economic, housing, health and travel to work
area;



preparation and implementation of a Commissioning Framework and an
updated Procurement Strategy;



preparation and implementation of a Commercial Strategy;



contributing to the delivery of the Cumbria Public Health Strategy;



implementation of the Council Policy on Climate Change.

These may require changes in current spending and funding plans.
The Council is committed to working with partners and other key stakeholders to
deliver services within South Lakeland. This includes


formal arrangements, such as Cumbria Local Economic Partnership (LEP),
Cumbria Business Rate Pool;

8

Page 96



the creation of the Lancaster and South Cumbria Economic Region (LSCER)
will see the Council, Barrow Borough Council and Lancaster City Council
working together more closely to promote potential for investment and growth
in the area;



formal contractual arrangements as a result of competitive tendering;



transfer of assets or management of assets between organisations;



sharing of premises;



informal collaborations.

Some shared arrangements exist for providing services within the organisation:
currently South Lakeland shares IT with Eden District Council and are jointly
implementing the digital element of the Customer Connect programme.

5. MTFP Revenue
Financial context
The Budget Reports for 2019/20 included updates of the financial model and
concluded that the Council’s future financial outlook was likely to continue to be
challenging over the next few years as reductions in overall public spending and
changes in local government funding. Meeting new cost pressures requires a rigorous
approach to identifying efficiencies, enhanced productivity, and reprioritisation of
spending within services.

Economic Outlook
Economic growth in the UK and globally has slowed since the Budget in October,
leading the Office for Budget Responsibility to revise down their growth forecast. With
considerable uncertainty over the next steps in the Brexit process (the latest OBR
projections are based on the assumption that the UK made an orderly departure from
the EU on 29 March into a transition period that lasts to the end of 2020, which clearly
has not happened), GDP growth for 2019 is projected at 1.2% with a medium-term
forecast of around 1.5% pa.
The Government’s stated ‘fiscal objective’ is to balance the budget by 2025-26. But in
the years beyond the forecast the ageing population is likely to be putting increasing
upward pressure on spending and the potential impact of different Brexit outcomes
makes the medium-term outlook more than usually uncertain. The Government
conducts Spending Reviews on a regular basis to re-balance spending priorities. The
9

Page 97

next Spending Review was expected summer 2019: this is now delayed until after
Brexit.
Inflation measured using the Consumer Price Index (CPI) has remained above the
Bank of England target of 2% over the last few year with the latest rate for April 2019
CPI at 2.1%. The forecasts for future years reduces this to 2% by mid-2021.

The Bank of England base rate has returned to 0.5% from the historical low level of
0.25%. This low level has had a major impact on the Council’s investment income.
The base rate of interest is predicted to decrease slightly during the next 6 months
with further increases in early 2020. The predictions are particularly volatile due to
uncertainty regarding the timing of Brexit.
Interest rates have been predicted to increase beyond 0.5% in 18 months for the last
eight years and have not. The financial model prudently assumes base rate remains at
0.5% for the duration of the model.
Tourism had a £1.3 billion economic impact on South Lakeland last year, up 5.6% on
2017 according to STEAM (Scarborough Tourism Economic Activity Monitor). This is
by far the highest share of any of Cumbria’s districts, with the district’s £1.3 billion
representing 44% of the county’s total tourism revenue of £3
10

Page 98

billion. The tourism sector is estimated to support 16,177 full-time jobs in South
Lakeland, which is almost half of all the tourism–related jobs in Cumbria. In 2018,
18.54 million visitors came to the district, up nearly 200,000 on the previous year.
Overall in Cumbria there were 47 million visitors in 2018.

Key issues and assumptions
Inflation
The MTFP financial model assumes pay inflation of 2% for 2020/21 and onwards. The
financial impact of a 1% movement in pay inflation is around £170k change in the
general fund employee budget. The employee budget is reduced by 4% (£550k) for
vacancies and turnover: this reduction is monitored regularly. The Council follows
national pay awards and the national local government pay spine. A new pay spine
was agreed as part of the 2018/20 pay agreement which reflects the Government’s
National Living Wage.
In the MTFP financial model inflation on contract prices has been uplifted by
appropriate indices as stated in the conditions of the contracts. No inflationary
increase has been applied to the general services budget, except specific items such
as utilities where inflation is unavoidable. We will continue to monitor the impact of this
policy, including the impact at contract renewal. The financial impact on running costs
of a 1% movement in inflation is around £310k.

Business Rates and Government Grant
The Government introduced fundamental changes to the way local government is
financed from April 2013. In particular, non-domestic rates (also known as business
rates) are no longer pooled and redistributed in full nationally; instead local authorities
retain a proportion of business rates locally.
A number of changes were planned by the Government from April 2020 which are
expected to have a significant impact on the business rate income retained: both the
amount to be retained and the Fairer Funding review to change how it is distributed.
However, it is looking increasingly likely that these changes will be delayed until the
Government has completed the next Spending Review: it is now expected to be
delayed until after Brexit. As a result the level of income from business rates is
particularly difficult to predict from April 2020.
The financial model assumes the annual reduction in funding from business rates,
Revenue Support Grant and Rural Services Delivery Grant that has been seen since
April 2013 will continue from April 2020 onwards. Nationally it was expected that the
cash amount of funding for local authorities remains static from April 2020, although
11

Page 99

this is dependent on the outcome of the delayed 2019 Spending Review.
The Fair Funding Review, also currently due to be introduced from April 2020, is
expected to prioritise social care and other services provided by other authorities in 2tier areas over services provided by district councils. There is also a baseline reset
due in April 2020 which will redistribute growth in business rates from the areas where
the growth has occurred to areas of greater need. Again, it is generally considered
that this is unlikely to benefit district councils.
The Council has been a member of the Cumbria Business Rate Pool since it was
established in 2014. From April 2018 the pool has admitted Copeland Borough
Council so now includes all six Cumbrian district councils and Cumbria County
Council. This has increased the expected volatility of income from the pool as
Copeland district includes Sellafield which has a high rateable value and has had
large reductions in rateable value in the past. The Cumbrian Pool retained £6.2m of
levy in 2018/19 that would otherwise have been paid to the Government, of which
South Lakeland received £884k, which is earmarked for economic development
through the Pool income reserve. If the reset were to go ahead then all this income
from the pool would be foregone along with lost growth of roughly equal value.
The Cumbrian bid for a business rate pilot pool was unsuccessful for 2018/19 and
2019/20. It was expected that business rate pooling would cease when the new rate
retention system is introduced. If the new system is delayed it is likely that the
Cumbrian pool will continue in its current form. This has not been reflected in the
financial model.
Since 2013 the Government has been reducing the proportion of funding to Councils
paid as Revenue Support Grant so Councils become more reliant on business rate
income. Under the old system the Council received £3.0m of grant in 2013/14 but this
dropped to £0.25 for 2017/18. The Council will received no Revenue Support Grant
for 2018/19 or 2019/20. The expected reduction of funding of £613k for 2019/20
through an increase in tariff from business rates was not implemented. If the
implementation of business rate reforms are delayed it is likely that similar
arrangements will continue for 2020/21.
The final settlement for 2019/20 indicated that the Council will receive £451k of Rural
Services Delivery Grant in 2019/20 but from April 2020 this will also be absorbed into
the Fair Funding Review and business rate reset. Rural Services Delivery Grant and
Transition Grant were introduced for a limited period by the Government to reduce the
impact when the funding formula was frozen in 2013 without increasing funding for the
additional costs of providing services in areas of high population sparsity.
As a result of the Government’s cuts to Council income and changes in funding from
grant to rate retention the Council’s income from these sources
12

Page 100

has reduced. This reduction is expected to continue for district councils due to the
notable pressure to increase funding for social care while total local government
funding beyond the current 4-year finance settlement is expected to be unchanged
from the 2019/20 level. The table and chart below show Government support since
2012/13 and the projected income until 2024. There is an opportunity for politicians
from rural areas to lobby for increased funding through SPARSE and similar
organisations.
Table 4

Funding from Government since 2012/13
Rural
Business Revenue Delivery and
Total
Rates
Support
Transition
Formula
Year
Retained*
Grant
Grant
Grant
£000
£000
£000
£000
2012/13 (actual)
0
4,786
0
4,786
2013/14 (actual)
2,206
3,095
0
5,301
2014/15 (actual)
2,709
2,472
0
5,181
2015/16 (actual)
2,769
1,813
0
4,582
2016/17 (actual)
3,167
934
547
4,648
2017/18 (actual)
3,226
249
463
3,938
2018/19 (actual)
4,071
0
467
4,538
2019/20 (budgeted)
3,536
0
451
3,987
2020/21 (estimate)
2,756
0
0
2,756
2021/22 (estimate)
2,240
0
0
2,240
2022/23 (estimate)
1,724
0
0
1,724
2023/24 (estimate)
1,328
0
0
1,328
* excludes income from Cumbria business rate pool

New Homes Bonus Scheme
The New Homes Bonus (NHB) Scheme was introduced in 2011/12 as a way to
encourage local authorities to facilitate housing growth. In essence, for every net
additional property built or brought back into use, the Government match funds the
additional Council tax, with an additional amount for affordable homes, for the
following four years above a threshold of 0.4% growth in taxbase (equivalent to 210
homes for this Council). The grant is top sliced from Revenue Support Grant and paid
as a un-ring fenced revenue grant and it is split 80% to district councils and 20% to the
relevant county council.
New Homes
Bonus
Grant

2017/18
£000
1,130

2018/19
£000
875

2019/20
£000
517

The Government has indicated the NHB is not delivering the policy objective of
increasing new houses. Therefore it has been expected that NHB
13

Page 101

would cease from April 2020 as part of the review of local government funding. With
the implementation of that review now looking unlikely for April 2020 it is more likely
that NHB will be received for 2020/21 – this has not yet been reflected in the financial
projections which still assume new payments cease from April 2020. Based on recent
years, the Council would potentially receive £338k for 2020/21 if the scheme
continued.
The Council resolved to earmark the monies from the NHB into an earmarked reserve
to be split 60:40 between support for affordable housing and Locally Important
Projects (LIPs), including community led planning. The locally important projects
element includes use of NHB to fund a budget of £51,000, allowing £1,000 for each
member for community projects identified by each member in their wards. Any
unspent grant at the end of the year returns to the main LIPs budget.

Council Tax
The Council is committed to do all it can to reduce the financial burdens placed upon
its residents and the Council was able to freeze its average band D Council tax for the
five consecutive years from 2010/11 to 2015/16. Since 2016/17 there is now an
expectation from Government that annual increases in Council tax will form an integral
part of the resources supporting local authorities. There is also an assumption, built
into the Government’s calculation of Spending Power, that Council’s will increase
Council tax by the maximum permissible amount.
The Localism Act gives local communities the power to approve or veto excessive
Council tax rises. The Secretary of State will determine a limit for Council tax; if an
authority proposes to raise taxes above this limit they will have to hold a referendum to
approve or to veto the rise. From 2016/17 until 2017/18 this level was the higher of 2%
or £5. As part of the 2018/19 Local Government Finance Settlement this increased to
the higher of below 3% or £5 in February 2018.
The MTFP assumes the Council’s average band D Council tax will increase by £5 per
annum (from £195.63 at 1 April 2019) but the maximum permissible would be 2.99%
or £5.86. The Council has limited income generated from Council tax; for every £1
increase in the average Band D Council tax there is only an additional £45k of income:
If the Council were to increase by the maximum permitted an additional £32k could
have been generated for 2019/20.
Due to the uncertainty surrounding the level of future business rate income due to
system changes and the unpredictability of external income then Council tax is the
most stable of income sources for the Council. Therefore any decision to change
levels of Council tax must have regard to the medium and long-term implications on
the Council’s financial stability.
14

Page 102

The decision on Council tax is reviewed every year as part of the budget and Council
tax setting process. The Council has a history of retaining lower levels of Council tax
increases.

Council tax on Empty Homes
The Government has introduced new flexibilities for Councils to increase Council Tax
on empty homes beyond the 50% premium introduced in April 2013. Allerdale, and
Copeland district councils have increased empty home charges from April 2019 while
Carlisle, Eden, Barrow and South Lakeland have not changed. This is unlikely to
generate more than £25k annually for the Council as only 10% of Council Tax
collected in the district is currently retained by SLDC with 74% paid to the county
council and 14% to the Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner. The Council will
review the charges on empty homes during 2019/20.

Taxbase for Council Tax Setting
The Councils’ Council tax Base is determined annually as part of the budget process.
The financial model assumes the taxbase will increase by around 250 properties each
year. Although the total number of properties completed is expected to exceed this
level (c320 properties) it is necessary to reflect the reductions due to some of those
properties becoming holiday lets, or eligible for single person discount of 25%, or
eligible for Council tax reduction scheme discounts. It is assumed there will be no
changes in the levels of discounts granted (levels of discounts are being closely
monitored to see if this assumption is reasonable). 250 new properties will generate
around £49k pa of additional Council tax.

Council Tax Reduction Scheme
The Government localised support for Council tax from April 2013 so the Council has
the discretion to decide who should pay less Council tax and how much less they
should pay.
Councils are required to review their schemes on a regular basis: in December 2017
Council resolved not to change the existing scheme except to apply the annual
upratings aligned to other means tested benefit schemes. This means the Council’s
scheme has not reflected the changes announced by the Government including
removal of family premium for new claims, limiting the number of dependents additions
and reduction of backdating period from six months to one month. The MTFP
assumes no change to the existing scheme.

15

Page 103

Universal Credit
Universal Credit was to be introduced between 2013 and 2017 through the Welfare
Reform Act. Universal Credit is an integrated working-age credit that will provide a
basic allowance with additional elements for children, disability, housing and caring. It
will support people both in and out of work. For local authorities, this means the link
between Housing Benefit and Council tax discounts will be broken and that universal
credit will be administered by the Department of Work and Pensions. As Universal
Credit currently only applies to new working age claim it is assumed the Council will
continue to administer housing benefit for the duration of the MTFP.

External Income
The Council relies on a number of external income sources and over the last few
years the economic downturn affected our income streams, in particular in service
areas linked to building and housing e.g. land charges and building control income. A
number of significant fees, including liquor licences and planning application fees are
set by Government. The Government increased planning fees during 2018 but with
conditions attached on the use of the additional income to be applied to the
improvement of the planning service. The Local Government Association has
campaigned for local freedom for authorities to set fees based on local circumstances.
Income from fees and charges are a key element of financial sustainability for the
Council. Income from car park charges exceed all other income sources except
Council tax. Overall the fees for pay and display and pay on exit parking have not
increased since 2011/12 and offers have been introduced. Income, however, has
grown since then due to improvements at the various sites, enforcement and small
changes at individual sites where usage was previously low. Individual decisions on
tariffs and discounts should be based on experience at each site, including the
implications for traffic management, usage, economic development and revenue. Inyear decisions should be approved in line with the Corporate Charging Policy and the
Financial Procedure Rules. Future income flows from car parking may change as the
balance between tourism and retail is expected to change in the future.
Any proposals to reduce income streams are treated as growth bids. All fees and
charges are set in accordance with the Council’s Policy on Fees and Charges, last
approved in July 2017. It is intended that a new Commercial Strategy will be prepared
and approved during 2019/20 – no adjustments have been made to the financial
projections for changes that may arise from this new strategy.
The Council has a good history of debt collection. The Council continues to build on
this to maximise income received and minimise income written off. Monitoring
information which is produced monthly has been enhanced to provide information on
16

Page 104

evaluating the effectiveness of debt recovery actions, associated costs, and the cost of
not recovering debt promptly.
The financial model assumes income from external charges in general increases by
2% annually with the exception of recycling credits (assume frozen) and includes
reviewing individual charges to ensure the balance of income generation is
appropriate.

External Interest and Investment
Historically a key income stream for the Council has been the income generated from
investment of cash balances. Every 1% of movement in interest rates is equivalent to
approximately £300k in income; however the actual interest earned will also be
affected by the level of cash balances available.
The financial model assumes interest rates remain constant at 0.5% for the period of
the model. While commentators predict an increase during 2019/20, experience
suggests the predicted increase will be later than expected. This assumption will be
revisited if the base rate changes. If interest rates increase on investments then there
will be an off-setting increase on any new borrowing.
Nationally revenue resources have declined, which has increased pressure to
maximise returns on investments. The Council is required to follow Government
regulations which require investments to be rated based on security, liquidity and
return, in that order of importance. The Council’s income from investments is
controlled by its Treasury Management Strategy and Investment Strategy, part of the
Prudential Code for Local Authorities which sets out how Councils can borrow and
invest.
The Council has largely used capital receipts and reserves to fund capital expenditure
with borrowing only used to fund the vehicle and plant programme. This borrowing
has been met internally through cash balances. The current capital programme
includes the use of borrowing to fund the replacement of Ulverston Leisure Centre and
the refurbishment of South Lakeland House and Kendal Town Hall. It is unlikely the
Council will be able to fund this borrowing internally so will be reviewing the best time
to borrow externally. The Council’s revenue budgets assume no borrowing during the
current financial year but that any borrowing is undertaken on 1 April of the following
financial year. Officers will consult the Council’s Treasury Management advisors to
determine the optimal time to borrow, which may identify an opportunity to achieve
lower interest payments in the future if borrowing is undertaken during 2019/20.

Pensions
South Lakeland District Council employees are eligible to be
members of the Local Government Pension scheme, of which the
17

Page 105

Government sets the terms and conditions nationally. This is a statutory condition of
employment available to all local government employees.
The most recently published actuarial valuations (2016) for the whole fund show that
the South Lakeland Council element of the fund continues to be in deficit. A valuation
is currently in progress with new contributions rates to be applied from 1 April 2020: it
is expected that future valuations are every four years rather than every three years.
Pension contributions are based on a number of assumptions. The Government has
consulted on implementing a cap of exit payments which may limit the costs of early
departures of staff. There are also outstanding court cases on transition
arrangements when the current scheme rules were introduced: depending on the
outcome of these cases the Council’s annual contributions could increase by up to
0.5%.
The Council pays employer contributions based on a set percentage contribution for
future service accrual and a fixed monetary contribution each year for past service
liability instead of a set percentage contribution covering both. This should avoid the
reduction in recovery of past service liability as staffing levels decline following
reduction or transfer of services. The Council’s current employer costs are 16.2% of
salary.
The fixed contribution for past service liability for the 3 years from April 2017 to March
2020 was paid as a single lump-sum payment to the pension fund in April 2017. The
pension scheme can use a wider variety of investment to generate higher returns than
those available to SLDC. A similar prepayment was made in April 2014 which saved
the Council around £230k over the three year period. It is assumed similar
arrangements will continue and that there is no change in the overall costs of pensions
over the life of the financial model.

Service Demand and Other Budget Pressures
The Government expects local authorities to take a major part to revitalise the local
economy and at the same time bear a significant part of the Government’s overall
austerity measures from reduced funding. Nationally the greatest pressure on demand
for services is due to the aging population profile and is mainly affecting immediate
health and social care budgets. There has been little concentration on longer term
preventative measures such as housing, employment and leisure, many of these
services are provided by district councils in 2 tier areas. Councils have increased
requirements to prevent homelessness and have also seen an increase in the number
of cases. National changes to housing benefits have reduced the effectiveness of the
local social lettings scheme which reduced homelessness by working with local
landlords to provide accommodation through a guarantee on rental income.
18

Page 106

The Council seeks to increase household financial resilience to address incomes
lower than the national average in South Lakeland and increasing numbers of families
on the lowest wages. SLDC have a building financial resilience together collaborative
initiative with public, private and third sector partners. The Council aims to provide
long term strategies that will have a genuine effect on future poverty levels, such as
educational and skills attainment, housing affordability, access to work and healthy
lifestyles.
The 2019/20 – 2023/24 financial model assumes levels of demand will remain
constant. Increases in demand are addressed as a service budget pressure within the
annual budget setting process.
The Council will monitor trends in the economy, particularly the predicted change in
town centres from retail to other uses while the importance of tourism to the local
economy has increased. The impact of these changes on the Council’s service
delivery and balance between costs and income streams will be kept under review.

Customer Connect
The Council has recognised that transformational change will be required to deliver
the improvements to services within the significant reductions in resources available in
future years. The Customer Connect Programme has three elements: digital, people
and places. The programme should deliver a more efficient way of working for
everyone, faster and better services, value for money for taxpayers, more time to help
vulnerable residents, improved customer satisfaction and a highly-skilled modern
workforce.
It is estimated that the proposed investment of c£3.848m will deliver annual revenue
efficiencies of c£1.550m when the project is fully implemented. Phase 1 of the people
element was completed on 1 May 2019 with phase 2 now in progress and expected to
be completed this year. Recurring savings have already been generated to meet the
target for 2019/20.

The SLDC Efficiency/Savings Plan
The Council, as part of its annual Budget Process, reviews the savings delivered and
those still required to enable the following years’ Budgets to balance. The delivery of
the savings included in the February 2019 Budget is closely monitored. Substitute
savings are developed where initial plans are delayed or unlikely to be achieved.
Additional savings are developed where the deficit projections increase.
The financial impacts of the Customer Connect programme are included in the budget
projections. The balancing annual deficits as set out in the table at section 5.57 below
will be met through additional savings options currently being developed. These will be
19

Page 107

set out in updated budget reports provided between September 2019 and February
2020.
The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment relating to
items in the capital programme. The capital programme includes projects where the
relevant business plans/budget bids identified income to offset the costs. This income
has been included as an adjustment to the revenue budget but the timing of the
income is dependent on the delivery of the capital scheme.

2018/19 General Fund Budget
As part of the 2019/20 budget setting process, information was examined relating to
the level of existing resources in each service areas, including the number of staff
employed and comparisons have been drawn with historical expenditure data to
identify savings areas. All budget options have been considered in the context of
current service performance and priorities and all the growth bids went through a
challenge process. The details of the 2019/20 general fund revenue budget, including
growth and savings can be found in the 2019/20 Budget report submitted to Council in
February 2019.

The Projected Net Budget Position
The financial model (detailed in Appendix 2) shows deficits over the future 5 year
period of between £2.3m and £4.3m before savings from Customer Connect are
included. While costs over the five-years of the model are reducing overall there is a
big estimated reduction in income from business rates and Government grant due to
expected changes in the Government’s scheme for Council’s to retain business rate
income, as set out above.

Service Expenditure
Customer Connect
Service income
Net service expenditure
Corporate items
Savings from Customer Connect
Savings from Capital Projects and Strategy changes
Net draft budget (projected deficit) February 2019

2019/20
£000
33,274.2
2,031.0
12,640.5
22,664.7
21,924.7
-740.0
0.0
0.0

2020/21
£000
32,779.8
0.0
12,433.8
20,346.0
18,036.0
-1,550.0
-140.0
620.0

2021/22
£000
30,434.0
0.0
12,655.6
17,778.4
14,940.5
-1,550.0
-420.0
867.9

2022/23
£000
29,195.3
0.0
12,829.7
16,365.6
12,769.0
-1,550.0
-694.0
1,352.6

2023/24
£000
29,006.3
0.0
12,629.7
16,376.6
12,123.6
-1,550.0
-718.0
1,985.0

These projections are based on the achievement of all savings proposals approved to
date and that the underlying assumptions around income and expenditure changes
are robust. First draft projections to 2024/25 suggest the deficit will
20

Page 108

increase in line with trends over the last 4 years mainly as a result in the reduction in
Government grant. Further work will be carried out to test the underlying assumptions:
updates on the projected deficit for 2024/25 will be reported during the 2020/21 budget
setting process.
The Council is focused on achieving savings, primarily through efficiencies. During the
budget and planning process there is an emphasis on ensuring resources are directed
to priority areas in line with the Council Plan, with service efficiencies monitored and
reviewed highlighting where further savings can be made. The introduction of a
Commissioning Framework and a Commercial Strategy will help balance service
demand and income generation.
The Budget Strategy for 2020/21 must concentrate on closing the revenue deficits,
either through increases in income or reductions in expenditure. Where capital
expenditure is required or able to generate future revenue savings it should be
prioritised. Unless funding from earmarked resources, no revenue budget growth bids
(including reductions in income) should be accepted until all budget pressures are
funded and the 2020/21 budget deficit is met.

6. Sensitivity analysis and scenario planning
Risk Management is a key feature of the Council’s financial planning process. The
Council is very aware of the need for effective risk management and considers that the
assessment and minimisation of all types of risk to be vital. It has an adopted Risk
Management Strategy in place, and the financial risks to the Council are assessed in
the context of the Council’s overall approach to risk management.
To mitigate risk the Council regularly monitors its budgets. The corporate Risk
Management process is used by South Lakeland to identify, monitor and report on
risks. Quarterly performance monitoring reports provide a platform for the Members to
scrutinise the financial and non-financial performance (e.g. local and national
indicators).
Details of the risks facing the Council were discussed in section 5 and the table below
summarises the financial implications if assumptions made in the MTFP change in the
future (the details of which are included in section 5 also). This gives some indications
to the kind of risks which need to be allowed for in considering the level of reserves in
future years.

21

Page 109

Assumption: impact over 5-years
of a 1% change in 2019/20:
Inflation: pay award 1% higher
than assumed (2% currently
assumed)
Pension contribution: contribution
rate 1% higher than expected
(24% currently assumed)
Inflation on contracts: 1% higher
than expected (2% currently
assumed)
Average investment rate 1%
higher than assumed (although
this depends on timing as some
investments are at fixed rates).
Current assumption 0.5% base
rate
Retained business rate income:
overall rate collectable 1% lower
than assumed
Income from car parks: 1% lower
than assumed
Income from council tax: 1%
lower than assumed (current
assumption £59a band D
increase)

Total over
5-year
period
£000

2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

169.4

163.8

168.2

172.0

175.6

849.0

109.2

104.7

107.8

110.4

112.9

545.0

142.4

143.4

144.4

145.4

146.4

722.0

386.1

416.6

417.4

434.1

451.5

2,105.7

120.0

130.5

133.1

133.1

133.1

649.8

45.3

46.4

47.3

48.2

48.2

235.4

89.0

91.8

94.6

97.4

100.3

473.1

Some of the greatest risks are around the assumptions relating to income from
business rates from April 2020 when the current multi-year settlement ends. The
MTFP assumes the level of annual reductions in Government funding since 2013 will
continue from April 2020. There are also a number of variables that will have an
impact on income from business rates. Depending on the assumptions made, income
retained by the Council from 2020/21 could vary by around 30% or £900k pa.
All local authorities are required to ensure there are sufficient resources available to
meet the expenditure in the year: the Council receives a formal report from the Chief
Finance Officer (for SLDC the Finance Lead Specialist) as part of the budget setting
process. The Council continuously monitors factors that may push a local authority
into tipping into unstainable expenditure, including intelligence from other bodies
including Grant Thornton and the Local Government Association. Not all authorities
share the same level of resilience or risk. Providing the assumptions in this MTFP are
sound, the policies and recommendations are followed and the savings targets are
met the Council is not expected to fall into deficit.
22

Page 110

7. Reserves
The Council will retain its approved minimum Working Balance level of £1.5m,
reviewing this regularly in the light of changing financial risk assessment. Risks to the
Council’s financial position could derive potentially from budget overspend, loss of
investment income, contractual/legislative failure or challenge and emergency events.
Historically, the Council has a good record of outturn financial position being within
budget, therefore this is not seen as a high risk to the Council and it is not necessary
to make additional significant provision.
The Council also considers the impact of holding monies unnecessarily in reserves
given the ongoing impact of the economic downturn to local residents and taxpayers.
The then Department for Communities and Local Government was critical of councils
holding significant reserves in difficult economic times, encouraging them if at all
possible to release some of them. The External Auditor closely examines the Council’s
actual and projected reserves position each year as part of the Value for Money
assessment to ensure the amounts held are sufficient but not excessive. It should be
stressed that there is no theoretically “correct” level because the issues that affect an
authority’s need for reserves will vary over time.
The level of risk posed by contractual or legislative failure and emergency events is
difficult to predict, but it would be a low probability with a potentially high impact.
However, it is not appropriate to set aside large amounts of reserve against the
possibility of this happening. Appendix 3 assesses the main financial risks facing the
General Fund revenue accounts and the suggested appropriate level of reserve
required to offset this risk, were it to materialise.
In setting budgets and projections for individual years, it is important that the use of
reserves is sustainable and not increasing and creating an unsustainable future
problem. The fundamental principle within the Council’s Policy on Reserves and
Balance governing the use of reserves is that they should not be used to fund
recurring expenditure. If exceptional circumstances make this a necessity, the use of
the reserve should be clearly stated and approved as an exception to the rule.
Levels of reserves are expected to be circa £11.8m by 31/3/20 of which around £4.7m
are either earmarked by statute, legal agreement or the purpose for which a grant has
been given. A summary of the levels of reserves at the start and end of 2018/19 are
shown below. Use of reserve is only included in the projections when the associated
expenditure is included in the capital programme or revenue budgets. A copy of the
policy for reserves and balances can be found in Appendix 4 including details of the
projected balance on each reserve.

23

Page 111

General Reserves
Capital Reserves
Earmarked Reserves
Total Reserves
Working Balance
Total Reserves and Working
Balance

31/03/2019

31/03/2020

31/03/2021

31/03/2022

31/03/2023

31/03/2024

£000
(7,710)
(2,661)
(4,535)
(14,907)
(1,500)
(16,407)

£000
(4,726)
(861)
(4,744)
(10,331)
(1,500)
(11,831)

£000
(4,960)
52
(4,344)
(9,252)
(1,500)
(10,752)

£000
(5,160)
92
(4,294)
(9,362)
(1,500)
(10,862)

£000
(5,360)
(93)
(4,294)
(9,747)
(1,500)
(11,247)

£000
(5,560)
(278)
(4,294)
(10,132)
(1,500)
(11,632)

General Reserves include the Customer Connect Reserves which will be used during
2018/19 and 2019/20 to fund the Customer Connect programme.
The balances beyond March 2020 are less certain as expenditure from reserves and
working balances to meet unexpected demands obviously cannot be predicted, for
example it was expected that around £1m of reserves was required to reinstate flood
damaged property not covered by insurance or Government grant following the
December 2015 floods.

8. Capital
Capital spend and funding
The Council’s Capital Strategy sets out how the Council will manage its capital
investments in the future. It is agreed on an annual basis and serves the following
purposes:


It sets out how capital contributes to the achievement of the Council’s
corporate objectives.



It establishes the criteria for the allocation of capital resources.



It provides a framework for the administration of capital projects and monitoring
of outcomes

The Capital Strategy was approved by Council in February 2019.
Until recently the Council’s approach to asset management was set out in the
Corporate Asset Strategy. A thorough review of property assets was completed by the
Council’s external property services advisors in December 2017. This in turn led to the
development of a Property and Land Management Strategy (approved by Cabinet on
28 November 2018), which will help guide and advise the Council on land and building
investment, disposals and acquisitions. The key aims of this strategy are:
24

Page 112

Ensuring investment is prioritised in the right areas with the ever
increasing financial pressure on Local Authorities.
Ensuring the Council has a balanced estate looking at the medium
and long term commitments of the Council and in the wider context of
other assets in public ownership.
Ensuring that there is a sufficient governance structure in place to
allow the estate to flex with ease and consistency.
Ensuring that the decisions achieve a balance of requirements for
capital receipts, investment and revenue income generation.
The strategy also lead to the establishment of the Strategic Asset Management Plan
Board (SAMP Board) which will provide oversight and governance and ensure a more
strategic approach to the management of its property estate.
The Capital Strategy Appendix 5 updates the Capital Funding Strategy to reflect the
current financial situation. All capital investment and disposal decisions have been
made with reference to the strategic objectives within the Council Plan.
The Council’s capital programme has, in general, been funded by the use of capital
receipts, contributions, major repairs reserve or from capital grants. Two major new
schemes in the capital programme are funded from capital grants – the Coastal
Communities Fund project at Grange over Sands and the Kendal ERDF-funded flood
works. Other recurring sources of capital income have declined significantly over the
last 5 years.
The Council receives a share of the proceeds of Right to Buy sales of houses
transferred to South Lakes Housing in 2012. This income has to be treated as capital
receipt and the Council has chosen to earmark it for use in providing new affordable
housing. The Council has cumulative uncommitted, unspent receipts of £4.0m at 31
March 2019 from this income agreement (with £495k committed to Ulverston Town
Hall) and is expecting this to increase by £700k pa. The Council has approved, in
principle, to use this money as a loan fund of up to £6m to allow housing associations
to access low interest rate finance.
Other sources of income have changed, including the value of the New Homes Bonus
as a result of the Government’s changes to the scheme (see section 5 above). The
total amount of NHB has dropped to around £0.5m per year and is expected to be
discontinued as part of the reform of local government funding from April 2020. The
Government have introduced the Community Housing Fund which was initially used to
assist in the provision of housing in areas experiencing high numbers of second
homes and holiday homes. The Council received £2.3m of funding from this fund in
2016/17 which may be used for either capital or revenue expenditure.
The Capital Programme needs to reflect the capital expenditure necessary to maintain
its key assets over the long-term, especially revenue generating
25

Page 113

assets such as multi-storey car parks. Ideally any new schemes would bring alternate
external funds or new capital receipts from the sale of assets.
The capital programme for 2018/19 to 2023/24 was approved by Council in February
2019. The programme shown at Appendix 6 has been updated for requested carryforwards from 2018/19, the addition of an externally funded coastal communities
scheme and other minor budget changes and reflects the projected levels of
resources.
2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total
2019/20 to
2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

17,016.7

22,139.5

3,371.7

1,973.0

2,873.0

47,373.9

There are a number of significant potential additional service areas and schemes to be
added to the capital programme that have yet to be prioritised and allocated a capital
and or revenue budget. These schemes would lead to additional capital budget costs
on top of those presented in Appendix 6. These include:
a) Schemes arising from the Car Parking Study in Kendal and Oxenholme as
well as engineering appraisals undertaken on surfacing options at Braithwaite
Fold, additional capacity options at Rydal Road, Ambleside and Rayrigg Road
Car Park, Bowness and the siting of electric charging points.
c) The review of the Kendal depot location is also not included as yet. A report
setting out the likely financial implications and benefits and timescales will be
provided in due course.
While currently not prioritised and so not allocated budget, these schemes must be
included as part of the overall longer-term capital plans, as they are aspirational
should suitable funding be identified. These schemes will be subject to detailed
business case assessment before they become part of the approved draft capital
programme and will only be selected with overall consideration of the affordability of
the capital programme.

Revenue implications of capital programme
One of the key drivers for the Council’s approach to capital expenditure is revenue
affordability. Most Capital Projects have financial implications on the annual Revenue
Budget. The revenue implications can take a variety of forms and they include:


Capital financing costs



Loss of investment income
26

Page 114



Annual non-capital financing costs, e.g. salaries, rent, rates, energy costs, ongoing maintenance costs and any income generated from the scheme or
project

One of the largest revenue cost is the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP). This is the
statutory requirement to charge the revenue account with the principle cost of
borrowing over the life of the asset created. For the purposes of this calculation,
borrowing is treated as any expenditure not funded by capital receipts or contributions.
The Council has moved from using leasing to fund the purchase of vehicles and plant
to outright purchase funded by borrowing. Once a full cycle of vehicle and plant
renewal is reflected in the MRP these annual increases will reduce.

Capital programme funded
from borrowing
Projected MRP

2019/20
£000
3,115

2020/21
£000
4,384

2021/22
£000
6,699

2022/23
£000
690

2023/24
£000
2,100

1,017

1,196

1,394

1,383

1,161

The decisions of how to fund capital expenditure, including the treasury management
decision of whether to borrow externally, are taken at the end of the financial year by
the Finance Lead Specialist under delegated powers. The decisions are based on the
Treasury Management framework for the relevant financial year and ensuring value for
money.

9. Consultation strategy, approval and communication
process
The Council carries out regular consultation with local people, customers,
stakeholders, and partners organisations to establish current and future needs and
priorities of the community. The MTFP is submitted to Cabinet annually for approval. It
is subject to challenge and scrutiny through the Overview and Scrutiny Committee
before final approval by Council.
The MTFP is reviewed at least quarterly and forecasts are updated as necessary and
reported as part of the Quarterly Corporate Financial Monitoring process and during
the Budget process.
The Council consults on its budget proposals with business ratepayers in accordance
with statutory requirements.

27

Page 115

10. Equality Impact Assessments (EIA)
The Council is committed to ensuring equality and diversity issues are given proper
consideration. Equality Impact Assessments are an important part of our decision
making to enable us to assess the impact of decisions on our residents, stakeholders
and customers. Where the impact is high mitigation plans can be developed to reduce
the impact of decisions. These are completed in accordance with national guidance
and best practice.
In developing individual budget proposals officers have undertaken equality impact
assessments. An overall equality impact assessment was prepared for the 2019/20
budget process and proposals and this will be reviewed as part of each annual budget
process.

11. Conclusion and way forward
The MTFP should be considered in the context of the following issues:

11.2.

a

The Council is in a relatively positive financial position as shown by the
adequate General Fund balances and reserves, robust financial management
practices and excellent track record in achieving efficiency savings

b

Further significant key decisions will still be needed to deliver savings while
safeguarding frontline services to maintain a balanced budget beyond the
Customer Connect programme.

c

Significant changes were expected to the local government finance system
from April 2020 which are expected to reduce income available to the Council:
the timing of these changes is now very uncertain.

d

The size of the capital programme has significantly increased to reflect 2 major
grant-funded schemes and major renewals of Council assets. The Property
and Land Management Strategy identifies the need for further significant
spending if services are to continue using the existing assets.

e

Inflation and other budget pressures may increase spend above the
projections included in the financial model.

f

Any changes to the financial position will be closely monitored and updates to
the financial projections will be reported during the 2020/21 budget process.

The annual revenue budget deficit projections before Customer Connect savings total
c £2.3m for 2020/21 rising to £4.2m by 2023/24 based on a number of assumptions as
detailed in the draft. The Customer Connect programme will
28

Page 116

generate £1.55m of recurring annual savings reducing the expected deficit in 2023/24
to £2.7m. The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment
relating to items in the capital programme. The budgets have not been updated for
income identified in the relevant business plans/budget bids to offset the costs. This
further reduces the projected deficit for 2023/24 to £2.0m. Savings plans in addition to
the Customer Connect Programme are being developed to provide a balanced
position. Work is underway to develop the balancing £2.0m. Officers will continue to
work on these figures to test the assumptions made and updates will be provided
during the 2020/21 Budget Process.

Appendices to the Medium Term Financial Plan
1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8

Budget Process and Strategy 2020/21 – 2024/25
General Fund Revenue Account Forecast 2019/20 – 2024/25
Risk Assessment of the General Reserve & Working Balance
Policy on Reserves and forecast reserves 2019/20 – 2024/25
Capital Funding Strategy
Capital Expenditure and Income Forecast
Risk and Opportunity Log
Glossary

Document Author and contact details: Helen Smith, Finance Lead Specialist,
h.smith@southlakeland.gov.uk
Accountable Director: David Sykes, Director of Strategy, Innovation and Resources
Document Reference: MTFP 2019-2024
Previous review dates and changes made:
 July 2018 full review
 February 2019 updated financial position
Date for review: July 2020 and at least quarterly update of financial model

29

Page 117

Appendix 1
Budget process and strategy 2020/21 to 2024/25
By incorporating the Budget Strategy within the Medium Term Financial Plan the Council
ensures the two parts of the budget process are seamless and consistent. The proposed
budget strategy is shown below:

Proposed 2020/20 Budget Strategy
a. This proposed Budget Strategy explains the approach to setting a balanced
budget for 2020/20 in accordance with the principles set out in the Medium Term
Financial Plan. Through the MTFP updates, corporate issues have been
addressed that will alter the future years position from the budget that was
approved on 26 February 2019.
b. To address future deficits, savings options have been approved for 2019/20 and
for future years. Savings will also be sought to provide funding for budget
pressures to ensure the Council Plan priorities are delivered. Members will be
asked to consider the range of options for savings put forward and which are to be
consulted on. These may include:

c.



increasing income



reducing costs by improving service efficiency including the use of assets



reduction of costs through cutting overheads



alternative service delivery mechanisms



ceasing to deliver services

The detailed service and capital budgets will be reviewed to ensure that these
remain reasonable, with reference to the 2018/19 out-turn, monitoring during
2019/20 and the Service Managers’ knowledge of any changes due to take effect
over the budgeting time frame.

General Fund Services
d. The overall General Fund Service budget strategy is that:


budgets will be updated by Finance for known, externally-driven changes to
salaries including inflation; they will also update capital charges and
recharges;



all establishment changes (other than related to the implementation of Phase
2 of Customer Connect) must be treated as growth bids or savings and
forwarded to Human Resources Committee at the appropriate time;
1

Page 118

Appendix 1


virements and minor (less than £10k gross) cost neutral changes can be made
to base budgets without bid documents;



changes identified as part of the Customer Connect programme and savings
identified as part of the Corporate Savings Exercise will be worked up into
budget amendments as part of the budget process;



all other changes, including those that are statutory or demand led will need to
be brought forward for consideration as part of a budget amendment process,
signed-off by the Lead Officer and Portfolio Holder.

e. More detail of the approach is given below:
1

Salary budgets are increased by known incremental advances. From April
2020 2% will be included for inflationary pay awards. A 4% reduction will be
allowed for vacancies and turnover on all salary cost centres; posts which are
currently vacant will be budgeted at the scale mid-point; rates and thresholds
for PAYE, NI and pension deductions will be updated.

2

No allowance will be made for inflation in expenditure budgets unless
contractually committed or unavoidable (e.g. energy, fuel and utility bills); the
current inflation assumptions built in to the base will be reviewed and updated
where necessary. Where a contract is due for re-tendering a review of the
appropriate inflation rate and budget should be undertaken and a budget
pressure bid prepared where necessary.

3

Future year’s income base budgets already have inflationary growth built into
them. Where this cannot be met or managed through reductions in
expenditure, this will be identified as a budget pressure.

4

Fees and Charges need to be consistent with income budgets. This process
must involve:
a.

review of 2018/19 out-turn and any relevant multi-year trends;

b.

review of current 2019/20 budget position;

c.

review of future year income budget; and

d.

assessment of the options for any changes to fees (structures as well as
tariff) and the impact of this on the income budget.

e.

For any service area where income budgets are £100k or more per
annum, this process will be documented. All services will review the
potential for new fees.

Fees and Charges must be consistent with the Council’s Corporate Charging
Policy as approved in July 2017.
5

Existing base budgets will be challenged to identify savings that can be
released to offset projected budget deficits.
2

Page 119

Appendix 1
6

Budget Pressures: the delivery of the Council Plan requires constant review of
budgets to ensure funding is available to deliver the Council Plan priorities.
Any increases to expenditure or decreases to income base budgets (excluding
1 and 2 above) will be either matched corporately by a compensating saving
or will need to be submitted as budget pressures. The de-minimis is set at
£10k.

7

If the budget deficit is balanced then resources may be made available for
growth bids: where growth is to be funded from earmarked resources only
then bids will be accepted as part of the budget process.

8

Reserves will be used in accordance with their agreed policies with the
fundamental principle that they are not used to fund recurring expenditure.

9

Effective consultation will be carried out in accordance with the Corporate
Consultation strategy.

10 Schemes which attract external funding need to be considered with reference
to the Council Plan and capacity to deliver.
11 The Budget assumes a £5 Council tax increase annually from April 2020
onwards. The decision on the actual Council tax each year will be taken by
Council in February and will be influenced by current Government policy and
the influence of this on local government funding.
12 The working balance contributions be reviewed against the current long-term
target minimum General Fund working balance of £1,500,000 by 31 March
2020; any surplus over this target should be transferred to the General
Reserve.

Capital
f.

The approach to setting the capital programme will be as follows:
1 A longer-term view will be taken of spending needs to balance priorities and
resources more evenly over the life of the capital programme and to reflect the
Property and Land Management Stategy . The Council’s property advisors will
be consulted as to the on-going maintenance programme with the aim being to
develop a 10 year programme for recurring capital costs.
2 Bids for new initiatives which recover the investment in a 5 year period will be
prioritised. Capital Bid documents will be required prior to a scheme being
accepted as part of the Capital Programme. These are to be signed-off by the
relevant Portfolio Holder and will be prioritised by Members as part of
developing the 2020/21 to 2024/25 Capital Programme. Bids will be
considered alongside future expected spend on major projects, as indicated in
the capital programme.
3

Page 120

Appendix 1
3

Schemes which attract external funding should be considered in the light of
capacity to deliver these and need to be prioritised with reference to the
Council Plan.

4 Existing schemes within the programme will also be reviewed with reference to
their progress and any external funding restrictions.
5

Capital receipts will only be committed once they have been received.
Although there are known sources of capital receipts (e.g. South Lakes
Housing VAT Shelter/Right to Buy receipts), future aspirations will take into
account the resources required to support unavoidable recurring costs. Right
to Buy receipts will be earmarked for social housing to replace the units sold
that generated the receipt.

Budget Process
g. The approach to the review of the current-year budget, based on budget monitoring,
will continue. The 5 year position will be set out as part of the process.
h. Regular budget reports will be provided to inform Members on the emerging issues.
This will integrate information from review of base budgets, higher level factors (such
as the grant settlement) represented in the MTFP and the corporate savings process.
i.

Following approval of these proposals, Lead Officers, managers and finance staff will
work together on the preparation of budgets based on the strategy set out (ensuring
consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holders). Work will continue to be undertaken
on refining the options for reducing the deficits currently projected and inclusion in
the future Budget reports.

4

Page 121

Appendix 2
This table sets out detail of the Medium Term Financial Plan financial model.
2019/20
£000

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

14,623.8
9,565.3
9,085.1
2,031.0
35,305.2

14,833.6
9,523.4
8,422.8
0.0
32,779.8

15,251.7
9,564.8
5,617.5
0.0
30,434.0

15,609.2
9,693.7
3,892.4
0.0
29,195.3

15,943.0
9,568.3
3,495.0
0.0
29,006.3

(4,553.4)
(67.5)
(4,134.2)
(483.9)
(516.7)
(1,459.5)
(1,425.3)
(12,640.5)

(4,639.6)
(67.9)
(4,204.9)
(560.7)
0.0
(1,492.6)
(1,468.1)
(12,433.8)

(4,727.5)
(68.2)
(4,268.5)
(560.7)
0.0
(1,518.6)
(1,512.1)
(12,655.6)

(4,817.2)
(68.5)
(4,251.6)
(590.7)
0.0
(1,544.2)
(1,557.5)
(12,829.7)

(4,817.2)
(68.5)
(4,251.6)
(390.7)
0.0
(1,544.2)
(1,557.5)
(12,629.7)

22,664.7

20,346.0

17,778.4

16,365.6

16,376.6

(223.1)
567.0

(259.8)
1,163.4

(327.3)
1,178.4

(355.0)
1,199.1

(393.2)
1,262.1

Other Government Grants
Income from Council Tax (net of Parish Precept)
Parish Grant
Retained Business Rates
Contribution to pool Reserve

(451.0)
(8,903.8)
92.0
(4,650.4)
1,113.8

0.0
(9,181.5)
92.0
(2,755.7)
0.0

0.0
(9,461.8)
92.0
(2,240.0)
0.0

0.0
(9,744.5)
92.0
(1,724.3)
0.0

0.0
(10,029.7)
92.0
(1,328.0)
0.0

Direct Revenue Financing of Capital Programme
Minimum Revenue Provision

705.7
751.7

40.0
982.7

40.0
1,021.3

40.0
1,226.0

40.0
1,338.1

(9,085.1)
42.2
147.3
(2,031.0)
(21,924.7)

(8,422.8)
0.0
305.7
0.0
(18,036.0)

(5,617.5)
0.0
374.4
0.0
(14,940.5)

(3,892.4)
0.0
390.1
0.0
(12,769.0)

(3,495.0)
0.0
390.1
0.0
(12,123.6)

740.0
(740.0)
0.0

2,310.0
(1,550.0)
760.0

2,837.9
(1,550.0)
1,287.9

3,596.6
(1,550.0)
2,046.6

4,253.0
(1,550.0)
2,703.0

Expenditure
Employee Costs
Running Costs
Capital Charges
Customer Connect
Total Service Expenditure
Income
Car Parking Income
Contributions from other Local Authorities and Public Bodies
General Income
Government Grants
New Homes Bonus
Lake Income
Recycling Credits
Total Service Income
Net Service Budget
Corporate items
Interest Receivable
Interest Payable

Reversal of Capital Charges
Collection Fund surplus/deficit
Transfers to/from Reserves
Transfers from Reserves: Customer Connect
Total Corporate Items
Projected Surplus/Deficit (-/+)
Customer Connect savings
Projected Surplus/Deficit (+/-) February 2019

The revenue budgets reflect additional costs of interest and debt repayment relating to items in the capital programme. The
budgets have not been updated for the following items of income identified in the relevant business plans/budget bids to offset the
costs:
2019/20
£000
Capital Programme
Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations
Interest on balance outstanding
New Ulverston Leisure Centre
Reduction in running costs/management fee
Additional homeless accomodation to provide options for families
Income from residents (including housing benefit where
eligible)
South Lakeland House/Kendal Town Hall
Cost avoidance/additional income
Other Decisions
Waste and Recycling Collection Policy
Delivery charges from developers

2020/21
£000

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

-60

-120

-120

-120

0

-220

-220

-220

-64

-64

-64

-64

0

0

-274

-298

-16
0
-140
Future financial projections will be updated for these changes when the timing is confirmed.

-16
-420

-16
-694

-16
-718

867.9

1,352.6

1,985.0

Deficit assuming £5 Band D Council Tax increase after
savings related to Capital Programme

0.0

Page 122

620.0

RISK ASSESSEMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES: 31/3/19

Potential Risk
Base Budget Contingency for inflation or other
unanticipated rise.
Underachievement of Charges Income targets and
spending exceeds budgets

Appendix 3

Financial Balance
Risk
Exposure Required
Score Weighting
(£000)
(£000) Comment (Basis of Financial Exposure)
4

50%

301

151 Assumed at 1% of Gross Revenue Budget for 2019/20
255 Estimate of 5% Customer Receipts Income forecasts for 2019/20

Page 123

4

50%

511

Underachievement of Investment Income

4

50%

130

65 1% of exposure of average balance of £13m

Insurance Excesses

5

50%

47

24 Based on 10% of insurance premia payments

Potential costs of legal challenges

2

25%

700

Savings not achieved

2

25%

3,927

Vacancy target not delivered

2

25%

556

Pay increase

3

50%

146

Increase in pension contributions

4

50%

360

Changes to existing government funding regimes

6

50%

1,942

971

50% of Total of RSG/transitional grant/Rural Services grant/NNDR retained funding, based on 2019/20 estimated
settlement

Changes to existing external grants and contributions

4

50%

974

487

50% of total revenue grants and contributions received, excluding benefit subsidy and formula grant (based on
2019/20 excluding New Homes Bonus)

Impact of introduction of Universal Credit

2

25%

200

Changes to Homelessness requirements

2

25%

200

Localisation of business rates

4

50%

227

Council tax reduction scheme

4

25%

64

Risk Management

9

100%

500

500 Monies set aside to meet the one-off costs of risk management

Committed expenditure

9

100%

670

670 Expected use of General Reserve 2019/20

Emergency Contingency

9

100%

1,000

1,000

12,455

5,902

TOTALS

Maximum Risk Based Reserve Balances

175 Based on estimated cost of a public enquiry or legal challenge
982 Savings target at 31/3/23 including customer connect
139 Staff vacancy target topsliced from salary budgets
73 2% allowance made in budget for pay increase from April 2020. Impact of additional 1% pay award
180 Allowance for 1.5% increase in pension fund contributions at next triennial revaluation

50 Increase in homelessness, changes in administration arrangements, reduction in collection rate etc
50 Changes in requirements for homelessness
114 Assume 5% reduction in rateable values based on 2017/18 estimate
16 SLDC share, based on 10% increase in claims based on 2018/19 estimate

Emergency contingency fund - Council practice to allocate £1m for any unforeseen emergencies. Bellwin scheme
cuts in at 0.2% of net budget and provides for up to 85% of eligible costs.

12,455 Total Financial Exposure

Recommended Risk Base Reserve Balances

5,902 from above

Minimum Risk Based Reserve Balances

3,114 25% of Total Financial Exposure

Projected Level of Reserves
- General Fund Working Balance

1,500 Actual balance 31/3/19

- General Reserve

4,784 Actual balance 31/3/19

Projected Level of Reserves (General Fund )

6,284

Projected (Shortfall)/Excess of Current Reserve Balance over Risk Based Reserves

382 assumes use the recommended risk based balance

Appendix 4
Policy on Reserves and Balances
Purpose
A Policy for Reserve and Balances represents good financial management and should be
reviewed annually.
The Local Government Finance Act 1992 and Local Government Act 2003 set out that a
range of safeguards to mitigate against local authorities over-committing themselves
financially. These include:


the balanced budget requirement



Chief Finance Officers’ duty to report robustness of estimates and adequacy of
reserves when considering the budget requirement.



Requirement for local authority to make arrangements for proper administration of
their financial affairs and that the Chief Finance Officer is that responsible person
(Section 151 duties)



the requirements of the Prudential Code.



the External Auditor will consider whether audited bodies have established
adequate arrangements to ensure that their financial position is soundly based.

Types of Reserves
Reserves can be held for three main purposes:


a working balance to help cushion the impact of uneven cash flows and avoid
unnecessary temporary borrowing – this forms part of general reserves



a contingency to cushion the impact of unexpected events or emergencies – this also
forms part of general reserves



a means of building up funds, often referred to as earmarked reserves, to meet
known or predicted liabilities.

The Council also holds other reserves that arise out of the interaction of legislation and
proper accounting practice. This reserves are not resource backed and cannot be used for
other purposes include :


a Pensions Reserve ( required under IAS19). This is a specific accounting
mechanism used to recognise the Council’s share of pension fund liabilities in its
balance sheet. As this is a reserve which arises from an accounting standard it is not
available to finance Council expenditure.

1

Page 124

Appendix 4


a Revaluation Reserve – this records unrealised gains in the value of fixed assets.



a Capital Adjustment Account – this is a specific accounting mechanism used to
reconcile different rates at which assets are depreciated under proper accounting
practice and financed through the capital controls system.

For each earmarked reserve held by the Council there should be a clear protocol setting
out:


the reason for/purpose of the reserve



how and when the reserve can be used



procedures for the reserve’s management and control



a process and timescale for review of the reserve to ensure continuing relevance and
adequacy.

This Reserves and Balances Policy ensures that when establishing reserves, South
Lakeland Council complies with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom (the Code) and in particular the need to distinguish between reserves and
provisions.

Policy
This summary sets out the Council’s policy on each one. It details the level and
nature/purpose of each reserve. In all cases these are based on an assessment of needs
and risk.
The fundamental principle governing the use of reserves is that they should not be used to
fund recurring expenditure. If exceptional circumstances make this a necessity, the use of
the reserve should be clearly stated and approved as an exception to the rule

Extract from Constitution: Finance Procedure Rules
USABLE EARMARKED RESERVES
10.7 The following criteria will be used to authorise Officers to establish and
maintain usable Earmarked Reserves:
a) The reserve can only be established if it supports the Council’s objectives,
Council Plan and MTFP and complies with at least one of the following:
i.
ii.
iii.

Where expenditure is planned in future years and it is prudent to build up
resources in advance
The reserve is a statutory requirement of the service or on the Council
It relates to the carry forward of budgets identified in budget monitoring and
in accordance with the carry forward rules
2

Page 125

Appendix 4

10.8

10.9

b) The reserve can only be used for the purpose for which it was established and
In line with any timescales identified when established or following annual
review as part of the annual budget process
c) The timescales involved and the amounts to be transferred in and out of a
reserve must be clearly set out when the reserve is established. Amounts can
take the form of wording if figures are not available.
d) Budget monitoring should identify the need for a reserve during the year and
subject to meeting the criteria can be set up with the action being reported to
the Portfolio Holder and ultimately Cabinet and Council through quarterly
monitoring and the Statement of Accounts. Only exceptionally should the need
for a reserve be identified in the Closure of Accounts process.
e) One named member of staff should be responsible for a reserve and who can
authorise any transactions.
Management and maintenance of usable earmarked reserves must include any
variations to the annual budget approved movements being approved through the
budget monitoring process. Budget amendments in the Carry Forward Reserve will
be automatically implemented in the new financial year.
Following consultation with the Chief Finance Officer, the responsible Operational or
Specialist Lead shall be entitled to transfer budgets from any one service to a
reserve or from a reserve to a service up to a maximum limit of £60,000 per transfer
providing the use or contribution is for the purpose for which the reserve was
established. The Cabinet shall be entitled to transfer budgets to and from any
reserve another up to a limit of £100,000 per transfer providing the use or
contribution is for the purpose for which the reserve was established. Beyond these
limits, approval to transfers can only be given by full Council.

10.10 Following the closure of the accounts for a financial year, the Chief Finance Officer
will report to Cabinet and Audit Committee on the transfers to and the use of
reserves and working balances for that year and seek approval of those transactions
by full Council.

3

Page 126

Appendix 4

Reserves Summary
The purpose of this table is to set out the projected balance on the Council's usable reserves over the MTPF period.
Reserve

Type

General

Statutory Duties Reserve

General

(150)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(4,784)
(4,314)
(4,548)
(4,748)
(4,948)
(5,148) Finance Lead
Specialist

Page 127

General Reserve

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(6,024)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98)

(98) Legal
/Governance/
Democracy
Lead Specialist

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

The main use of this reserve in recent years
has been to fund the one-off costs of
flooding, staff redundancy and early
retirements to enable organisational
reorganisation and the discontinuation of
direct provision of services. Unless allocated
for a particular purpose, revenue budget
under-spending and windfalls are added to
the General Reserve. (For more details of
the risk and an assessment of the potential
financial exposure please see the Risk
Assessment of Level of Reserves).
The Medium Term Financial Plan
provisionally assumes a £200,000 annual
contribution to the Reserve, depending on
quantification of the potential impact of these
factors. Any balance on the General Fund
working balance above £1.5m is transferred
to this reserve as part of the closure of
accounts.

Part of General Reserve earmarked for
certain purposes: use delegated to SMT &
reported as part of Corporate Financial
Monitoring. Includes £50k legal costs/byelection contingency, £40k planning legal
costs contingency, £60k enforcement legal
costs contingency

Reserve

Type

Page 128

Flooding Costs Reserve

General

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(14)

Balance
31/3/2019
£000

Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0 n/a - Closed

Carry-forward Reserve

General

(438)

(391)

0

0

0

0

0 Finance Lead
Specialist

Building Control Fee Income
Reserve

Earmarked

0

0

0

0

0

0

Local Land Charges Reserve

Earmarked

(95)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

0 Operational Specialist
Services
(0) Operational Specialist
Services

Hackney Carriage Licensing
Reserve

Earmarked

12

21

21

21

21

21

Licensing Act Reserve

Earmarked

(76)

(154)

(154)

(154)

(154)

(154)

Misc Licensing Reserve

Earmarked

32

69

69

69

69

69

Gambling Licensing Reserve

Earmarked

13

25

25

25

25

25

Community Housing Fund

Earmarked

(2,309)

(2,234)

(1,764)

(1,764)

(1,764)

(1,764)

Commuted Sums Reserve

Earmarked

(153)

(134)

(44)

(44)

(44)

(44)

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Part of General Reserve earmarked for the
costs of remediation of December 2015
floods, use delegated to Chief Finance
Officer by Council February 2016 - close at
31/3/19 and transfer balance back to General
Reserve
Part of General Reserve earmarked for
revenue budgets carried forward from
2017/18 to future years.
Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on building control.
Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on local land charges.

21 Operational
Lead Case
Management
(154) Operational
Lead Case
Management

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

69 Operational
Lead Case
Management

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

25 Operational
Lead Case
Management
(1,764) Strategy Lead
Specialist

(44) Operational Specialist
Services

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.

Statutory ring fenced reserve to record
surpluses and losses on licensing.
income received from Government for
Community Housing Fund not spent in year.

Income received under various s106
agreements not spent in year

Reserve

Type

Page 129

Cumbria NDR Pool Income
Reserve

Earmarked

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(1,169)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(1,577)
(2,177)
(1,777)
(1,727)
(1,727)
(1,727) Operational Specialist
Services
(176)
(344)
(344)
(344)
(344)
(344) Finance Lead
Specialist

Cumbria NDR Pool volatility
Reserve

Earmarked

(299)

Customer Connect Reserve

General

(1,301)

(2,035)

(4)

(4)

(4)

(4)

Debt Redemption Reserve

General

(455)

0

0

0

0

0

Economic Development Fund

General

(167)

(304)

(304)

(304)

(304)

(304)

General Fund Major Repairs
Reserve

Capital

(307)

(155)

(260)

238

153

68

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Income from Cumbria NNDR pool, earmarked
for economic development
Share of NNDR pool income retained by pool
to offset potential future deficits

(4) Operational
Lead Support
Services

To fund the implementation of the Customer
Connect Project, initially using the Customer
Connect budgets from 2016/17 revenue
budgets not spent during 2016/17.

0 n/a - Closed

Underspend on budget for interest payment
and MRP due to changes in capital
programme, originally set aside for future
costs of debt repayment. Close at 31/3/19
following transfer to Customer Connect
Reserve

(304) Operational Specialist
Services

(17) Operational
Lead Delivery
and Commercial
Services

To encourage economic development in the
District and to ensure that unused funds in a
particular year can be carried forward.

To fund major repairs and maintenance to
General Fund properties that are not
capitalisable and would be difficult to
accommodate in the annual planned
maintenance programme. The Reserve:
• acts as a backstop for emergency major
repairs
• accumulates funds as necessary to meet an
abnormal year in maintenance terms,
• is able to assist in meeting regular
maintenance costs.

Reserve

Type

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(74)

Balance
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2019 31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
(81)
(74)
(74)
(74)
(74)
(74) Digital Lead
Specialist

Summary, Purpose and Commentary

Page 130

IT Replacement Reserve

Capital

Kendal Employment Dev. Fund

Earmarked

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0)

(0) n/a - Closed

Assistance to eligible developing firms in the
Kendal area

LABGI

General

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5)

(5) Operational Specialist
Services

To fund non-recurring initiatives that
contribute directly to one or more of the
Council’s priority initiatives, with a preference
for economic development. This fund is now
practically fully committed and should be
closed once the committed spend is
achieved.

Local Arts Strategic Partnership Earmarked

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

(30)

LSVT Environmental Warranties Earmarked

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282)

(282) Finance Lead
Specialist

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37)

(37) Strategy Lead
Specialist

(1,457)

(2,118)

(921)

(406)

(181)

(181)

(181) Finnace Lead
Specialist

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1) Finance Lead
Specialist

Marshall Hooper Reserve

Earmarked

New Homes Bonus Reserve

Capital

NNDR Surplus Reserve

Earmarked

To fund the replacement of hardware and
software with a preference for the updating of
the corporate and networking infrastructure.

(30) Operational
Monies provided towards Arts Strategy and
Lead Specialist related activities carried forward for use in
Services
subsequent years.
To pay for environmental insurance until
2032 relating to warranties given as part of
the housing transfer.
Monies left to the Council as a bequest to be
used for housing for the elderly in Grange

New reserve to enable forward funding of
eligible schemes through the Council's New
Homes Bonus protocol
Timing gap between recognising s31 grant
and recognising offsetting NDR collection
fund deficits.

Reserve

Type

Page 131

Planning Delivery Grant Fund

Earmarked

Personal Financial Resilience
Reserve

Earmarked

0

(25)

(25)

(25)

(25)

(25)

Revs and Bens Replacement
Reserve

Capital

(10)

0

0

0

0

0

0 n/a - Closed

Revenue Funds for Capital

Capital

(587)

(307)

394

294

194

94

(6) Finance Lead
Specialist

(46)

(92)

0

0

0

0

0 Strategy Lead
Specialist

Initiatives to enable the provision of
affordable housing: transfer of unspent
balance at end of year

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 n/a - Closed

income from the social lettings scheme set
aside for potential losses or repair bills
Closed 31/3/19

Total Reserves excluding
working balance
GF Working balance

(15,447)

(14,907)

(10,331)

(9,252)

(9,362)

(9,747)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

(1,500)

Total Usable Reserves

(16,947)

(16,407)

(11,831)

(10,752)

(10,862)

(11,247)

Second Homes Income Reserve General

Social Lettings Reserve

General

Balance
31/3/2019
£000

Summary, Purpose and Commentary
Balance Balance Balance Balance Balance
Responsible
31/3/2020 31/3/2021 31/3/2022 31/3/2023 31/3/2024
Lead
£000
£000
£000
£000
£000
0
0
0
0
0
0 Operational
Monies provided by Planning Delivery Grant
Lead Specialist in 2009/10 carried forward for use in a
Services
subsequent years. This source of grant
funding has now been discontinued and the
fund will be closed when the current balance
is spent.

Balance
31/3/2018
£000
(18)

(25) Operational
Lead Case
Management

New reserve created from unclaimed
members allowances earmarked to improve
financial resilience
Transferred to Customer Connect Reserve
following replacement of Revs & Bens
system in 2017/18
Closed 31/3/19
Monies provided from revenue to support the
Capital Programme & fund expenditure that
may not be capitalisable: annual contribution
£100k

(10,132)
(1,500) Finance Lead
Specialist

(11,632)

Buffer against unforeseen & emergency
expenditure in-year, inflationary demands,
adverse cash flow, inability to use capital
resources.

Appendix 5
Capital Funding Strategy
1.

Introduction

1.1.

This Capital Funding Strategy sets out how the capital resources will be deployed
to fund the Capital Programme. It compliments the Council’s Capital Strategy
which is approved annually in February by Council as part of the suite of Budget
reports and set out the Council’s approach to meeting community and service
needs through its capital programme.

2.

Financing capital expenditure

Overview
2.1.

Decisions on capital investment are made against the background of constrained
resources, and the Council is heavily dependent upon capital receipts and grants
from the Government to support its capital programme. Other available funding
sources include prudential borrowing, third party contributions, and revenue
contributions. These are all actively pursued to support capital investment.

Capital Receipts
2.2.

Capital receipts are derived from asset sales. These could include income to the
Council as lessor from finance leases.

2.3.

Asset sales come from a variety of sources. Generally speaking, 100% of asset
sales can be used to support capital expenditure. Sometimes the asset sale is
linked directly to a capital project, for example in a relocation scheme. More often,
asset sales relate to surplus assets that are held corporately and are not specific
to a scheme or service.

2.4.

The Council completed the transfer of its housing stock to South Lakes Housing, a
registered social landlord, in March 2012. Under the terms of the transfer
agreement the Council received both an initial capital receipt and will receive
future capital receipts from the sale of houses, other assets and from a VAT
shelter.

2.5.

The amount of receipts from asset sales is dependent on both the type of asset
itself and on economic and market conditions. The current economic climate has
significantly reduced the number of sales and the amount of receipts.

Borrowing
2.6.

The Local Government Act 2003 introduced new flexibilities into the capital
expenditure and financing rules governing local authorities. The new rules,
contained in the ‘Prudential Code’, allow local authorities to set
1

Page 132

Appendix 5
their own limits with regard to borrowing undertaken to support capital
expenditure. Additional borrowing may now be undertaken, provided that it is, and
can be shown to be, prudent, affordable and sustainable.
2.7.

In order for borrowing to be prudent, affordable and sustainable, there must be an
identifiable, long-term source of revenue funding for the associated revenue (debt
financing) costs. Ideally this will come from revenue savings or additional income
arising directly from the capital scheme. For example, refurbishment of a building
may generate maintenance and/or energy savings, or the building of a car park
could generate income through charges. The cost of borrowing therefore should
be offset by savings within the service that uses the asset.

Government Grants
2.8.

The conditions attached to government grants vary according to the particular
grant. Some will fund the full cost of the scheme, others just a percentage, with the
local authority having to fund the balance. Most, but not all, grants are time-limited.
Government grants tend to be focussed towards the Government’s priorities.

Third Party Contributions
2.9.

As with government grants the conditions attached to third party contributions
vary. This category of funding is becoming of increasing importance to the Council
in a climate of stretched local government resources. Included here are:


Planning obligations funding from Section 106 agreements (developer
contributions)



National Lottery grants



Contributions from local bodies.



Contributions from national bodies.

Revenue Contributions
2.10. In the past revenue contributions have been a fairly minor source of capital
financing for the Council due to pressures on the revenue budget. They are,
however, sometimes used to top up small shortfalls in the funding required for a
particular scheme.

2

Page 133

Appendix 5
Community Infrastructure Levy
2.11. The Council has introduced a Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) a levy on new
housing and retail development outside the National Parks. Its purpose is to assist
with the delivery of infrastructure necessary to support the growth proposed in the
Local Plan. 15% of the CIL receipt also goes to the Parish Council for the area in
which the development takes place. The levy is expected to raise around £17m
between now and 2025. Because CIL is levied when planning permission is
granted but paid in instalments after building has started, it will be some time
before a significant sum accumulates.

Reserves
2.12. The Council uses a number of reserves to fund the capital programme. There are
two main types:


Reserves used to collect specific funds to be used over a number of
years, such as the Second Homes Discount reserve, the LAGBI reserve
or the New Homes Bonus reserve



Reserves can be used to smooth the timing of the application of revenue
contributions, for example the IT Reserve and the General Fund Major
Repair Reserve.

2.13. The Policy on Reserves and Balances gives details of the purpose of each
reserve.

3.

Funding strategy

3.1.

The capital funding strategy is proposed as part of the overall Capital Budget
Strategy and is therefore also reviewed on an annual basis.

3.2.

The Council’s capital funding strategy for 2019/20 to 2024/25 is set out below:

3.3.

Funding streams are allocated in the following ways:

3.3.1.

Capital receipts are not allocated or committed prior to receipt, unless
inextricably linked to a specific project.

3.3.2.

CIL will be allocated in accordance with the approved scheme after the
deduction of the parish share. CIL will only be paid once received and in
accordance with the statutory timetable.

3.3.3.

General fund capital receipts received during the year will be added to the
unearmarked general fund capital receipts reserve and taken into account as
a potential funding source for new schemes or variations in the relevant
financial year or the following financial year, subject to revenue budget
considerations e.g. debt financing budget implications.
3

Page 134

Appendix 5
3.3.4.

Receipts from Right to Buy will be earmarked for replacement homes.

3.3.5.

General Fund capital receipts received from the capital portion of finance
lease income on Council owned properties under IFRS rules will be
earmarked for capital expenditure on the Council's property assets.

3.3.6.

The only call on the general fund major repairs reserve during the year would
be for unforeseen high priority emergency capital works that cannot be
financed from alternative sources. Agreement will be through the normal
channels – that is the submission of a project appraisal or variation to
Cabinet with final approval by Council.

3.3.7.

Hypothecated funding – i.e. funding linked directly to a specific scheme or
service area, such as grants, third part contributions, revenue contributions
and supported borrowing – is allocated 100% to the relevant scheme or
service.

3.3.8.

Borrowing will be used to fund capital investment if the cost of the borrowing
is affordable. Ideally the capital investment itself will produce revenue
savings, which will cover the cost of borrowing to invest.

3.3.9.

The IT Replacement Reserve will only be used to fund the replacement of
hardware and software with a preference for the updating of the corporate
and networking infrastructure.

3.3.10.

The Fund of Revenue Monies for Capital Purposes will only be used to
provide support to the Capital Programme, to supplement the capital finance
available to the Programme by revenue contributions and to cover ‘grey area’
expenditure and allow flexibility in financing decisions.

3.3.11.

Underspends on schemes may not be automatically diverted to other
schemes. This will be considered against the demands of the programme as
a whole, any reserve project list and funding requirements for the following
year.

3.3.12.

The funding strategy is used to determine the allocation of funding to the
programme at the start of the year and throughout the year. Depending on
the timing and restrictions of the funding streams, the most appropriate
funding will be used at the year end. Finance staff, under the direction of the
Chief Finance Officer, will apply the available funding to the outturn
expenditure in line with the best interests of the Council.

4.

Revenue Implications of Capital Projects

4.1.

The revenue implications of capital projects are identified through medium term
planning and the capital appraisal process, and fed into the Council’s medium
term revenue budget to ensure that all revenue implications are taken into
account.
4

Page 135

Appendix 5
5.

Leasing (Council as Lessee)

5.1.

Leases are classified in accounting terms as either finance or operating leases.
This distinction is important because it dictates whether the lease must be
classified as capital (finance leases) or revenue (operating leases), and different
accounting treatment is required for each.

5.2.

Items financed through an operating lease are coded to and financed as part of
the Council’s revenue budget. It is the responsibility of the budget holder to ensure
that there is sufficient capacity in the revenue budget to fund the annual operating
lease costs.

5.3.

The Council’s preference is not to enter into finance leases unless there are
exceptional reasons for doing so. Where an operating lease is either not available
or not suitable, a capital purchase funded by prudential borrowing generally offers
greater benefits than a finance lease. The introduction of IFRS from April 2010
reduced the number of instances where operating leases can be used to finance
expenditure, particularly in the case of short life assets such as IT hardware,
equipment and vehicles. Where this applies it is likely that such items will be
purchased through the capital programme and financed by prudential borrowing,
with the revenue cost of the borrowing met from the existing service budget.

5.4.

The accounting rules for leases will change for 2020/21 and consequential
changes will be made to the 2020/21 Capital Budget Strategy.

5.5.

The detailed capital programme is shown at Appendix 6.

5

Page 136

Appendix 6

Capital Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20-2023/24
GL
Code

KNMxx

Programme Spending by Project

Play Areas (including community funded schemes and
schemes arising from the Play Space Audit)

2018/19
Approved Feb
2019

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19 Final

£000

£000

£000

£000

392.2

102.4

494.6

109.5

9.0

0.0

0.0

178.1
42.6

KLL18 Cockshott Point Entrance Improvements

1.8

KRE61 Waterhead Public Jetty
KRE65 Public Realm - The Glebe phase I and II
KRE53 Kendal Town Centre Public Realm

KNM56 Millerground Public Open Space, Access and Play Project
KRE04 Grange Regeneration
KLR31 Nobles Rest
KLL17 Ferry Nab Redevelopment Phase 1

KRE55 New Road Common (approved Council 12 Oct 2017)
KLC01 Kendal Leisure Centre (including changing rooms)

Page 137

KMR32 Wordsworth Trust contribution
KMR31 Festival Infrastructure
KEG35 Flood impact works Rothay Park
KFL01 Footway Lighting

2019/20
Carry-forwards
Approved Feb approved May
2019
2019

£000

Re-profiling
and
adjustments
requested

2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2019/20
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

194.0

288.2

44.4

526.6

65.0

65.0

65.0

65.0

118.5

0.0

47.7

0.0

157.3

0.0

20.0

198.1

0.0

-34.7

7.9

0.0

0.0

1.8

31.4

2.7

50.0

786.6

0.0

47.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

47.7

0.0

157.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

157.3

6.9

1.3

8.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

8.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

0.0

1.5

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1.5

34.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

22.6

0.0

22.6

0.0

15.7

0.0

15.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

15.7

231.0

0.0

231.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

159.6

2.7

162.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

64.8

-25.0

39.8

0.0

24.0

0.0

24.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

24.0

207.2

-94.1

113.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

49.4

0.0

49.4

25.0

40.7

0.0

65.7

25.0

25.0

25.0

25.0

165.7

KIT90 IT Replacements
KIT30 Customer Connect

80.0

0.0

80.0

80.0

6.7

0.0

86.7

80.0

80.0

80.0

80.0

406.7

290.0

0.0

290.0

300.0

168.3

0.0

468.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

468.3

KIT27 Mobile Working

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

KPY44 Town and Car Park signing
KPY45 South Lakeland House carpark works

16.2

0.0

16.2

0.0

11.7

0.0

11.7

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

11.7

377.5

0.0

377.5

0.0

370.4

0.0

370.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

370.4

KPY46 Car park re-surfacing

339.7

137.0

476.7

25.0

80.3

0.0

105.3

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

105.3

1,011.0

5.0

1,016.0

1,869.0

112.0

0.0

1,981.0

594.0

499.0

690.0

2,100.0

5,864.0

KGD21 Disabled Facilities Grants
KRT10 Right to buy replacement scheme

934.4

0.0

934.4

661.0

0.0

0.0

661.0

661.0

661.0

603.0

603.0

3,189.0

495.0

0.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

495.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

495.0

KAH10 Affordable & Empty Homes, Town Centre Properties.
KAH13 S106 funded affordable homes purchase

168.0

0.0

168.0

260.0

119.0

92.0

471.0

260.0

260.0

260.0

0.0

1,251.0

60.0

0.0

60.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

86.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

300.0

KSC91 Vehicle & Plant Programme (inc bins and boxes)

KAH11 Cross-a-Moor junction improvement
KAH12 Town View Fields hostel
KCH01 Community Housing Fund

0.0

2.9

2.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

490.0

0.0

470.0

0.0

470.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

470.0

KMR21 Kendal Museum contribution

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

85.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

85.0

KLH02 Coronation Hall alterations

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

79.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

79.8

Appendix 6

Capital Programme 2018/19 and 2019/20-2023/24
GL
Code

Programme Spending by Project

KXB27 Energy-saving building enhancements
KDE04 Former Knitware Factory (Ulverston) site clearance

2018/19
Approved Feb
2019

Re-profiling
and adj

2018/19 Final

£000

£000

£000

2019/20
Carry-forwards
Approved Feb approved May
2019
2019

£000

£000

Re-profiling
and
adjustments
requested

2019/20
Revised

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

Total 2019/20
to 2023/24

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

£000

149.2

0.0

149.2

0.0

139.2

0.0

139.2

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

139.2

89.1

10.3

99.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

32.9

0.0

32.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

19.9

-15.9

4.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

4.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

4.0

KPE18 Kendal to Lancaster towpath trail
LIPS (excluding contributions to SLDC property included under
KIP01 individual properties)

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

120.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

120.0

275.4

20.0

295.4

165.8

208.0

-2.2

371.6

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

371.6

KRE66 Grange Promenade Structural works
KMR33 Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park extention

100.0

0.0

100.0

300.0

96.0

0.0

396.0

300.0

225.0

250.0

0.0

1,171.0

214.3

0.0

214.3

0.0

186.9

0.0

186.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

186.9

0.0

17.0

17.0

80.0

0.0

85.0

165.0

75.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

240.0

42.0

0.0

42.0

0.0

41.0

0.0

41.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

41.0

140.0

0.0

140.0

0.0

137.4

0.0

137.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

137.4

160.4

0.0

160.4

0.0

153.8

0.0

153.8

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

153.8

10.0

0.0

10.0

40.0

10.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

50.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,226.7

0.0

0.0

2,226.7

1,556.7

1,556.7

0.0

0.0

5,340.1

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

818.3

818.3

1,532.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

2,351.2

BID01 Housing Investment Fund: Loans to Housing Associations
BID02 New Ulverston Leisure Centre

0.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

3,000.0

3,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

6,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

9,200.0

BID03 Homeless Accommodation for Families
BID04 Abbot Hall redevelopment

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

461.4

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

BID05 Grange Lido

0.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

0.0

0.0

960.0

1,000.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

1,960.0

BID07 Windermere Road car park, Grange

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

100.0

BID08 Customer Connect: Places

0.0

0.0

0.0

947.5

0.0

0.0

947.5

3,789.9

0.0

0.0

0.0

4,737.4

Accomodation review

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Car park investments*

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Employment site land acquisition

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Rydal Road car park bridge

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

Depot review

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

0.0

7,502.0

159.3

7,661.3

12,338.7

3,144.2

1,533.8

17,016.7

22,139.5

3,371.7

1,973.0

2,873.0

47,373.9

KLH03 Kendal Town Hall stone work
KCD01 Castle Dairy flood damage reinstatement

KMR35 Burton Hertiage Grant Scheme (funded from LIPS)
KMR34 Kendal Castle (funded from LIPS)

Page 138

KPY42 Car Parking Machines
KPY48 Parkside Road, Kendal car park
KEP52 Disabled Toilet improvements
KDE06 ERDF funded flood defence works
KDE07 Coastal Communities Fund
New Bids

0.0

Bids subject to further assessment:

Total

*subject to detailed review of car parking strategy including potential new car parks, reconfiguration options on existing car parks and electric charging points

Appendix 6

Capital Funding 2019/20 - 2023/24
Balance April
2019
£000
General
Usable Capital Receipts
VAT Shelter receipt
New homes bonus (capital)****

Page 139

Earmarked or allocated
Revenue (LIPS)
IT replacement reserve
Major Repairs Reserve
General Revenue contributions
Cap grants and contributions (inc S106)
Disabled Facilities Grants
Community Housing Fund*
Right to Buy receipt**
Borrowing
Funding from borrowing***.
Total

Estimated
Income
£000

Use in capital
programme
£000

Projected
Balance March
2024
£000

1,189
932
1,581

349
1,100
513

-1,375
-2,029
-1,983

163
3
111

537
81
155
324
872
177
2,233
4,545

240
400
750
1,150
10,842
3,150
0
3,500

-722
-407
-888
-1,451
-11,378
-3,189
-470
-6,495

56
74
17
24
336
138
1,763
1,550

0
12,627

16,988
38,982

-16,988
-47,374

0
4,235

*Ring fenced for Community Housing Schemes
**Ring fenced to support replacement of affordable housing.
***'Prudential Borrowing'; this may not result in taking on new loans but requires revenue charge to cover the
cost over the assets' life
****Subject to annual confirmation and settlement

Appendix 7

Medium Term Financial Plan Risks and Opportunities Log

Page 140

Ref
1.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Revenue budget and Capital
Programme may not be integrated
and aligned with Council Plan.

Consequence
Resources not directed to
achieving corporate
outcomes, leading to
inappropriate spending.

Likelihood
Low

Impact
Marginal

2.

The programme of budget
reductions does not deliver the
required level of savings to correct
the forecast inherent budget
deficit.

Council will be forced to cut
services and/or make kneejerk and potentially irrational
spending reductions.

Low

Critical

3.

The Customer Connect
Programme does not deliver the
organisational changes and
efficiency savings included in
budget forecasts.
Result of Brexit may potentially
change estimated levels of
growth, inflation, interest etc.

Council will be forced to cut
services and/or make kneejerk and potentially irrational
spending reductions.

Medium

Critical

The Council may have to
amend the capital and
revenue spending plans to
react to changes in funding
and potential increased
levels of expenditure
Corporate outcomes may not
be delivered.

High

Serious

Monitor impact of decision

Low

Marginal

Accurate assessments of spending
needs to be built into the budget
forecast. Project management of
reduction programme.

4.

5.

Resources cannot be identified to
fund new service development.

1

Actions to control this risk
Both the revenue budget and the
Capital Programme are now
embedded in the corporate planning
cycle. All revenue budgets and capital
programme schemes are linked to
Council plan priorities
Universal acceptance of the problem
by heightened awareness. Clear
direction and identification of
measures by Members and Officers.
Strict project management to ensure
that proposals are implemented.
Clear direction and identification of
measures by Members and Officers.
Strict project management to ensure
that proposals are implemented.

Appendix 7

Ref
6.
7.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Further loss of income from
investments as interest rates
reduce.
 Provisions for pay, price
inflation are inadequate e.g.
fuel


8.

Page 141

9.

10.

11.

Consequence
Revenue budget unable to
cope with reduced income

Likelihood
Low

Impact
Marginal

In-year budgetary pressure
and potential overspending,
jeopardising service delivery.

Low

Marginal

Reduction in funding for
other services
Budget may not be able to
cope with unexpected events
and spending plans may
have to be curtailed.
Revenue budget unable to
cope with basic inflationary
increases, further pressure
on resources and service
delivery.
Income streams will be
insufficient to fund service
delivery.

Medium

Marginal

Low

Marginal

Low

Marginal

High

Critical

Income falls below targets

 Government grant is withdrawn
suddenly
Government devolution approach
diverts funding to other areas
The resilience of the budget is not
re-enforced by the strengthening
of reserves and balances.
Government introduction of more
stringent capping system through
the specification of levels above
which a referendum will be
triggered
Government proposals for
localisation of business rates,
including baseline reset increase
uncertainty of major income
stream.

2

Actions to control this risk
Close monitoring of returns, already
minimal levels of projected interest
receipts.
Close monitoring and short-term use
of revenue contingency provision and
General Reserve followed by review
for following year.

Monitor proposals for extension of
devolution
Close adherence to the Plan’s
proposals for the maintenance of
reserves and balances.
Maintenance of General Reserve as a
buffer against unexpected restriction
on council tax increases. The Plan
uses realistic assumptions for forward
planning.
Monitor changes in rateable values &
proposals for new development /
closures/ other changes.
Monitor Government proposals for
changes in NNDR legislation.
Maintenance of General Reserve as a
buffer against unexpected changes in
funding.

Appendix 7

Ref
11a.
12.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Government proposals for
additional reliefs for business
rates will not be fully funded
Council is reluctant to take the
required challenging decisions in
a number of service areas e.g.
fees & charges or grants payable
Budgetary control procedures are
not understood and followed –
higher likelihood during period of
organisational change.

14.

Reduction in economic
development funding if Cumbria
LEP is unable to attract significant
funding.
The Council is unable to meet
future demand for services

Page 142

13.

15.

Consequence
As above

Likelihood
As above

Impact
As above

Actions to control this risk
As above

Income streams may not be
optimised leading to reduced
resources available for
spending on priority services
or projected savings may not
be generated
Variances from budgets are
not identified and acted
upon, leading to
inappropriate/unauthorised
spending.

Low

Serious

Medium

Marginal

Inability to improve
employment prospects within
the district

Low

Serious

Service falls below all
acceptable standards.

Medium

Critical

Financial decisions in non-priority
areas should be made on commercial
principles backed by sound business
cases.
Commissioning Framework to include
decommissioning.
Ongoing review of procedures to
ensure that budget monitoring
information is appropriate and
meaningful.
Greater emphasis on trend analysis
and the use of customer data. Closer
liaison between
Finance staff and budget holders.
If LEP is unable to invest in economic
development there will be increased
pressure on the Council’s capital
programme to invest significant funds.
Close monitoring of the changing
needs and levels of demand and
review of resource allocation.

3

Appendix 7

Page 143

Ref
16.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Pension funding

Consequence
Budget may not be able to
cope with additional costs
and spending plans may
have to be curtailed.

Likelihood
Low

Impact
Marginal

17.

Costs of asset maintenance, as
identified in the Land and
Property Strategy, exceed
resources available.

Budgetary pressures force
cuts in standards of
maintenance.

Medium

Serious

18.

Future demographic and other
changes demand additional
expenditure

Medium

Serious

19.

Potential creation of Internal
Drainage Board

Low

Marginal

20.

Potential loss of surplusgenerating assets through the
proposed Community right to bid
and/or failure of assets
transferred

Budget inadequate for
additional spending
demands/potential loss of
income due to declining
population
Unavoidable Levy payable to
Internal Drainage Board;
under capping rules, levies
would count against the
Council’s Council Tax
capping limit.
Budget may not be able to
cope with loss of
income/sudden increase in
budgets required for
remedial costs

Low

Marginal

4

Actions to control this risk
Moved to alternative method of
contribution based on set percentage
for current service accrual and fixed
contribution for past service costs; this
has reduced inherent problem of
declining staff base for contributions.
Government reform of pension
scheme should alleviate impact of
declining investment returns.
A quinquennial review of maintenance
requirements is prepared. The
General Fund Planned Maintenance
fund exists to meet abnormal spending
needs.
Monitor impact of demographic
changes

Monitor proposals, review treatment
as special expense.
Current rules for calculating council
tax increases a new levy would count
towards triggering a referendum.
Government consultation spring 2019.
Review all requests against the Asset
Transfer Policy

Appendix 7

Page 144

Ref
21.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Higher that estimated increase in
costs due to international political
uncertainty e.g. fuel

22.

Reduced ability to attract and
retain suitably qualified staff. .

23.

Welfare reform: additional costs of
implementation of Universal
Credit due to need to support
digital by default application
process and payment to claimants
rather than landlords.
Procurement projects: projected
savings not generated

24.
25.

Procurement projects: challenge
to process

26.

Closure of major employer

27.

Legal challenge, particularly of
charging regimes

Consequence
Budget may not be able to
cope with additional costs
and spending plans may
have to be curtailed.
Inability to deliver services to
current levels or additional
costs of temporary staff
Potential increase in support
costs and potential increase
in homelessness cases due
to rent arrears.
Loss of administration grant
towards continuing costs
Unable to deliver estimated
savings, inability to balance
budget
Potential legal costs and
additional costs of service
delivery until challenge
resolved

Likelihood
Low

Impact
Marginal

Actions to control this risk
Frequent budget monitoring

Low

Marginal

Monitor recruitment activity

High

Marginal

Monitor proposals and respond to
consultation

Medium

Marginal

Low

Marginal

Reduction in income from
business rates but increase
in demand for affordable
housing and council tax
reduction scheme.
Potential need to refund
income received and
contribute to legal costs

Medium

Marginal

Review all savings proposals for
deliverability, ensure specification of
proposed contract is realistic.
All procurement exercises to follow
Council’s Contract Procedure Rules,
which are updated for changes in
legislation.
Additional legal advice is procured for
major or unusual procurement projects
Monitoring of significant employers

Low

Marginal

5

Potential claims for significant refunds
of charges e.g. land charges

Appendix 7

Ref
28.
29.

30.

Page 145

31.
32.

Vulnerability / Trigger
Increased tax avoidance,
particularly of business rates
Further changes to New Homes
Bonus e.g. increase in threshold

Consequence
Reductions in income from
business rates
Reduction in income from
government

Likelihood
Medium

Impact
Marginal

High

Marginal

Changes in shopping habits and
other behavioural changes
reduces income from Council
operations
Increased applications for rate
reliefs and/or appeals
Cumbria Business Rate pool
income lower than expected

Reduction in income from
markets, car parking, public
halls etc

Medium

Serious

Reduction in income from
business rates
Reduction in income from
pool potentially below singleauthority safety-net

Medium

Serious

Low

Serious

6

Actions to control this risk
Monitor claims for reliefs, particularly
empty properties
Currently income from New Homes
Bonus is not included as a recurring
item in the Council’s base budget due
to uncertainty about future income
streams.
Any reduction would reduce the
funding available to local projects and
may require funding from other
Council income streams.
Will be incremental impact initially:
monitor income and usage as part of
corporate monitoring process and
budgeting process
Monitor applications for relief and
appeals
Regular monitoring of business rate
income and appeals through Cumbria
pool, particularly relating to Sellafield
due to abnormally large rateable
value.

Appendix 7

Risk Prioritisation Matrix
A

23,29,32

4

11, 11a

8, 13, 24,
26, 28

17,18,30,
31

3, 15

1, 5, 6, 7,
9, 10, 13,
16, 19, 20,
21, 22, 25,
27

12, 14,
32

2

4

3

2

1

Negligible

Marginal

Serious

Critical

High

B
Page 146

Likelihood

Medium

C
Low

D
Very Low

Impact
Colour key:
Low priority risks which require annual review
Priority risks which require mitigating controls and quarterly review

7

1
Revenue budget & Capital Programme not integrated & aligned with Council Plan.
2
The programme of budget reductions does not deliver the required level of savings
to correct the forecast inherent budget deficit.
3
The Customer Connect Programme does not deliver the organisational changes
and efficiency savings included in budget forecasts.
4
Result of Brexit
5
Resources cannot be identified to fund new service development.
6
Further loss of income from investments as interest rates reduce.
7
Provisions for inflation are inadequate, income falls below targets, grant is
withdrawn suddenly
8
Government devolution approach diverts funding to other areas
9
The resilience of the budget is not re-enforced by the strengthening of reserves
and balances.
10
Government introduction of more stringent capping system through the
specification of levels above which a referendum will be triggered
11
Government proposals for localisation of business rates, including baseline reset
increase uncertainty of major income stream.
11a.
Government proposals for additional reliefs for business rates not fully funded
12
Council is reluctant to take the required challenging decisions in a number of
service areas e.g. fees & charges or grants payable
13
Budgetary control procedures are not understood and followed – higher likelihood
during period of organisational change.
14
Reduction in economic development funding if Cumbria LEP is unable to attract
significant funding.
15
The Council is unable to meet future demand for services
16
Pension funding
17
Costs of asset maintenanceexceed resources available.
18
Future demographic and other changes demand additional expenditure
19
Potential creation of Internal Drainage Board
20
Potential loss of surplus-generating assets through the proposed Community right
to bid and/or failure of assets transferred
21
Higher that estimated increase in costs due to international political uncertainty e.g.
fuel
22
Reduced ability to attract and retain suitably qualified staff. .
23
Welfare reform: additional costs of implementation of Universal Credit due to need
to support digital by default application process and payment to claimants rather than
landlords.
24
Procurement projects: projected savings not generated
25
Procurement projects: challenge to process
26
Closure of major employer
27
Legal challenge, particularly of charging regimes
28
Increased tax avoidance, particularly of business rates
29
Further changes to New Homes Bonus e.g. increase in threshold
30
Changes in shopping habits and other behavioural changes reduces income from
Council operations
31
Increased applications for rate reliefs and/or appeals
32
Cumbria Business Rate pool income lower than expected

Appendix 7

Opportunities

Page 147

Ref

Opportunity/Trigger

Consequence

Likelihood

Impact

A.

Regional Devolution

Medium

Significant

B.

Significant increase in
net dwellings
increases New Homes
bonus.

Removal of government restrictions and
barriers between organisations enabling
more localised decision making, for
example variation in Council Tax discounts
and premiums
Additional funding to support either
expansion of existing services, provision of
new services or prevents reduction in
existing services

High

Marginal

Actions to achieve this
opportunity
Discussions with other public
sector organisations and HM
Treasury
Maximise addition of properties (&
minimise removal of properties) on
valuation list by end of September
annually; maximise increase in
number of affordable homes
through planning requirements or
provision of support, financial or
otherwise. Likely to be abolished
from March 2020.
Although may be significant
increase in income, the Council
has commitment for use on
affordable housing and locally
important projects.

8

Appendix 7

Page 148

Ref

Opportunity/Trigger

Consequence

Likelihood

Impact

C.

Localisation of
business rates

Potentially could provide funding to support
either expansion of existing services,
provision of new services or prevent
reduction in existing services

High

Marginal

D.

Business rate pilot

Potentially could increase proportion of
business rate income retained locally,
either by Council or by Cumbria County
Council

Medium

Serious

E.

Shared services

Potentially could provide additional funding
to support either the existing level of
service or enhanced service levels

High

Marginal

F.

New advances in
technologies

Low

Marginal

G.

Community Groups
wishing to take over
services

Potentially could reduce staffing
requirements or existing non-staffing costs;
could permit new or enhanced services
Potential transfer of costs to alternative
provider who may be able to provide
existing services at lower cost or enhanced
services at existing cost

Low

Significant

9

Actions to achieve this
opportunity
The Government scheme of tariffs
limits the potential for significant
gains from increased business
rates. Monitor planning
applications, Local Plan proposals
etc.
Cumbria Pilot bid was
unsuccessful for 2018/19 and
2019/20.
Impact beyond April 2020 is
impossible to predict due to
uncertainties around Government
proposals for business rates.
Review existing services, work
with other public services in the
area to review service provision
and potential sharing of services:
depends on finding a partner.
Monitor developments in
technology
Monitor requests, including those
under the Community Right to
Challenge. Currently there
appears little appetite or capacity
for further transfers.

Appendix 7

Ref

Opportunity/Trigger

Consequence

Likelihood

Impact

H.

Opportunities for
generating additional
income for services –
relaxation of national
controls e.g. planning
fees
Significant increase in
economic development
funding if Cumbria LEP
is able to attract
significant funding
through bidding for
Regional Growth Fund
or Single Local Growth
Fund monies.
Cost of debt
repayment lower than
expected due to higher
long-term interest rates
and therefore PWLB
premiums reducing
Increased income from
investments as interest
rates improve.
Identification and
delivery of savings
enable funding of
programme of growth
and service
development

Potential increase in income

High

Marginal

Ability to improve employment prospects
within the district

Medium

Significant

Funding is allocated directly to
schemes so the Council is not
involved as accountable body but
funding would reduce pressure on
the Council’s capital programme to
support economic development
schemes.

Need to commit less capital receipts to
repayment of debt in order to deliver
interest payment reductions

High

Marginal

Monitor interest rates and repay
debt when premiums are
minimised if appropriate and in line
with treasury management
strategy.

Additional revenue income offsets need to
find savings to balance budget deficit.

Low

Marginal

Additional revenue savings beyond those
needed to offset budget deficit

Low

Marginal

Close monitoring of returns,
minimal levels of projected interest
receipts in MTFP financial model.
Close monitoring of deliverability
of proposed savings

I.

Page 149

J.

K.
L.

10

Actions to achieve this
opportunity
Monitor proposals, respond to
consultation

Appendix 7

Ref

Opportunity/Trigger

Consequence

Likelihood

Impact

M.

Corporate assets
generate new income
streams, either
revenue or capital
Result of Brexit may
potentially change
estimated levels of
growth, inflation,
interest etc.

Additional income to offset budget deficit or
to supplement capital programme.

High

Marginal

Actions to achieve this
opportunity
Review each asset for alternative
use or sale in accordance with the
Corporate Asset Strategy

The Council may have opportunity to
amend the capital and revenue spending
plans to react to changes in funding and
potential lower levels of expenditure

High

Serious

Monitor impact of decision

N.

Page 150
11

Appendix 8
Glossary
Baseline Funding Level
The Government’s assessment of the Council’s share of business rates. For 2013/14 this
was based on actual NNDR collected in 2009/10 and 2010/11. From 2014/15 this is
increased by inflation adjusted for revaluations.
This is due to be reset from April 2020; the details of how this will be calculated is still to be
confirmed.

Best Value
A general duty for local authorities to demonstrate that they deliver high quality services that
provide overall value including economic, environmental and social value.

Budget
A statement defining the Council’s policies over a specified period of time in terms of
finance. Budgets usually include statements about the use of other resources (e.g.,
numbers of staff) and provide some information on performance measures.

Budget Requirement
The estimated revenue expenditure on General Fund services that needs to be financed
from the Council Tax, Business Rates and Formula Grant after deducting income from fees
and charges, certain specific grants and any funding from reserves.

Business rates
Income collected from non-domestic ratepayers, formally known as Non-Domestic Rates
(see below).

Capital Expenditure
Spending that will provide benefit over a period of years. This includes spending on the
acquisition, construction or improvements of assets (e.g. land, building, vehicles, and
equipment) either directly by the Council or indirectly by grants or loans to others. Capital
expenditure is defined by legislation: items falling outside of the definition must be charged
to a revenue account.

1

Page 151

Appendix 8
Capital Programme
A schedule of the Council’s capital expenditure plans for a period of several years together
with the funds that will pay for that spending.

Capital Receipts
The proceeds from the sale of land or other assets. Capital receipts can be used to finance
new capital expenditure within rules set down by the Government, but they cannot be used
to finance revenue expenditure.
Until April 2004, the Government set proportions of receipts that were usable for capital
expenditure or reserved (set-aside) for debt redemption.
Since April 2004 receipts can be re-invested in new capital expenditure, subject to
affordability.

Capping
A system of controlling the spending of local authorities whereby Central Government limits
a local authority’s budget requirement either because it is deemed excessive or is deemed
to show an excessive increase over the previous year. Direct capping by Ministers was
replaced for the 2012/13 Council Tax setting process by local referendums if Council Tax
increased by more than the amount specified by Ministers.

Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
Payment from developers for new construction: shared with parishes and must be used for
agreed infrastructure projects.

Contingency
Money set-aside in the budget to meet the cost of unforeseen items of expenditure, or
shortfalls in income and to provide for inflation that exceeds that provided in service
budgets.

Council Plan
A document that sets out the Council’s policies, priorities, objectives and targets for a period
of several years. The Plan is reviewed annually.

Council Tax
The main source of local taxation to local authorities, Council Tax is levied on households
within the South Lakeland area by the District Council and the proceeds are paid to
2

Page 152

Appendix 8
Cumbria County Council, Cumbria Police and Crime Commissioner, Parish Councils and its
own General Fund.

Damping
The damping mechanism ensured that each authority received a minimum cash increase,
or maximum decrease, in formula grant each year: for losing councils like South Lakeland,
in the past grant was maintained at this ‘floor’ level via redistribution from gaining
authorities. Under the current arrangements the level of damping has been frozen until
2020. Future proposals for damping are still being developed for funding beyond April
2020.

Debt Charges
A term for the interest paid on loans raised and repayments of principal. Also known as
capital financing costs or loan charges.

Direct Revenue Financing
See Revenue Contributions to Capital.

Estimates
The amounts which are expected to be spent, or received as income, during an accounting
period. The term is also used to describe detailed budgets, which are either being prepared
for the following year, or have been approved for the current year.

External Audit
The independent examination of the activities and accounts of local authorities to ensure
the accounts have been prepared in accordance with legislative requirements and proper
practices and to ensure the authority has made proper arrangements to secure economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. Since October 2012 the Council’s
external auditors are Grant Thornton under a contract monitored by Public Sector Audit
Appointments Ltd. They are required to follow the Audit Code of Practice set by the National
Audit Office.

Fees and Charges
Income raised by charging users of services for the facilities. For example, local authorities
usually make charges for the use of leisure facilities, car parks, planning, building
regulations, collection of trade refuse etc.

3

Page 153

Appendix 8
Financial Procedure Rules
A written code of procedures approved by the Council as part of its Constitution, intended to
provide a framework for proper financial management. These usually set out rules on
accounting, audit, administrative procedures and budgeting systems.

Fund of Revenue Monies for Capital Purposes
A reserve set up by the Council by contributions from the General Fund revenue account to
provide additional funds to supplement its capital programme and to meet one-off spending
associated with capital schemes that fall outside the definition of capital expenditure in
legislation.

General Fund
The main revenue account of the District Council. Day-to-day spending on services is met
from the fund. Spending on the provision of Council housing, however, must be charged to
a separate Housing Revenue Account if the Council increases its housing stock above a
certain level of properties.

Gross Expenditure
The total cost of providing the Council’s services before taking into account income from
Government grants and fees and charges for services.

Growth
Any increase in spending from one year to another which enables the Authority to pay for
more services (staff, goods, etc) rather than to meet higher costs.
Growth items are also referred to as investment or service development items. Proposals
for growth are subject to a competitive bidding evaluation process to assess their
contribution to corporate outcomes or statutory/health and safety requirements before being
considered for inclusion in the revenue budget.

Interest and Investment Income
Surplus cash funds held by the Council (reserves, balances, set-aside capital receipts,
temporary cash receipts) are invested in order to earn interest that is credited to its revenue
accounts.

Internal Audit
An independent appraisal function established by the management of an organisation for
the review of the internal control system as a service to the organisation. It objectively
4

Page 154

Appendix 8
examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of internal control as a contribution to the
proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.

Levy (business rates)
Payable to the Government: 50% of income retained by the district council over the
baseline funding level. There will be changes to the levy as part of the Government’s
proposed move to 75% rate retention.

Net Expenditure
Gross expenditure less specific services income, but before deduction of revenue support
grant.

Non-Domestic Rates
Income collected from business ratepayers: calculated as a rateable value (set by the
Valuation Office Agency, reviewed on a change in circumstances or as part of an annual
revaluation: the last revaluation was in 2017) and a multiplier (set by Government, usually
increased by inflation but capped at a 2% increase from April 2014). Collected by the district
council the income is currently shared with central government (50%), county council (10%)
and retained by the district council (40%). Tariffs and top-ups are used to equalise income
to need as assessed under the old formula grant settlement but it is intended the formula
will not updated from the 2013/14 local government settlement until reset in 2020. Levy of
50% is payable on income above baseline: safety net payments are available if income falls
below 92.5% of baseline.

Outturn
Actual income and expenditure in a financial year.

Pooling
A number of councils can form a business rate pool: the baseline funding levels are pooled.
In practice this reduces levy to be paid but also reduces the ability to claim safety net if
income falls. A pool has to be approved by the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local
Government annually according to a pre-set timetable.

Provisions and Reserves/Funds
Amounts set aside in one year to cover expenditure in the future. Provisions are for
liabilities or losses which are likely or certain to be incurred, but the amounts or the dates on
which they will arise are uncertain. Reserves are amounts set aside which do not fall within
the definition of provisions and include general reserves (or ‘balances’) which every
authority must maintain as a matter of prudence.
5

Page 155

Appendix 8
Procurement
Procurement is the process of acquiring goods, works and services, covering both
acquisition from third parties and from in-house providers. The process spans the whole
cycle from identification of needs through to the end of a services contract or the end of the
useful life of an asset. Procurement involves obtaining best value for money by choosing
the option that offers the optimum combination of whole life costs and benefits to meet the
customer’s requirement.

Prudential Regime/Prudential Code
Until 31 March 2004, local authorities’ capital spending was controlled by Central
Government, largely by limiting their borrowing. In April 2004 the Government introduced a
new prudential system for capital finance. As well as using capital receipts and revenue
monies to finance capital expenditure, Councils can now borrow up to limits set by
themselves so long as their decisions can be shown to be affordable and prudent. The
system is governed by a statutory code which local authorities are obliged to follow.

Reserves
See Provisions and Reserves

Revenue Contributions to Capital
Resources provided from an authority’s revenue budget to finance expenditure on capital
projects, frequently as a ‘top-up’ to other capital resources. Also known as Direct Revenue
Financing (DRF).

Revenue Expenditure/Revenue Account
Running costs, including employees, premises, supplies, services and debt charges. These
are recorded in revenue accounts together with income from Government grants, fees and
charges.

Revenue Support Grant (RSG)
A grant paid by Central Government to aid local authority services in general, as opposed to
specific grants, which may only be used for a specific purpose.
Grant is distributed to Councils based on the Government’s assessment of their spending
needs. This is determined by a set of formulae that reflect factors such as population,
geography, deprivation and economic characteristics.

6

Page 156

Appendix 8
Right to Buy (RTB)
A Government scheme whereby tenants of Council houses are offered incentives to buy
their homes. The sale proceeds represent capital receipts for the Council. Following the
housing transfer some tenants still have a preserved right to buy: as part of the transfer
agreement the Council shares the proceeds of sales from March 2012.

Spending Power
Term introduced by the local government finance settlement in December 2010 to take into
account other sources of fund when comparing government grant allocation between
authorities. Spending power is the total of Council Tax, formula grant and specific grants.

Tariff
Payments to the Government due under localisation of business rates: the difference
between the income expected to an authority and the authority’s baseline funding level, set
as part of the local government finance settlement.

Top-ups
Payments from the Government under localisation of business rates if the income expected
to an authority is less than the authority’s baseline funding level, the opposite of a tariff.

Treasury Management
Management of the Council’s cash flow, borrowing and investments, governed by agreed
policies and annual statements.

Value for Money (VFM)
A much-used term that describes a service or product that demonstrates a good balance
between its cost, quality and usefulness to the customer. A VFM audit takes into account
the economy, efficiency and effectiveness (known as the ‘three Es’) of a local authority
service, function or activity. The current vfm assessment considers: “In all significant
respects, the audited body takes properly informed decisions and deploys resources to
achieve planned and sustainable outcomes for taxpayers and local people.”

Zero Based Budgeting
An approach to building budgets up from scratch which is essential when creating a new
budget and useful when reviewing budgets or calculating estimates for periodic and ad hoc
income and expenditure. Under this approach, estimates are constructed on the basis of
the individual activities the authority plans to enter into and the particular revenues it
expects to generate.
7

Page 157

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 158

Item No.13
South Lakeland District Council
Overview and Scrutiny Committee: 12 July 2019
Cabinet: 17 July 2019

Annual Procurement Update 2018/19
Portfolio:

Andrew Jarvis - Finance and Resources Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Phil Lowe – Interim Procurement Manager

Report Author:

Helen Smith – Finance Lead Specialist (Section 151 Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

Key Decision included in the Forward Plan as published on 18 June
2019

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report provides an update on progress across the procurement function and
against the Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 2016-2019. This
is a historic review for noting by Members

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that Overview and Scrutiny Committee:(1)
note the progress across the procurement function over the past 12
months; and
(2)

2.2

note the updated Procurement Schedule at Appendix 2

It is recommended that Cabinet:(1)
note the progress across the procurement function over the past 12
months; and
(2)

approve the updated Procurement Schedule at Appendix 2

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The Procurement Team has been extremely busy over the past 12 months
supporting the delivery of a large number of procurement exercises for goods,
services and works..

3.2

The Procurement Team has played an integral role in procurement activity across the
Council. Over the past 12 months the team’s primary focus has been to support a
wide variety of procurement exercises. The Council has been going through a
significant transformation programme but the procurement team has continued to
deliver both programmes and advice to ensure that the council meets its objectives
and continues to deliver best value and ensure compliance.

3.3

The Procurement team has and continues to deliver a large number of Procurements
for Goods, Services and Works. The Procurement schedule for 2108/2019 lists
Eighty Six (86) of these the significant points to note are:-

Page 159

- 49 “complete”
- 8 “work-in-progress”
- 5 “not required”
- 4 “scope change”
- 2 “not started”
- 1 “on hold”
- 17 “carry forward” to the Procurement Schedule 2019-20
3.4 Of strategic importance, the team have lead the successful procurements of:
3.4.1

Insurance Tender – this contract was awarded to the incumbent provider
providing continuity of Service but as a result of amending the service
requirement we have enabled both cash and none cash able savings

3.4.2

Playground’s – A great deal of work of work has been delivered to enable
sites such as Abbot Hall, Millerground and Howe Bank/Hayclose Road to be
delivered to users. We have also engaged in a more proactive strategy with
the market that was evidenced by way of a supplier’s day with all the major
suppliers which was received well by the suppliers.

3.4.3

Kendal Markets – We have been working collaboratively with Lambert Smith
Hampton to develop a long term future model for both the indoor and outdoor
markets including a market testing exercise to ascertain what models of
delivery are available.

3.4.4

Bloom – As part of the strategy of being more accessible for suppliers to work
the council we are holding a suppliers day in partnership with Bloom for over
40 people.

3.4.5

IT – as part of the transformation project and shared services we are working
closely with IT colleagues to enable the customer connect programme to be
delivered as well as ensuring that we strive to make best use of technology.

3.4.6

Grange Lido – We are progressing with the Lido site in conjunction with
stakeholders and are engaging actively with external stakeholders and
ensuring the council find and make a programme that ensures the best for the
project

3.4.7

Kendal Town Hall – Work continues to progress and consultants have been
appointed to progress matters to the next RIBA stages

3.4.8

Bulky waste Contract- Awarded to an SME and allowing growth in the local
economy

3.4.9

Ulverston Leisure Centre- Work continues on the feasibility study with
appointment made off the Scape framework for both developer and project
management

3.4.10 Arboriculture Contracting Framework – Awarded after numerous attempts in
the past and performing well
3.5

The Procurement team continues to work closely with the Corporate Asset Manager
and the Property Services Provider (Lambert Smith Hampton) to deliver over twenty
property-related procurement projects covering servicing and works contracts.

3.6

Ten procurement exercises for specialist professional services have been conducted
utilising the Bloom Procurement Services framework. The use of this framework has
proved to be a very flexible and faster, more efficient route to market than performing
a full tender exercise via the Council’s e-tendering portal, The Chest.

Page 160

3.7

Appendix 1 shows progress during 2018/19 against the priorities of the Council’s
Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy.

3.8

Since April 2016 the Council’s Constitution has permitted officers to conduct and
conclude the contracting processes without further approval providing it is in line with
the Procurement Schedule, to be approved by Council at least annually. Where a
procurement process is over budget then approval will still be required in accordance
with the Financial Procedure Rules. Where an officer seeks approval for a waiver or
exemption under the Contract Procedure Rules this is also included in the
Procurement Schedule. An updated Procurement Schedule for 2019/20 is attached
at Appendix 2 which includes some additional procurement exercises not approved in
February 2019.

3.9

As part of the Customer Connect programme the Council has restructured staffing
and responsibilities. A Commissioning Framework is currently being prepared which
will complement the Procurement Strategy. The current Procurement Strategy will
be reviewed and updated during the current year and the revised version is expected
to be approved in December 2019.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

The Procurement Team maintains an open dialogue about the performance of the
procurement function with Operations Managers directly.

4.2

Discussions have taken place with Purchasing Consortia and various members of the
council’s supplier base which have proven helpful in tailoring the procurement
process in a way which is supplier friendly but also results in arrangements that offer
value for money.

4.3

With changes to the national context including amendments to the EU Procurement
Directives, introduction of a new National Procurement Strategy and further
obligations under the Transparency Code, it has proven vital to maintain links outside
of Cumbria as part of “environmental scanning” to understand the most successful
way in adopting these.

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

An annual update to Overview and Scrutiny does not take place. However, falling
under the portfolio for Finance it is vital that the procurement function continues to be
driven and supported by members and senior managers. This will result in a more
accountable and focussed procurement function delivering positive outcomes
financially and in the quality of council services.

5.2

The Procurement Schedule is not updated – this reduces the efficiency of the Council
by requiring individual reports and decisions for tender exercises. This also
increases the time taken to let contracts.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

The Procurement Strategy is a key element of ensuring excellent, value for money
services. It also contributes to creating an environment for people to thrive,
leadership and influencing others, empowering customers and communities and
demonstrating that the Council is forward thinking and innovative through the design
and specification of contracts and services.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

Excluding staffing, there is an annual procurement budget of £18,415.00 which
supports procurement IT tools, activities and training.

Page 161

10.1.2 There are no direct financial implications of the Procurement Strategy although
cashable and non-cashable efficiency savings are anticipated. The Procurement
Strategy and the Contract Procedure Rules within the Constitution are a key element
of corporate governance and contribute directly to delivery of value for money.
Human Resources
7.2

During the past 12 months the Procurement Team has been maintained a function of
one permanent post and an interim, a Procurement Officer/Case manager and an
interim Procurement and contracts Manager/Specialist.

Legal
7.3

European Regulations were transposed early into UK law as The Public Contracts
Regulations 2015 on 26th February 2015. This has resulted in significant changes to
procurement activity as follows:






A greater flexibility to negotiate for example, the new Competitive Procedure with
Negotiation was used to great effect to deliver a new fit-for-purpose Property
Services
Further focus on the pre-procurement phase, predominantly market consultation
– for example, market testing exercise for revenues and benefits software to
support the delivery of Customer Connect.
A simplified selection process with the new national Pre-Qualification
Questionnaire adopted by the Council
All tender documentation is prepared prior to publication of the contract
opportunity in accordance with the new requirements, including scoring criteria.
The Council has been using the electronic tendering portal, The Chest for years
in advance of E-tendering becoming mandatory by April 2017

There is still uncertainty in the long term of the legal obligations that will arise out of
Brexit it is clear that in policy notes from the Cabinet Office that it is “business as
usual” until advised .In the short term there appears that there will be no direct impact
on the operations of the Procurement Team.
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
Objectives are set at the start of each individual procurement exercise including any
relating to social value.
The Procurement Team encourages Officers to consider how to obtain social value in
all tenders and to consider sustainability at the ‘identify need’ stage of the
procurement cycle
Access for Small and Medium Enterprises and Voluntary, Charity and Social
Enterprises is considered through pre-market engagement, ensuring that strategies
for organising procurements into lots does not create unwanted barriers for smaller
businesses, and through advertising tender opportunities via The Chest, “Contracts
Finder”, and the Council websites.
Work continues on the establishment of a Social Value Policy to support the
Procurement Strategy.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? Yes (attached at Appendix 3)

Page 162

7.8

Summary of equality and diversity impacts: There are no significant equality and
diversity impacts.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Procurement activity does not
comply with the legal framework

The council is subject to
legal challenge which
carries both risk in terms
of cost and reputation

All procurement activity is
run through the
Procurement Team with
input from Legal as
necessary

Results of procurement activity
do not offer value for money to
the communities of South
Lakeland

The council’s reputation is
brought into question for
its handling of council
budgets and ratepayer’s
money

Continue to consider cost,
quality and added value in
all procurement activity
with support from the
Procurement Team.

The Sustainable Procurement
and Commissioning Strategy is
not delivered in full

The council delivers a
procurement function
which does not fully
support the council in
delivering its priorities to
being the best place to
live, work and explore

Continued liaison with
internal officers and
external agencies to
support the Procurement
Team in delivering the
Strategy

Contact Officers
Phil Lowe, Procurement and Contracts Manager, (01539) 73 3333,
Phillip.Lowe@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Actions against the Procurement and Commissioning Strategy
Priorities

2

Procurement Schedule 2019/20

3

Equality Impact Assessment

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Sustainable Procurement and
Commissioning Strategy 20192021

Procurement

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
SMT

Date sent
27/6/19
20/6/19
21/6/19
21/6/19

Page 163

Circulated to
Human Resources Manager
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
21/6/19
N/A
12/7/19
17/7/19
23/7/19

Page 164

Appendix 1

Actions against the Procurement and Commissioning Strategy
Priorities
1. Making Savings
1.1. The main objective of the procurement function is to deliver Value for Money and
ensure corporate governance and to meet the needs of local citizens.
1.2. Tenders are evaluated on the basis of “MEAT”(most economically advantageous)
criteria which take into account the optimum balance of “Quality” and “Price” rather
than awarding to the cheapest bidder.
1.3. Tenders are frequently offered on the basis of a “capped budget” to ensure that bids
are affordable and therefore we are seeking to maximise the quality element and
ensure that we get what we can from the resources allocated.
1.4. The majority of procurement projects undertaken during 2018 have been property
related. Financial pressures have been encountered when inviting tenders for Works
contracts. The Procurement Team, Corporate Asset Manager and the Property
Services Provider (Lambert Smith Hampton) have worked together to minimise the
impact of inflationary pressures through value-engineering schemes to bring them
within the allowed budget.
2. Supporting Local Economies
2.1. Work has continued to take place with Officers across the Council to develop
outcome specifications which require a certain outcome rather than specifying inputs
and outputs which are not overly restrictive and rely more on the expertise of the
market. Used as appropriate, outcome specifications enable a more flexible and
intelligent approach to procurement. In line with the Social Value Act this can
support the council in obtaining more socio-economic and environmental benefits for
the communities of South Lakeland. The local community groups was invited to
input to the specification for the Playgrounds specifications and users are involved in
the process.
2.2. The procurement documentation has been updated to support the council priority for
economic growth, the environment and ethical trading. By doing so and by tailoring
procurement exercises so that they are proportional and relevant it is expected that
contractual arrangements offering better value for the people of South Lakeland will
be a common theme.
2.3. Discussions are ongoing about the introduction of a social Value policy which may
assist in the future conduct of procurement exercises to enable great use of Socio,
economic and environmental impacts of future programmes to assist the local
supply chain
3. Leadership
3.1. Over the past year, the Procurement Team has provided support to Officers at
South Lakeland District Council (SLDC) across all directorates including:•

Improvements in the IT and shared services provision.

•

Kendal Markets

•

Kendal Town Hall

•

Ulverston Leisure centre

Page 165

3.2. The Procurement Team has continued to work with other authorities in Cumbria and
the North West as appropriate to share best practice, work on joint initiatives, and
undertake collaborative procurement exercises. The Council collaborated with
Carlisle City Council for their Disabled facilities grant Framework .We actively
cooperate in cross authority knowledge transfer in EPIC meetings
3.3. The Procurement Team has attended a seminar on “Evaluation Techniques” with
colleagues from other regional councils
4. Modernising Procurement
4.1. Following review by all Senior and Operational Managers, the Council’s first
Procurement Schedule and Addendum was approved on 31 March 2016. This has
aided forward planning across the procurement function and enabled a more
auditable system for tracking progress against procurement activity.
4.2. Procurement processes have continued to be reviewed and adapted to respond to
feedback from suppliers and to meet the requirements of the new Public Contracts
Regulations 2015. With the process slimmed down making it more efficient yet still
robust enough to safeguard the council, positive outcomes are being realised that
deliver value for money as a result of procurement activity.
4.3. The Council’s Contract Procedure Rules have been reviewed and updated to further
streamline procurement processes, which will reduce bureaucracy and result in the
faster award of contracts. The new rules came into effect on 1st April 2019 and
include an approved annual Procurement Schedule to be agreed by Council for all
procurement exercises.
4.4. Relationships with professional buying consortia have been developed to enable
effective procurement of playgrounds (Eastern Shires Purchasing Organisation);
specialist consultancy services (North East Purchasing Organisation; and energy
(Yorkshire Purchasing Organisation).
5. Embedding Delivery
5.1. Enabling and delivering opportunities for sustainable economic growth through
encouraging local suppliers to bid for Council contracts and writing contract
specifications that will make a positive impact on the local economy and community.
This is evidenced in the procurement of property assisted projects through the
Bloom framework and working with suppliers and developing relationships through
the supplier’s day.
5.2. Providing homes to meet need – supported by the procurement of a new Disabled
Facilities Grant Framework to ensure that meet the needs of users and their wishes
5.3. Protecting and enhancing our environment. The new Property Services provider will
provide specialist advice on how to reduce energy consumption across the Council’s
buildings as part of the contract specification.
5.4. Improving health and reducing health inequalities through engaging with the
community to understand their needs. The local community groups supported the
development of the specification for new playground.
5.5. Commissioning services which are environmentally and socially responsible.
Consultants were procured to deliver analysis of private water supply
6. Monitoring and Review
6.1. The Procurement and Contracts Manager is responsible for monitoring and
reviewing Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy 2019-2021. The
strategy remains fit-for-purpose and significant progress has been made over the
past year.

Page 166

6.2. A review of the procurement function and the Council’s management of contracts
was undertaken as part of the customer connect transformation programme.

Page 167

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 168

Appendix 2

Procurement Schedule 2019/20

TITLE

START DATE

END DATE

Responsible Officer

Portfolio Holder

Ward

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT

Review Date

EXTENSION EST.VALUE £
(if applicable)

PROCUREMENT
PROCESS

DECISION
ROUTE

CONTRACT
TYPE

STATUS

Renewal of the Arboricultural Framework for the
provision of emergency & maintenance of trees
across the district.
Renewal of the Banking Services Contract

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

N/A

100K-OJEU

Exemption

Cabinet

Purchase & support of the Choice Based Lettings
System
Supply & support Telephone system

N/A

>OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

Contract
Not Started
Renewal
New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Exemption

New Contract Not Started

100K-OJEU

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

N/A

>OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

New Contract Not Started

N/A

100K-OJEU

Exemption

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

N/A

10-100K

Framework

One-off

Provision of Internal Audit Services
Purchase & support of IT Back up & Diaster
Recovery
Purchase & support of system

2 Years
N/A

>OJEU
10-100K

Tender
Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet
Administration

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

New Items for approval July 2019:

Page 169

Arboricultural Contracting Framework

01/05/2019

01/05/2019 Nicholson, Graham

Eric Morrell

All

Banking Services

30/04/2021

30/04/2021 Read, Claire

Andrew Jarvis

All

Choice Based Lettings System

01/05/2019

01/05/2019 Powell, Sue

Jonathan Brook

All

Contact Call Centre Management

30/04/2021

30/04/2021 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

All

Cumbria wide Disabled Facilities Adaptations

01/05/2019

30/04/2021 Bradley, David

Jonathan Brook

All

Cumbria wide Framework for the provision of Stairlifts

01/08/2019

31/07/2023 Bradley, David

Eric Morrell

All

Data Centres

01/09/2019

31/08/2024 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

All

Disposal of Green Waste (Ulverston)

01/04/2020

31/03/2022 Florentine, Paul

Eric Morrell

HR Payroll System

01/09/2019

31/08/2024 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

Ulverston East & West Contract for the disposal of green garden waste
collected from 18,000 households in the
Ulverston area
All
Purchase & support of the HR & Payroll system

Internal Audit Services
IT Back up and Diaster Recovery

01/04/2020
01/10/2019

31/03/2022 Smith, Helen
30/09/2024 Wright, Ben

Andrew Jarvis
Jonathan Brook

All
All

Leadership Development Programme

01/07/2019

30/06/2020 Johnson-Metcalfe,
Kerry

Eric Morrell

All

Legal Management System

01/09/2019

31/08/2024 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

All

Purchase & support of a Legal Management
System

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Mobile Phones & Data/Voice Contract

01/09/2019

31/08/2023 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

All

Provision mobile phones and data and voice
contract.

N/A

10-100K

Framework

Tablets and similar devices for mobile working

01/09/2019

31/03/2020 Wright, Ben

Jonathan Brook

All

Pruchase of Tablets & similar devices for mobile
working and members

N/A

10-100K

Framework

Westmorland Shopping Centre Car Park Advertising
Licence

01/09/2019

31/08/2020 Maguire, Jim

Eric Morrell

Kendal Town

A licence for the permisison to advertise on
boards around the Westmorland Shopping
Centre Car Park.

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

3 Electric & Water Bollards for public Jetties at Ferry
Nab
Abbot Hall Playground improvements

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Flannigan, Frankie

Bowness & Levens

10-100K

Quotes

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

N/A

100K-OJEU

Archers Meadow Playground

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Kendal East

Purchase of 3 Electric & water bollards for the
public jetties at Ferry Nab, Windermere.
Improvements to the playground at Abbot Hall,
Kendal
Purchase of playgournd equipment for Archers
Meadow

N/A

01/04/2019

Lake Administration
Committee
Dyan Jones

N/A

10-100K

Automatic Doors and Roller Shutters maintenance

01/04/2019

31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Maintenance of the Automatic Doors and roller
shutters

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Boiler Servicing

01/04/2019

31/03/2022 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

All servicing of boilers, gas appliances, gas safety
inspections, ventilation and boiler control panels

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Framework agreement for the provision of
buildings and construction services for disabled
adaptations for level access showers, shower
toilets, door widening, modular ramps and
heating systems
A framework for the provision of stairlifts under
the DFG scheme across Cumbria. The
procurement exercise is being led by Carlisle City
Council.
Purchase & support of Data Centre Hardware.

30/11/2020 2 Years

New Contract Not Started

Contract Renewal
Not Started

Not Started

Contract Renewal
Not Started
Contract
Not Started
Renewal
One-off
Not Started

New Contract Not Started

New Contract Not Started

One-off

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

Administration

One-off

Not Started

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

Porfolio Holder Feb 19:

Approved February 2019:

Kendal Town

Appendix 2

Procurement Schedule 2019/20

TITLE

Page 170

Portfolio Holder

Ward

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT

Braithwaite Fold Car Park Re-surfacing - Consultant
appointment

START DATE
01/04/2019

END DATE

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Responsible Officer

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Resurfacing work to Braithwaite Fold Car Park

Review Date

EXTENSION EST.VALUE £
(if applicable)
30/09/2019 N/A
10-100K

Braithwaite Fold Car Park resurfacing - Contractor
appointment
Braithwaite Fold Caravan Site Management
Agreement
Broadgate Meadow, Grasmere Playground
Improvement
Car Park investment General - Consultant
Appointment

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Resurfacing work to Braithwaite Fold Car Park

N/A

100K-OJEU

01/04/2020

31/03/2030 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Management of Braithwaite Fold Caravan Park

N/A

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Ambleside & Grasmere To carry out playground improvements at
Broadgate Meadow, Grasmere
Kendal Town
Investment and general upgrade works needed
to car parks

Car Park Investments General - Contractor
appointment
Car Park Pay by Phone
Cash Collection Service

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

01/10/2019
01/04/2019

30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie
31/10/2021 Flannigan, Frankie

Graham Vincent
Graham Vincent

All
All

Castlefield and Greenbank Play Area

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Collection of Clinical Waste

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Disable Changing Facility at Millerground

01/04/2019

Energy Saving Enhancements across the portfolio Building Contractor

PROCUREMENT
PROCESS
LSH Additional
Work

CONTRACT
TYPE
One-off

STATUS

Tender

DECISION
ROUTE
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

>OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

Contract
Renewal
One-off

Not Started

Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Framework

Cabinet

30/09/2019 N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

One-off

Not Started

30/09/2019 N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

N/A
1 Year

10-100K
10-100K

Quotes
Framework

Administration
Administration

New Contract Not Started
New Contract Not Started

Ambleside & Grasmere Improvements to the playground at Castlefield
and Greenbank, Ambleside

N/A

10-100K

Framework

One-off

Dyan Jones

All

Collection of Clinical waste from private
residence throughout the district.

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Windermere

N/A

10-100K

Tender

One-off

Not Started

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

Engineering capacity assessments to car parks Consultant

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

N/A

10-100K

Bloom
Procurement
Services

Delegated
Executive
Decision

One-off

Not Started

Feasability Study of South Lakeland House (RIBA stage
2 & 3)

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

Not Started

01/04/2019

31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Fire Appliances and Fire & Intruder Alarms

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

Fleet Maintenance Workshop Equipment Servicing

01/04/2019

31/03/2022 Florentine, Paul

Dyan Jones

All

Framework for the purchase of Gas oil

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Dyan Jones

All

Framework for the purchase of vehicle parts

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Dyan Jones

All

Grange Lido - Consultant Appointment from RIBA 4 to
RIBA 6

01/04/2019

31/08/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Grange

To create a changing area and toilet facilities
suitable for disable access.
Part of Capital Programme and there is £149k to
invest in SLDC building portfolio in low carbon
solutions
Engineering assessment to look at the access/
egress of Rydal Road, Ambleside; assessment to
look at hardstanding at Braithwaite Fold and to
consider increased capacity in other SLDC car
parks.
RIBA stage 2 & 3 to provide detailed design and
cost estimates for the refurbishment of South
Lakeland House
Provision of Fire Appliances and Service contract
for Fire, Security Alarms, CCTV and Emergency
Lighting.
The maintenance and servicing of equipment in
the Fleet Maintenance vehicle workshop
Set up a framework for the purchase of Gas Oil
for Depots and lake wardens use.
Set up a framework for the purchase of vehicle
parts
Refurbishment to Grange Lido

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Grange Lido - Contractor Appointment
Grange Lido structural repair and refurbishment works
to create public open space

01/04/2019
01/04/2019

31/08/2020 Thomas, Sion
31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent
Graham Vincent

Grange
Grange

Grange Promenade Structural Repairs - Building
Contractor
Grange Promenade Structural Repairs - Consultant

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Grange

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Grange

Homeless accomodation for families - Consultant
appointment

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Homeless accomodation for families - Contractor
apponitment

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Investment and general upgrade works needed
to car parks
Pay by Phone system for all Car Parks
Transportation of the Car Park Cash to the bank

Refurbishment to Grange Lido
RIBA stage 2,3 & 4 to provide detailed design
and cost estimates for the refurbishment fo the
Grange Lido and to take through to Tender
following completion of the Business Case.
To undertake structural repairs to sea wall
defence and upgrade the Grange Promenade
To undertake structural repairs to sea wall
defence and upgrade the Grange promenade.
Appoint consultant for all phases.
Refurbishment and remodel to various SLDC
properties to provide accomodation for
homeless families
Refurbishment and remodel to various SLDC
properties to provide accomodation for
homeless families

31/03/2021 N/A

Not Started

Not Started

New Contract Not Started

<10K

Quotes

Administration

New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Administration

New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Cabinet

New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Waiver

One-off

Not Started

30/09/2019 N/A
N/A

100K-OJEU
100K-OJEU

Tender
Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet
Cabinet

One-off
One-off

Not Started
Not Started

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

One-off

Not Started

30/09/2019 N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

One-off

Not Started

100K-OJEU

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

N/A

Appendix 2

Procurement Schedule 2019/20

TITLE

Page 171

Portfolio Holder

Ward

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT

In Cab Technology and Vehicle Tracking

START DATE
01/04/2019

END DATE

31/03/2029 Maguire, Jim

Responsible Officer

Dyan Jones

All

Kendal Market Service Review

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

The supply of an electronic management system
to provide communications across the Street
Scene service, integrate with existing systems
and manage performance
Review of the operating model of Kendal Market

Laptops & IT Equipment

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Jonathan Moloney

Jonathan Brook

All

Legionella Risk Assessments

01/04/2019

31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Legionella Servicing

01/04/2019

31/03/2019 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Lift Maintenance

01/04/2019

31/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Lightburn Park, Ulverston, Phase 1 masterplan
implementation - Playground Equipment

01/04/2019

30/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Ulverston East

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls Building Contractor

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

Lime re-pointing works to Castle Dairy external walls Consultant

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

Management of Service Contracts - Consultant

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Multifunctional Devices and Services (Office Printers)

01/09/2019

31/08/2022 McVey, Simon

Giles Archibold

All

New decking for public jetty No. 2 Ferry Nab

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Flannigan, Frankie

Bowness & Levens

North Lonsdale Road Playground

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Lake Administration
Committee
Dyan Jones

Owlett Ash Playground

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Arnside & Milnthorpe

Parking Management Software

01/10/2019

30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie

Jonathan Brook

All

Parkside Road Car Park - Building Contractor
Appointment

01/08/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Parkside Road Car Park - Consultant Appointment

13/08/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

Patrol Boat Engine

01/09/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Graham Vincent

Windermere

Private Water Supplies Sampling

01/12/2019

30/11/2021 Hall, Sean

Dyan Jones

All

Public Space Protection Order Signage

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

All

Pump Servicing

01/04/2019

31/03/2022 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

All

This project is to create a formalised car parking
area off Parkside Road which will be taken
forward if proven that this land will offer
suitable psrking provision for the Town and
wider area as part of the Kendal and Oxenholme
parking study.
This project is to create a formalised car park
area off Parkside Road. The project will be taken
forward if proven that this land will offer
suitable parking provision for the Town and
wider area as part of the Kendal and Oxenholme
Parking Study.
Purchase of a new low emmission engine for the
patrol boat.
To undertake routine sampling of private water
supplies within the district.
supply and installation of new PSPO signage
across the district at specified locations
Servicing of Pumping Equipment

Purchase of 3 upto 12T RCV
Purchase of 5 x RCV
Purchase of a Pressure Washer
Purchase of a Tractor for Ferry Nab

01/04/2019
01/04/2019
01/04/2019
01/04/2019

31/03/2020
31/03/2020
31/03/2020
31/03/2020

Dyan Jones
Dyan Jones
Dyan Jones
Lake Administration
Committee

All
All
All
Bowness & Levens

Purchase of 3 vehicles upto 12 t RCV
Purchase of 5 26T RCV
Purchase of a Pressure Washer
Purchase of a tractor for Ferry Nab

Maguire, Jim
Maguire, Jim
Maguire, Jim
Maguire, Jim

Ulverston East

Review Date

EXTENSION EST.VALUE £
(if applicable)
31/03/2021 N/A
100K-OJEU

PROCUREMENT
PROCESS
Framework

DECISION
ROUTE
Cabinet

CONTRACT
STATUS
TYPE
New Contract Not Started

Administration

One-off

Not Started

Administration

One-off

Not Started

Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Purchase of laptops & IT equipment throughout
the year via CCS framework agreement RM3733
Technology Products 2 Lot 6 catalogue

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work
Framework

Legionella Risk Assessments to all SLDC buildings
for a fixed 2 year contract which will include a
full risk assessment and review in the second
year
Legionella Risk Assessment, Bi Annual cleaning,
monthly and weekly site checks
Service Contract for Lift Maintenance

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision

One-off

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Cabinet

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Implementation of Phase 1 of the Lightburn
Park, Ulverston masterplan - Playground
Equipment
Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to
remove sand/cement pointing. Work will require
listed building application
Re-pointing to external walls of Castle Dairy to
remove sand/cement pointing work will require
listed building application
Delivery and Management of service contracts

N/A

10-100K

Framework

N/A

10-100K

Tender

N/A

<10K

LSH Additional
Work

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
On
Procurement
Schedule
Administration

Contract
Not Started
Renewal
New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

To supply Multifunctional devices and services
throughout SLDC offices
Re-deck jetty no. 2 as in a bad state of repair.

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work
Tender

N/A

10-100K

Purchase of playground equipment for North
Lonsdale Road Playground
Purchase of Playground equipment for Owlett
Ash playground
Renew software licences for Parking Managent
Software

N/A
N/A

One-off

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

Delegated Executive
One-off
Decision

Not Started

Delegated Executive
Contract
Decision
Renewal
Administration One-off

Not Started

Quotes

10-100K

Framework

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

10-100K

Framework

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

01/09/2018 N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

30/06/2019 N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

30/06/2019 N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

Administration

One-off

Not Started

30/06/2019 N/A

Not Started

Not Started

10-100K

Exemption

Administration

One-off

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

New Contract Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

Administration

One-off

Not Started

N/A

10-100K

Tender

Cabinet

Not Started

N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

100K-OJEU
>OJEU
<10K
10-100K

Framework
Framework
Quotes
Quotes

Cabinet
Cabinet
Administration
Administration

Contract
Renewal
One-off
One-off
One-off
One-off

Not Started
Not Started
Not Started
Not Started

Appendix 2

Procurement Schedule 2019/20

TITLE

Page 172

Portfolio Holder

Ward

DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACT

Purchase of Recycling Boxes and Lids
Purchase of upto 10 3.5T Collection Vehicles
Queens Park Play Area Improvements, Skate Park &
Football Area Improvements

START DATE
01/04/2019
01/04/2019
01/04/2019

END DATE

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim
31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim
31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Responsible Officer

Dyan Jones
Dyan Jones
Dyan Jones

All
All
Windermere

Purchase of Recycling Boxes and Lids
Purchase of upto 10 3.5T Collection Vehicles
Improvements made to the Play area, Skate Park
and Football area at Queens Park

Review Date

EXTENSION
(if applicable)
N/A
N/A
N/A

EST.VALUE £

PROCUREMENT
PROCESS
Quotes
Framework
Tender

DECISION
ROUTE
Cabinet
Administration
Cabinet

CONTRACT
TYPE
One-off
One-off
One-off

STATUS

10-100K
100K-OJEU
100K-OJEU

Rayrigg Meadow Car Park

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Clarke, Deborah

Dyan Jones

Windermere

Rayrigg Road Car Park works - Expansion - Contractor
appointment

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Extention to Rayrigg Meadow car park to
provide parking for Motor Homes.
Expansion to Rayrigg Road car Park, Ambleside

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

30/09/2019 N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

One-off

Not Started

30/09/2019 N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Rayrigg Road Car Park Works - Expansion - Contractor
Appointment
Replacement Wheeled Bins
Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road Cemetery

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Expansion of Rayrigg Road Car Park

01/04/2019
01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim
31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Dyan Jones
Graham Vincent

All
Kendal East

Purchase of Wheeled Bins
Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road
cemetery

N/A
N/A

One-off

Not Started

10-100K
10-100K

Framework
Tender

One-off
One-off

Not Started
Not Started

N/A

<10K

One-off

Not Started

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work
LSH Additional
Work

Administration
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Administration

Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road Cemetery Consultant
Rydal Road Car Park Works - Expansion - Consultant
Appointment

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal East

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Re-roofing works to Kendal Parkside Road
cemetery
Expansion to Rydal Road Car Park, Ambleside

One-off

Not Started

Tender

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Rydal Road Car Park works - Expansion - Contractor
Appointment
South Lakeland House Car Park Structural Repairs Building Contractor

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Bowness & Levens

Expansion of Rydal Road Car Park, Ambleside

30/09/2019 N/A

100K-OJEU

One-off

Not Started

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

Phase 2 of the works. Phase 1 was to undertake
any immediate repairs to the concrete structure
whilst a feasibility was concluded about the
Public Sector Hub and therefore the future need
for South Lakeland House and its Car Park.

N/A

100K-OJEU

Tender

Cabinet

One-off

Not Started

South Lakeland House Car Park Structural Repairs consultant

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

Graham Vincent

Kendal Town

Phase 2 of the works. Phase 1 was to undertake
any immediate repairs to the concrete structure
whilst a feasibility was concluded about the
public sector hub and therefore the future need
for South Lakeland House and the Car Park

N/A

10-100K

LSH Additional
Work

Delegated
Executive
Decision

One-off

Not Started

Supply of Car Park Tickets

01/10/2019

30/09/2023 Flannigan, Frankie

Graham Vincent

All

Supply of Car Park Tickets and the arrangement
of advertising.

N/A

10-100K

Tender

New Contract Not Started

All

Supply of office stationery for the authority.

N/A

10-100K

Framework

Graham Vincent

Grange

N/A

10-100K

Waiver

31/03/2020 Inston, Fiona

Jonathan Brook

Kendal Town

Refurbishment of the Grange Lido and to take
through to Tender following completion of the
Outline Business Case.
Provision of evening and weekend cover for the
Town View Fields Hostel

N/A

10-100K

Quotes

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Sykes, David

Robin Ashcroft

Ulverston East & West New Build - Ulverston Leisure Centre

30/09/2019 N/A

>OJEU

Framework

Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Delegated
Executive
Decision
Cabinet

Supply of Office Stationery Requirements

01/10/2019

30/09/2023 Moffatt, Pam

Andrew Jarvis

Technical design and contract administration for
Grange Lido Structural repair and refurbishment
works (RIBA 2 - 4)
Town View Fields Out of Hours Contract

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Thomas, Sion

01/04/2019

Ulverston Leisure Centre Design and Build - Contractor
Appointment
Ulverston Leisure Centre Developed Design to Riba
Stage 3 - Consultant appointment
Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment

01/04/2019

03/03/2021 Sykes, David

Robin Ashcroft

Ulverston East & West New Build Ulverston Leisure Centre

30/09/2019 N/A

100K-OJEU

Framework

Cabinet

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Dyan Jones

All

Purchase of Vehicle Reversing Safety Equipment

N/A

10-100K

Exemption

Cabinet

New Contract Not Started

Workshop equipment servicing

01/04/2019

31/03/2020 Maguire, Jim

Dyan Jones

All

<10K

Quotes

Administration

One-off

Not Started

01/06/2018

31/05/2021 Davison, Alison

Andrew Jarvis

All

Provide servicing for all the workshop
equipment
Enforcement and Collection Agency Service for
the collection of council tax, non-domestic rates
and sundry debts, including overpaid housing
benefit.

N/A

Enforcement and Collection Agency Service

2 Years

<10K

Tender

Cabinet

Concession
Contract

In Progress

Not Started
Not Started
Not Started

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

Contract
Renewal

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

One-off

Not Started

Appendix 3

EIA
Title:
1.0

Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy

The public sector equality duty (2011) covers the following eight protected
characteristics:
Age, disability, ethnicity, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation,
gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity.
The duty also covers marriage and civil partnership, but only relating to the
elimination of unlawful discrimination (see below, 2.0).

1.1

SLDC includes “rurality” and “socio-economic disadvantage” as
additional categories in its equality impact assessments. Although socioeconomic status and rurality are not recognised protected characteristics
under the Equality Act, people on low incomes or in rural isolation are highly
likely to be affected by services that are intended to support vulnerable
people.

2.0

The General Equality Duty.
SLDC, in the exercise of its functions, should:
a. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and
other conduct prohibited by the Act.
b. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a
protected characteristic and those who do not.
c. Foster good relations between people who share
a protected characteristic and those who
do not.

Page 173

Step 1
Summarise the subject and expected outcomes of this EIA.
The Sustainable Procurement and Commissioning Strategy sets the framework for
the Council to purchase goods, services and works to deliver value for money and
to meet the needs of local citizens. The purpose of the strategy is to set out a
corporate framework for how the Council will conduct its procurement of goods,
works and service based around the following priorities:
- Making Savings
- Supporting Local Economies
- Leadership
- Modernising Procurement
The aim of this EIA is to ensure that our procurement strategy does not prompt
any disproportionate negative impact on people with any of the protected
characteristics. Individual EIAs will be prepared for significant individual
procurement exercises.
The expected outcome of this EIA is the identification of any potential issues and a
commitment to undertake the recommended mitigating actions to ensure our
services are adequately assessable to the whole community.
Who are your main stakeholders and list any engagement undertaken
(include surveys, feedback forms, complaints, statistics etc.).
The Procurement Strategy will impact on Council Members and officers, current
and potential suppliers, partners, stakeholders and the community as a whole.
We have consulted internally with our Portfolio Holder, Financial Services, and
Legal Services to ensure we are in compliance with legislation.

Page 174

Step 2
Equality Action Plan

Page 175

In providing this service, what are the impacts
for the following people?
1. Age (young and old)
2. Black and Minority Ethnic
3. Disabled
4. Faith/Belief
5. Sexual Orientation
6. Gender
7. Gender reassignment
8. Pregnancy and maternity
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including
rural deprivation, ‘rurality’)

Positive
impacts

Negative
impacts

Mitigating actions (to
avoid negative impact):

Lead
Officer &
When

Pre-market engagement to
identify the needs of the
community and users through
increased consultation and
encapsulate into
specifications.
Develop strategies for
organising procurement into
lots that do not create
unwanted barriers for smaller
businesses.
Identify the needs of the
community and include in
tender evaluation criteria.

Procurement
and
Contracts
Manager –
Ongoing

(See glossary below for definitions)
Socio-economic disadvantage (including rural
deprevation)

Procurement
and
Contracts
Manager Ongoing
Procurement
and Contracts
Manager Ongoing

Complete
Y/N

In providing this service, what are the impacts
for the following people?
1. Age (young and old)
2. Black and Minority Ethnic
3. Disabled
4. Faith/Belief
5. Sexual Orientation
6. Gender
7. Gender reassignment
8. Pregnancy and maternity
9. Marriage and Civil Partnership
10. Socio-economic disadvantage (including
rural deprivation, ‘rurality’)

Positive
impacts

Negative
impacts

Mitigating actions (to
avoid negative impact):

Lead
Officer &
When

Reflect sustainability and
equalities considerations in
contract monitoring
arrangements.
Seek feedback on an annual
basis from customers over
services available.

Procurement
and Contracts
Manager Ongoing

Hold supplier briefings for a
diverse range of suppliers to
provide them with the tools to
compete effectively.

Procurement
and Contracts
Manager Ongoing

(See glossary below for definitions)

Page 176

Procurement
and Contracts
Manager Ongoing

Complete
Y/N

Step 3
Examples of good equality practice you have put in place (For example, all venues used
are accessible for people with mobility, hearing and sight impairments)
- Ongoing and flexible support to suppliers in preparing tenders to assist with any obstacles
and ensure a ‘level playing field’
- Ongoing monitoring of the size, type and locality of suppliers winning contracts and
participating in procurement exercises
- A standard approach to feedback adopted to ensure all suppliers are privy to the same
level of information
- Utilising the North West e-tendering portal, The Chest to ensure a consistent, accessible
and non-discriminatory approach to procurement.
- Revising our procurement documents to allow for greater understanding of our
requirements across our diverse supplier base and lead to a less resource intensive process
in preparing a submission.
- A Quick Payment Scheme has been adopted which supports Small Medium Enterprises
(SMEs) so that financial concerns won’t deter them from tendering against larger firms.
- A robust approach to equalities to be included in the contract monitoring procedure to
ensure the council’s good practice filters through and requirements are maintained.
- Our Guidance and Strategy documents will be made available in various formats to
address visual impairments and language barriers.
- Work with various business organisations to ensure the details of our procurement
processes and any message of change is far-reaching

The council has a list of equality contacts who can be contacted for consultation or to ask advice.
The list is on the intranet under Equality and Diversity. If you need any support when completing
this Equality Impact Analysis, please contact the Partnerships and Funding Officer.

Date:

20 June 2019

EIA Author(s):

Helen Smith

Assistant Director:
Document version number:

1.1

Date for Review:

December 2019

EIA forwarded to Policy Officer

Yes

Glossary
Age: This refers to a person having a particular age (for example, 32 year-olds) or being within an age group (for example, 18-30
year-olds).
Civil partnership: Legal recognition of a same-sex couple’s relationship. Civil partners must be treated the same as married couples
on a range of legal matters.
Disability: A person has a disability if they have a physical or mental impairment which has a substantial and long-term adverse
effect on their ability to carry out normal day-to-day activities. Includes: Physical/sensory disability, mental health or learning
disability.
Gender reassignment: A person has the protected characteristic of gender reassignment if the person is proposing to undergo, is
undergoing or has undergone a process (or part of a process) for the purpose of reassigning the person's sex by changing
physiological or other attributes of sex.
Maternity: The period after giving birth. It is linked to maternity leave in the employment context. In the non-work context, protection

Page 177

against maternity discrimination is for 26 weeks after giving birth, including as a result of breastfeeding.
Race: It refers to a group of people defined by their colour, nationality (including citizenship), ethnic or national origins. Includes,
Asian, Black and White minority ethnic groups inc. Eastern Europeans, Irish people and Gypsy Travellers.
Religion or belief: “Religion” means any religion, including a reference to a lack of religion. “Belief” includes religious and
philosophical beliefs including lack of belief (for example, Atheism). The category includes Christianity, Islam, Judaism, Hinduism,
Buddhism, and non religious beliefs such as Humanism.
Sexual orientation: This is whether a person's sexual attraction is towards their own sex, the opposite sex or to both sexes.
Socio-economic disadvantage: This includes people on low incomes, as well as issues around rural and urban deprivation, such
as access to services and transport. Rurality should be specifically considered as South Lakeland is defined as ‘Rural-80’ – this
means we have at least 80 percent of our population in rural settlements and larger market towns.

Page 178

